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CITY C>F 
JAMES E. DARLING, Mayor 

McALLEN 
HILDA SALINAS, Mayor Pro· Tem and Commissioner District 3 
AIDA RAMtREZ, Mayor Pro-Tem and Commissioner District 4 

RICHARD F. CORTEZ, Commissioner District 1 
TREY PEBLEY, Commissioner District 2 
JOHN J. INGRAM, Commissioner District 5 
VERONICA VELA WHITACRE, Commissioner District 6 

ROEL RODRIGUEZ, P.E., City Manager 
March 24, 2016 

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Commission, Members ofthe Public Utility Board of Trustees and Citizens 
of the City of McAllen: 

State and local law requires that the City of McAllen publish annually a complete set of audited fmancial statements. This 
report, the Comprehensive Armual Financial Report of the City of McAllen, is published to meet that requirement for the 
fiscal year ended September 30,2015. 

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information presented in this report, 
based upon a comprehensive internal control framework that it has established for this purpose. Since the cost of internal 
control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that 
the fmancial statements are free ofany material misstatements. 

The fmn of Grant Thornton, L.L.P., Certified Public Accountants, was selected by the City to perfonn the audit and have 
issued an unmodified ("clean") opinion on the City of McAllen's fmancial statements for the year ended September 30, 
2015. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit was also designed to meet the 
requirements of the Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-133. Generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
set forth in the Government Accountability Office's Government Auditing Standards were used by the auditors in 
conducting the engagement. The auditors' report on the basic financial statements and required supplementary 
information as well as the individual fund statements and schedules are included in the financial section of this report. 
The auditors' reports on internal controls and compliance with applicable laws and regulations can be found in the single 
audit section of this report. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditors' report and provides a 
narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic fmancial statements. MD&A complement this letter of 
transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. 

The City of McAllen is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit 
Act of 1984 and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget's Circular A-133, Audits oJState and Local Governments 
and Non-Profit Organizations and the State oj Texas Single Audit Circular. Information related to this single audit, 
including a schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards, the independent auditors' reports on internal controls 
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and a schedule of findings and questioned costs are included in the 
single audit section of this report. 

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT 

The City of McAllen, incorporated in 19 I 1 and the largest city in Hidalgo County, is located at the intersection of U. S. 
Highway 83 and State Highway 336. It is approximately 230 miles south of San Antonio, 150 miles north of Monterrey, 
Nuevo Leon, Mexico, a city with a population of over 5.9 million including the surrounding suburbs, and just 7 miles 
north of Reynosa, Tamps. Mexico. Within a ISO-mile radius of McAllen, its trade area represents approximately 10 
million people. According to the 20 I 0 census, McAllen's estimated popUlation was 129,877, increasing 23,463 or 22% 
over that of the 2000 census, 106,4 14 . Using the latest census number as a new base, it is estimated that as of September 
30,2014 and 2015 the population has grown to 136,507 and 138,925 respectively. The City is empowered to levy a 
property tax on both real and business personal property located within its boundaries. The City also has the power by 
state statute to extend its corporate limits by annexation, which it has done from time to time, as deemed appropriate by 
the City Commission. 
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The City has operated underthe council-manager form of government since 1911. Po lieymaking and legislat ive authori ty 
is vested in the City Commi ssion, whi ch currently consists of a mayor and a six-member commission. The City 
Commission is responsible, among other things, for pass ing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees and 
hiring the C ity Ma nager, City Secretary, Police Chief, Fire Chief, the City Attorney and the Municipal Judges. The C ity 
Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the City Commission, for overseeing the day-to­
day operations of the City, and for appointing the heads of the C ity's departments. The Ci ty Commission is elected on a 
non-pmtisan basis. In May 2000 the voters decided in favor of sing le member district representation . Under this system, 
City Comm ission members arc elected to four-year staggered terms with three elected every l WO years. The Mayor was 
and will conti nue to be elected at large to four-year terms, 

The financ ial reporting entity (the government) includes all the funds of the primary government (i .e ., the C ity o f McA llen 
as legally defined). The City of McA llen provides a full range of services inc luding public safety (primarily po lice and 
fire protection), highways and streets, hea lth and welfare, recreationa l and cultural act ivities, water, sewer, sanitation and 
recycl ing services, a municipal golf course, a civic center, a convent ion center, an internati onal airport, intennodal transit 
terminal, a transit system and two international toll bridge operations, 

The City acts in the capacity of fidu ciary for the Firemen's Re lie f and Retirement Fund, Deve loper 's Fund, and 
Communications Group; therefore, these activities are included in the reporting ent ity, However, the McAllen 
Independent Schoo l Di stTict (M1SD), McAllen Chamber of Commerce (MCC), McAllen Economic Development 
Corporati on (MEDC), McAllen Affordable Homes of South Texas, Inc., and the Texas Munic ipa l Retirement System 
(TM RS) do not meet the established cri teria for inclusion in the reporting entity, and accordingly are excluded Ii'om this 
report. 

The City Comm iss ion is required to adopt a fin a l budget by no later than the close of the fi scal year. This annual budget 
serves as the fo undation for the City of McAllen tinancial pl anning and control. The budget is prepared by fund , fun ction 
(e.g., public safety), and department (e.g ., police). The legal leve l of control is at the department leve l. 

LOCAL ECONOMY 

Over the last t 5 to 20 years, the City's economy has undergone a significant tl'ansfonnation, characterized by a decreasing 
re liance on agriculture, As a consequence of this transformation, the City has experienced substantial economic growth 
that has spurred an increase in employment and a decline in its unemployment rate despite brisk growth in the labor 
force-until it began to experience a slowdown during the last year period . Although the City's economy did not decline 
to the extent of that experienced by other cit ies, in both the nation and to a lesser extent the state, it did present some very 
rea l challenges during the budget process last year, which pcrsisted, if not more difficult this year compared to the 15 
years prior. 

According to the Texas Workforce Commission, over the last 10 years the McA lien-Ed inburg-Mission MSA employment 
has grown from 23 1,999 in 2004 to 302,300 in 20 15-a 30.30% increase. At this level, the unemployment rate is 7.9%. 
Some of the more sign ificant employment numbers by industry, include government; tl'ade, tl'ansportation and utilities; 
education and hea lth services; and leisure and hospitali ty, 

The City ' s locati on has positioned it to take advantage of The Maquiladora "Twin Plant" Program, under which U.S. 
firms locate manu facturing facilities in Mexico accompanied by warehousing facilities in McA llen 's foreign trade zone 
in order to cut labor costs and remain competitive, has been responsib le for a la rge part of the j ob growth . Since 1988 
through 20 IS, the latest year ava ilable, which on a calendar year bas is, the McAllen Economic Development Corporation 
has been respons ible for bringing 3 10 new companies, which inc luding expansions, has created 31,417 j obs in McAllen. 
Its effOlts have also resulted in 360 new companies, which including expansions, has created 135,239 new jobs in 
Reynosa, Mex ico, 

The impact of the North American Free Trade Agreement (NAFTA), as it continues to develop, has also played a major 
role in increased trade with Mexico for the City as we ll as the State of Texas. During 20 15 Texas exported $94.5 billion 
to Mexico, which represented over 37,6% of Texas' total exports-making Mex ico its Number One Trading Partner. As 
NA FTA continues to mature, the City of McAllen's internationa l to ll bridge, connecting Hidalgo, Texas with Reynosa, 
will continue to fac ili tate trade between Mexico and the U, So; and, more particularly the City with its proximity to Mex ico 
and stl'ong social, economic and cu ltura l ties wi th the people of Mexico, The Anzalduas Internat ional Crossing also 
provides another bridge to connect the peoples ofthe U.S. and Mexico and fac ilitate economic development opportunitics 
between the two countries, 
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The City's unemp loyment rate increased by 6.80% when comparing 2006 to 201 5 over the last 10 fi sca l years, with its 
unemployment ra te, in the 5% range during 2005, rising to 7.5% in 2009, decreasing in 20 tOto 7.4%, increasing back up 
to 8.2% in 20 I I, decreasing to 7.80 in 201 2, before decreasing down to 6.9% in 20 13 and further down to 4.9% this year. 
The unemployment rate decreased due to job growth result ing from a decline in the unemployed, as well as the labor 
market increased. The good news is that McA llen's employment rates are dropp ing dramatically and fast approaching 
the levels not seen since the "boom" years of2005 to 2007. 
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Another useful so urce of information for assess ing the City 's economy is the At/cA llen Area Economic Pulse report, 
published by the McAllen Chamber of COlllmerce. This year's report indicates a margina l improvement over last year. 
According to the latest report available, September 20 15, the economic index for the McA llen Area increased A'om 184.0 
in September 20 14 to 190 .6 in September 20 15. This index reflects, for the McAllen area economy, an increase in reta il 
sales, an increase in lodging tax receipts, airline boarding's, motor vehicle purchases, construction permit va lues, and 
average home sales price although bridge crossings were down. 

LONG-TER M FINANC IAL PLANN ING 

As of September 30, 20 15 the City's General Fund unassigned fund ba lance amounted to $46.4M , which represents 
17 1 days of operating expenses appropriated in next year 's budget. This amount exceeds the City' s 140 day po li cy. 

RELEVANT FINANC IAL POLICIES 

During th is fisca l year, the City adopted no new financial policies, which would have a significant impact all the current 
year's financial statements. 

MAJOR INIT IAT IVES 
Fo r the Vea l' 20 14-15 

The City's staff, fo llowing specific d irectives of the City Commission and the City Manager, has been involved in a variety 
of projects throughout the year. These projects reflect the City's commitment of ensuring that its citizens are able to live and 
work in a highly desirable comm un ity and include the following: 

The goals adopted by the Mayor and City Commission for FV 20 14- 15 as well as the status fo llows: 

Continue to implement City Business Plan 

» Continue Incentive programs for "Destination" Retail Projects including La Plaza Mall 
Management's Respo nse: Complete agreement with Simon at La Plaza Mall for construction of Park ing 
Decks for 1300 cars. 
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~ Public Art to City 
Management's Response: Veteran's Spire under construction for opening on Veteran's Day. Vaquero statue 
under construction for 2015 installation at new Vaquero park site at Performing Arts building. 

Complete City assets cl/rrently in design 

~ Construct new Fire Sub-Station #3 at Dallas Street 
Management's Response: City completed and held grand opening on September 30,2015. 

;;.. Complete construction on Airport Termina1 Expansion 
Management's Response: Terminal Expansion completed with the addition of 55,000 square feet along with 
landscape and lighting improvements with Grand Opening held May 5, 2015 . 

~ Renovate and Improve City Hall for business affairs .. 
Management's Response: First and second floor completely renovated with departments being fully operational 
and without interruption of services. 

~ Park & Ride: 
Management's Response: Completed with a Grand Opening held August 27,201 5. 

~ Balboa Waterline Improvements 
Management's Response: Installation of Water lines completed. 

~ Construction of a South Waste Water Treatment Plant (SWWTP) Project 
Management's Response: Design complete and funding in place for the construction ofthe South Waste Water 
Treatment Plant. 

improve City Trajficflo'rl' and Storm Drainage 

~ Traffic Management Improvements 
Management's Response: Traffic Signal installation completed on Bicentennial and the followin g 
intersections: Tamarack, Pecan, Hackberry, and Business 83; Ware and Sara and Nolana and 29. lh 

}> Regional Storm water improvements - Harvey & 41h _6 th ; Quince & Redwood, and Quince & 27 Ih_3 1, 
Management's Response: South McAllen site improvements completed January, April, and July 20 15, 
respectively. 

~ Bentsen - Pecan to 3 mile Line expansion. 
Management's Response: Construction completed. 

Leisure, Cultural and Entertah7J"enf 

);> Begin construction of Performing Arts Center 
Management's Response: Construction contract awarded June 9, 20 14 with an anticipated completion date of 
September 30, 20 16. 

~ McAllen Annual City Parade. 
Management's Response: City held its inaugural parade on December 6, 2014 with dignitaries present and will 
stmt the tradition with private sector sponsors. 

~ . McAllen City Marathon. 
Management's Response: City annual marathon held December 14, 2014. Renamed McAllen Marathon Scott 
Crane Memorial Run and is scheduled December 13,201 5. 
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}> Estab lish a Bicycle Loan Program. 
Management's Response: Bicycle stat ions constructed at (8) locations in the City of McA llen. 

}> Hike & Bike Trail on Bentsen Road. 
Management's Response: Received grant from the Texas Parks and Wildlife and wi ll construct the trai l from 
Pecan to 3 Mile line. 

A WARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a CCJ1ificate of Achievement for Exce llence in Financial 
Reporting to the City for its comprehensive annllal financia l repol1 for the year ended September 30, 20 14. This was the 
twenty-eighth consecutive year and the twenty-ninth overa ll that the City has received this prest igious award. In order to 
be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City publ ished an easily readable and effic iently organized comprehensive 
annlla l financial report. This report satisfies both genera lly accepted accounting princip les and applicable legal 
requirements. 

A Cert ificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive annual 
financial repOit continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program 's requirements and we are submitting it to the 
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

In addition, the City also received the GFOA' s Award fo r Distinguished Budget Presentation for its annual appropriated 
budget dated October 1,2014. The budget for Octobe,' 1,201 5 has been submitted for review and notification of an award 
is awaited. In order to qualify for the Di st inguished Budget Presentation Award, the City ' s budget document is judged 
on proficiency in several categories including po li cy documentation, financial planning and organization. 

The preparat ion of this repOl1 could not have been accomplished without the effi cient and dedicated services ofthe entire 
Finance Deparlment staff. Due cred it also should be given to the Mayor, City Commission, McAllen Public Ut ili ties 
Board of Trustees, the Bridge Board, Development Corp Board and management for their interest and support in planning 
and conducting the operations of the City in a responsible and progressive manner. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Roe~~g1, P.E. 
City Manager 

v 

~L~~~~r:;"~ 
Susan Lozano, CPA, C 
Finance Director 
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City of McAllen, Texas 
Management Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2015 
 
 

 
 

This discussion and analysis is intended to provide an overview of the City’s financial performance for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2015 and the related effect on the City’s financial condition.  Please read 
it in conjunction with the transmittal letter on pages i-v and the City’s financial statements, which begin on 
page 19. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
City’s Change in Net Position – Governmental and Business-Type Activities 
Total government-wide net position decreased $2M as a result of this year’s operations.  Governmental 
activities increased $11M with business-type activities contributing $11M.  In compliance with GASB 
Statement 68, $100K in pension costs were restated to prior year’s net position. 
 

• Governmental Activities – Revenues and Expenses Compared to Last Year – Total revenues in the 
aggregate increased $10M over last year.  The increases were in the following categories: property 
tax increased $4M, sales taxes increased $3M and other general revenues increased by $3M, which 
is the result of an increase in Police forfeiture funds, $2.3M over last year.   Expenses decreased 
$10M or 7% under last year, which is the result of delaying street repaving, $2M, fewer 
construction and capital improvement projects, $8M.  The net increase is the result of an $8M 
decrease in general government, $1M decrease in public safety, $3M increase in both health and 
welfare and highways and streets,  and a $7M decrease in culture and recreation.   
  

• Business-Type Activities – Revenues and Expenses Compared to Last Year – Total revenues 
reflected an increase of $7M from last year.  Charges for services increased by $3M, which can be 
attributed to an increase in Bridge toll rates and the Sewer Fund’s commodity rates, as well as an 
increase in the Sanitation Fund’s brush collection charges. Grants and contributions also increased 
by $4M, with the majority of the increase noted in the Airport Capital Improvement Fund and 
Transit System Fund.  Expenses increased $1M or 1.7% over last year with the more significant 
increase coming from the Airport Fund–$1M, as the Airport Expansion project was completed in 
May 2015.  

 
• City as a Whole – Revenues and Expenses Compared to Last Year –Governmental revenues 

reflected an increase of $10M and business-type activity revenues increased by $7M, thus 
generating revenues of $17M or 7.9% more over last year while expenses decreased by $9M or 
4.0% less than last year. 

 
USING THE ANNUAL REPORT 

 
The annual report consists of a series of financial statements.  The Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities (on pages 19 and 20-21) provide information about the activities of the City as a 
whole and present a longer-term view of the City’s finances.  Fund financial statements start on page 22.  
For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the short term as well 
as what remains for future spending.  Fund financial statements also report the City’s operations in more 
detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the City’s most significant 
funds.  The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which the City acts 
solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the government. 
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Reporting the City as a Whole 
 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 
 
One of the central concerns in assessing any City’s finances could be summarized in the question, “Is the 
City as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?”  Our analysis addressing this 
question begins on page 8-9. The analysis includes a condensed summary of the government-wide financial 
statements—The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, which present information 
about the City in a way that facilitates answering this question.  These statements are presented much like 
the private-sector companies—including all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting. All 
revenues and expenses for the current year are reported without regard to when cash is received or paid. 
 
These government-wide financial statements report both net position and changes thereto.  Net position is 
reported in the Statement of Net Position.  The City’s net position, which is the difference between assets 
and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, is one indicator of the 
City’s financial well-being or financial position at one point in time.  Increases or decreases to net position 
over a period of time is an indication whether its financial well-being is improving or deteriorating.  Of 
course, other non-financial considerations enter into the determination of the City’s overall health, which 
would include such things as changes in the City’s property tax base and the condition of its streets. 
 
Changes to net position are reported in the Statement of Activities, which divides all City functions into 
two categories: 
 
Governmental activities—Most of the City’s basic services are reported in this category, which includes 
public safety (including police and fire), highways and streets, health and welfare, culture and recreation 
and general administration.  These activities are primarily supported by sales and property taxes and 
franchise fees. 
 
Business-type activities—Certain services that the City provides are paid for from fees that are charged to 
customers.  Water, sewer, garbage collection, civic center, convention center, golf course, airport, transit 
terminal, transit services and the bridges are activities that are reported in this category. 
 

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds 
Fund Financial Statements 

 
Our analysis of the City’s major funds commences on page 11.  The fund financial statements are presented 
on pages 22 through 49.  These statements present detailed information about the City’s more significant 
funds as opposed to the City as a whole.  Funds are established for various reasons—some are required by 
state law; others by bond covenants.  Some funds are established by the City Commission to assist in 
managing money that is to be spent for particular purposes.  For example, the Community Development 
Block Grant Fund was established to demonstrate that the money received from the U. S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development was used for purposes established by the federal government.  The City 
has two categories of funds, which can be used for public purpose—governmental and proprietary.  Each 
category uses a different accounting approach. 
 
Governmental funds—Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds.  These funds 
focus on the flow of money into and out of the funds and the balance left over at the end of the year that is 
available for future spending.  Governmental funds use a method of accounting called modified accrual.  
The purpose of this method is to measure cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to 
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cash.  This approach provides a detailed short-term perspective of the City’s general government operations 
and the basic services it provides.  This view of the City’s operations provides information that helps to 
determine the extent to which financial resources are available to spend in the near future to finance City 
programs.  The relationship between these governmental fund financial statements and the governmental 
activities column shown in the government-wide financial statements is shown in the form of a 
reconciliation presented on the page following each governmental fund financial statement. 
 
Proprietary funds—Services provided to either outside customers or to another unit of the City, where a 
fee is charged, are generally reported in proprietary funds.  Proprietary funds are reported the same way 
that is used in the government-wide financial statements.  Matter of fact, the City’s enterprise funds (a 
component of proprietary funds) are substantially the same as the business-type activities column of the 
government-wide financial statements but provide more detail including cash flows.  The other component 
of proprietary funds is internal service funds.  These funds are used to report services that are provided for 
other City funds—such as the Fleet and Materials Management Fund, which reports maintenance activities 
for all City vehicles. 

The City as Trustee 
 

Reporting the City’s Fiduciary Responsibilities 
 
The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for the Firemen’s Pension Fund, Developers’ Fund, Communications 
Group Fund and Payroll Fund.  This activity is reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Position 
and Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position on pages 50-51.  These activities are not included with 
the City’s other government-wide financial information since the City cannot use these assets to finance its 
programs or operations.  The City’s is responsible for ensuring that these funds are used for their intended 
purpose. 
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THE CITY AS A WHOLE  
 
The City’s Condensed Net Position Information is presented in the table below.   
 

Net Position Information 
(in Millions) 

 

Governmental Business-type Primary
Activities Activities Government

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Current and other assets 170$    187$    161$    132$    331$         319$    
Capital assets 296      281      414      397      710           678      
Deferred outflows of resources 8.5       - 1.5       0.50     10.0          0.50     

Total assets and deferred
outflows of resources 474.5$ 467.7$ 576.5$ 529.5$ 1,051$      997$    

Long-term debt outstanding 82.5$   87$      179.7$ 146$    262$         233$    
Other liabilities 47.2     16        18        15        65             31        
Deferred inflows of resources 3.6       12        0.6       - 4.2            12        

Total liabilities and deferred
   inflows of resources 133.3   115      198.4   161      331.7        276      

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 271      261      245      264      516           525      
Restricted 24        23        53        55        77             79        
Unrestricted 46        46        80        49        126           117      

Total net position 341$    330$    378$    368$    719$         721$    

Total

 
Net position of the City’s governmental activities increased by $11M or 3.30% over last year; primarily as 
a result of an increase in net investment in capital assets by $10M, which is mainly due to the Performing 
Arts Center construction expenditures.  Unrestricted net position is the portion of net position, which can 
be utilized to finance day-to-day operations, free of any constraints established by debt covenants, enabling 
legislation or other legal requirements. 
 
The net position of the City’s business-type activities increased $10M or 2.72% more than last year’s 
amount, which is due to an increase in Bridge toll revenues and the completion of the Airport Expansion 
project.  Generally, the City can only use this net position to finance continuing operations and capital 
expenses of the enterprise funds. 
 
The table on the following page presents more detail on revenues and expenses. 
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Governmental Business-type Primary
Activities Activities Government

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Revenues
Program revenues:

Charges for services 12$      9$        77$      74$      89$      83$      
Grants and contributions 5          8          14        10        19        18        

General revenues: -           -           
Property taxes 39        35        -           -           39        35        
Sales tax 64        61        -           -           64        61        
Other taxes 12        12        -           -           12        12        
Proceeds from sale of capital assets -           1          2          1          2          
Other general revenues 6          3          2          1          8          4          

Total revenues 138      128      94        87        232      215      

Program expenses
General government 27        35        -           -           27        35        
Public safety 57        58        -           -           57        58        
Highways and streets 23        20        -           -           23        20        
Health and welfare 8          5          -           -           8          5          
Culture and recreation 14        21        -           -           14        21        
Interest on long term debt 2          1          -           -           2          1          
Water -           -           17        17        17        17        
Sewer -           -           15        15        15        15        
Sanitation -           -           16        16        16        16        
Golf -           -           1          1          1          1          
Transit terminal -           -           1          1          1          1          
Bus -           -           4          4          4          4          
Civic center -           -           0.4       -           0.4       -           
Convention center -           -           6          6          6          6          
Airport -           -           8          7          8          7          
Anzalduas international crossing -           -           5          5          5          5          
McAllen Int.'l  toll bridge -           -           7          7          7          7          

Total expenses 130      140      80        79        211      219      

Excess (Loss) before transfers 8          (12)       14        8          21        (4)         

Transfers 3          4          (3)         (4)         -           -           

Change in net position 11        (8)         11        4          21        (4)         

Beginning net position,  October 1 353      361      368      364      721      725      
Impact of change in accounting principle (23)       -           -           -           (23)       -           
Ending net position,  September 30 341$    353$    378$    368$    719$    721$    

Total
Changes in Net Position Information (in Millions)
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Total revenues generated from both governmental and business-type activities this year amounted to 
$232M, representing an increase of $17M or 7.91% over last year due primarily to charges for services, 
property taxes, and sales tax.  Sales tax increased $3M or 4.9%.  Expenses came in at $211M, $8M less or 
3.7% under last year, as FY 13-14 included large capital outlay expenses for the land purchase for the 
medical school research facility and student housing complex as well as the completion of the DeLeon 
Soccer Complex., leaving -$2M as a decrease to net position. The following analysis considers separately 
the operations of governmental and business-type activities. 
 

Governmental Activities 
 
Total revenues generated from governmental activities this year amounted to $138M.  Expenses came in at 
$130M, leaving $8M as an increase before transfers-in of $3M, thus increasing net position by 
 $11M, before a restatement of -$22.5M to the prior year.  The restatement was the result of implementing 
GASB Statement 68.  
 
The cost of all governmental activities this year was $130M.  However, as shown on the Statement of 
Activities on pages 20-21, the amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities through 
taxes and other general revenues was $113M.  The other $17M to finance these programs was paid by those 
who directly benefited from them ($12M) and by other governments that subsidized certain programs with 
grants ($5M). 
 
The table below presents the cost of each of the City’s five largest programs as well as each program’s net 
cost (total cost less revenues generated by the activities).  The net cost shows the financial burden that was 
placed on the City’s taxpayers by each of these functions. 
 

Governmental Activities 
(in Millions) 

 
Total Cost Net Cost
of Services of Services

2015 2014 2015 2014

Police 34$      33$      26$      25$      
Fire 19        19        19        19        
Street maintenace 7          10        6          10        
Parks 16        13        15        12        
Drainage 3          3          3          3          

Total 79$      78$      69$      69$      

 
 

Business-type Activities 
 
Total revenues generated from business-type activities this year amounted to $94M.  Expenses came in at 
$80M leaving $14M before transfers out of $3M, which, resulted in a net increase to net position of $11M, 
before a restatement of $200K to the prior year.  The restatement was the result of implementing GASB 
Statement 68. 
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More details will be provided about governmental and business-type activities’ operations later in this 
discussion and analysis. 
 
 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS – A Detailed Discussion 
 (General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund and Capital Project Funds) 

 
As a result of this year’s operations, governmental funds (as reflected in the balance sheet on page 22-23) 
combined fund balance totaled $125M or a decrease of $4M from last year.   Current revenues, including 
net transfers in, were not sufficient to cover current expenditures, thus, resulting in a decrease to net position 
by $4M. 
 

Revenues and Transfers-In and Other Financing Sources 
 
The following table presents a summary of general fund, special revenue funds, debt service fund and 
capital projects funds revenues and transfers-in and other financing sources for the years ended September 
30, 2015 and 2014. 
 

Amount of %
Revenues, transfers-in 2015 % of 2014 Increase Increase

and Other Financing Sources Amount Total Amount (Decrease) (Decrease)

Taxes 114,763,015$     63.92% 108,469,574$       6,293,441$    5.80%
Licenses and permits 1,613,397           0.90% 1,447,712             165,685         11.44%
Intergovernmental 3,502,500           1.95% 6,602,805             (3,100,305)     -46.95%
Charges for services 5,767,795           3.21% 5,220,385             547,410         10.49%
Fines and forfeitures 5,415,137           3.02% 2,556,904             2,858,233      111.78%
Investment income 876,393              0.49% 739,885                136,508         18.45%
Miscellaneous 4,348,725           2.42% 1,784,518             2,564,207      143.69%
Proceeds from capital debt 16,316,031         9.09% 57,723,908           (41,407,877)   -71.73%
Transfers-in 26,945,098         15.01% 18,703,155           8,241,943      44.07%

Totals 179,548,091$     100.00% 203,248,846$       (23,700,755)$ -11.66%

 
 
The $6.3M increase in taxes is primarily an increase in property tax of $5M, as property tax rates were 
increased in FY 14-15, and an increase of $1M in hotel and venue tax due to an approved 2% rate increase 
(from 7% to 9%). Licenses and permits and charges for services were relatively flat.  The increase of $3M 
in fines and forfeitures was largely due to seized funds forfeitures. Funding from federal and state assistance 
decreased by $3.1M due to a decline in grant revenue for public safety projects as reflected in 
intergovernmental revenues’ category.  Investment earnings also reflect a modest increase as compared to 
last year.  The increase of $2.5M in the miscellaneous category is a result of governmental reimbursements, 
$500K, radio system proceeds, $500K, developer contributions, $800K, and an increase in several 
miscellaneous items and grant funding requests. The increase of $8M in transfers-in was the result of an 
increase of transfers to the Development Corporation Fund from the General Insurance Fund, $5.9M,  for 
funding assistance toward a medical research facility, as well as a transfer in from the Hotel Venue Fund 
of $2M to assist with construction costs for the Performing Arts Construction Fund. In the prior year, 
proceeds from capital debt of $57M included two bond issues, GO Series 2014 for $45M and CO Series 
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2014 for $12M; this year the City issued $16M in GO Refunding bonds, Series 2015, to refund CO Series 
2010, resulting in a decrease in proceeds from capital debt of $41M.    
 

Expenditures and Transfers-Out 
 
The following table presents a summary of general fund, special revenue funds, debt service fund and 
capital projects funds expenditures, transfers-out for the years ended September 30, 2015 and 2014. 

 
Amount of %

Expenditures and 2015 % of 2014 Increase Increase

Transfers-out Amount Total Amount (Decrease) (Decrease)

General government 27,655,376$       15.04% 36,318,600$         (8,663,224)$   -23.85%

Public safety 57,159,580         31.08% 58,295,032           (1,135,452)     -1.95%

Highways and streets 18,950,050         10.30% 17,311,957           1,638,093      9.46%

Health and welfare 7,666,200           4.17% 4,563,154             3,103,046      68.00%

Culture and recreation 32,905,919         17.89% 27,296,284           5,609,635      20.55%

Debt service:

Principal 19,853,534         10.79% 2,765,000             17,088,534    618.03%

Interest and fiscal 

charges 3,803,374           2.07% 774,407                3,028,967      391.13%

Transfers-out 15,923,896         8.66% 13,544,283           2,379,613      17.57%

Totals 183,917,929$     100.00% 160,868,717$       23,049,212$  14.33%

 
The increase of $23M in total expenditures was primarily due to an increase of $1.6M in highways and 
streets for infrastructure, drainage, and street maintenance.  Health and welfare increased $3.1M, which is 
mainly due to the payment of $2M to the Doctor’s Hospital medical district. Culture and recreation 
functions increased $5.6M due to the Performing Arts Construction expenditures, which was offset by a 
decrease of $8.7M in general government, and a decrease of $1.1M in public safety. Additionally, 
expenditures increased in: principal payments—$17M as well as an increase for interest and fiscal 
charges—$3M primarily due to the refunding of CO Series 2010.  As indicated, transfers-out increased by 
$2.4M compared to last year—primarily due to an increase of transfers from the Hotel Venue Fund—$2M 
to the Performing Arts Construction Fund; and from the Capital Improvement Fund—$350K to the Transit 
System Fund toward an elimination of an advance.  

 
Fund Balances 

 
The governmental fund balances decreased by $4M, from $129M in the prior year to $125M in the current 
year, which is attributed to the spend down of general obligation and certificate of obligation proceeds 
received for street improvements, sports facility complex, and the new Performing Arts facility. Fund 
balances by major funds are discussed below. 
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General Fund 
 
As a result of this year’s operations, total fund balance increased by $5.3M—to $49.1M.  Fund balance 
categories reflect $2.3M in non-spendable, $457K in restricted, leaving $46M unassigned. For FY 14-15, 
paving expenditures totaled $1.3M against a budget of $3.6M. Management intends to carry over the unused 
portion of the paving expenditure balance to FY 15-16.  During fiscal year 1997-98, the City adopted, by 
resolution, a financial policy requiring a minimum of 140 days of operating expenses in fund balance. Based 
upon next year’s operating budget, exclusive of capital outlay and transfers-out, unassigned fund balance 
represents 171 days, which is 31 days in excess of the minimum requirement.  
 

Development Corp Fund 
 
The fund balance in the Development Corporation Fund reflected a decrease of $680K, leaving the ending 
restricted fund balance at $14.5M. 
  

Capital Improvement Fund 
 
The Capital Improvement Fund, whose main funding source is a transfer in from the General Fund from 
decreasing oil and gas royalty proceeds, ended the year with a net decrease, amounting to $900K, leaving 
the assigned fund balance at $3.8M. 
  

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 
(Enterprise Funds and Internal Service Funds) 

Enterprise Funds 
 

The City’s enterprise operations consist of the McAllen Public Utility (Water and Sewer Funds), Sanitation 
Fund, Palm View Golf Course Fund, Transit Terminal Fund, McAllen International Civic Center Fund, 
McAllen Convention Center, McAllen International Airport Fund, McAllen Express Transit Fund, McAllen 
International Toll Bridge Fund and the Anzalduas International Crossing Fund. In the aggregate, the 
proprietary funds reported a $11.7M increase to net position.  Of that amount, the Water and Sewer Funds 
accounted for approximately $1.1M; the Sanitation Fund, $1.3M; the McAllen International Airport, 
$7.1M; the McAllen International Toll Bridge’s, $1.2M.   The Convention Center Fund, the Anzalduas 
International Crossing, and non-major proprietary funds combined generated a net increase amounting to 
$900K.   

 
McAllen Public Utilities (MPU) – Water and Sewer Funds 

 
Water Fund 

Operating revenues decreased by less than 1.0% as compared to last year due to significant rainfall received 
throughout the year and summer months. With operating expenses held to last year’s totals, the decrease to 
net position amounted to $500K.  Combined Water and Sewer Fund working capital is in excess of the 
board policy of 120 days of operating expenses. 
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Sewer Fund 
 
Since sewer revenues are impacted by water consumptions as noted above, operating revenues increased 
by 2.6% from last year due to a commodity rate increase in FY 14-15.  Operating expenses decreased 4% 
under last year, mainly due to tighter controls in operations.  The net impact to net position was an increase 
of $1.5M, leaving combined Water and Sewer Fund working capital in excess of the board policy of 120 
days of operating expenses. 

 
Sanitation Fund 

 
This year’s operating revenues, representing charges for services, increased $430K or 2.5% over prior year, 
which primarily represents a small increase in growth in the customer base, as well an increase in brush 
pickup revenue.  As a whole, operating expenses decreased $667K or 4% over last year, which is due to 
tighter controls, leaving an operating income of $1.2M.  The effect of non-operating revenues and capital 
contributions were minimal.  Consequently, the net position increased by $1.3M. Working capital as of 
year-end amounted to $9.7M. 
 

Convention Center Fund 
 
Operating revenues were $2.2M and operating expenses were $5.7M, leaving an operating loss of $3.5M, 
which was partially covered by transfers-in from the Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund in the amount of $2.4M, 
as well as a gain of $1.1M from the sale of capital assets.  As a result, the Convention Center reported a 
decrease in net position of $1.3M, after a transfer out of $1.3M. Working capital is now reported at $2.4M.   
 

McAllen International Airport Fund 
 
Operating revenues increased this year by 21% from last year’s levels due to an increase in parking and car 
rental fees.  Operating expenses increased by 2%. Even with the increased revenue, the Airport Fund 
sustained a loss of $785K before capital contributions and transfers out. Capital contributions from the 
Passenger Facility Charge as well as the FAA amounted to $8.9M. Transfers-out to the City amounted to 
$1M to reimburse for public safety personnel assigned to the Airport.  As a result, an increase in net position 
of $7M is reported. This years’ working capital is reflected at $6.5M, not considering liabilities payable 
from restricted assets, which are included in current liabilities. 
 

McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund     
 
The table below reflects three types of crossings for 2015, as well as 2014.  With the exception of truck 
crossings, all other categories reflect decreases. 
 

 

Increase % Increase
Category FY 14-15 FY 13-14 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Cars 2,822,746    2,834,249    (11,503)        -0.40%
Non-Commercial Trucks & Buses 33,211         33,008         203              0.60%
Passengers in cars 7,056,865    7,085,623    (28,758)        -0.40%  

 
Despite a decline in southbound car crossings of 12K or .40%, revenues came in at $11M or a slight increase 
of $548K over last year.   Rental income increased $418K, however, other income remained relatively flat.  
Operating expenses increased slightly by $14K over last year.  After considering all other non-operating 
revenues and expenses, changes in this year’s increase in net position totaled $1.2M.  
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Net position, and its components, over time serve as a meaningful measure of the Bridge’s financial 
position.  The Bridge’s assets exceed liabilities by $33M at September 30, 2015.  Working capital, not 
considering liabilities payable from restricted assets, which are included in current liabilities, at year end 
amounted to $1.1M. 
 

Anzalduas International Crossing 
 
The table below reflects four types of crossings for 2015, as well as 2014.  With the exception of buses and 
truck crossings, all other categories of crossings reflect increases. 
  

 

Increase % Increase
Category FY 14-15 FY 13-14 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Cars 974,930       950,143       24,787         2.61%
Trucks -                   859              (859)             -100.00%
Buses 1,342           1,922           (580)             -30.18%
Passengers in cars 2,437,325    2,375,358    61,967         2.61%

  
Southbound car crossings increased 25K or 2.6% with revenues coming in at $3.2M, an increase of $166K 
over last year.   Operating expenses decreased by $10K over last year.  After a transfer in of $948K and 
implementation of GASB Statement No. 68 in the amount of -$4K, the change in net position was a negative 
$338K. This resulted in an ending net position deficit of $1.M. 
 
Unrestricted net position is reflected as a deficit in the amount of $15.2M, largely the consequence of 
advances made to it by the McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund.  
 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
  

During the year, the City Commission amended the budget several times.  The increase from the original 
appropriations to the final budget appropriations was approximately $375K.  This increase was primarily 
to cover street improvements.    

 
Pensions and Retiree Healthcare  

Effective for fiscal year 2015, Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, 
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions” created specific reporting requirements for pensions 
that are different than that used for funding purposes. Valuations are important as the reporting valuation 
provides a rigorous standard measure that can be used to compare the City’s pension liabilities to other 
governments from around the nation.  The funding valuation is important as the actuarial methods used 
including strategies for repaying any unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities combined with the City’s history 
of making those contributions provides insights regarding the City’s commitment to and the effectiveness 
of its funding strategy.  Information contained in the financial statements themselves including the first 
schedule of Required Supplementary Information (RSI), Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and 
Related Ratios, is based on the reporting valuation.  The second schedule in the RSI, Schedule of 
Contributions, is based on the funding valuation.  On a reporting basis, the City’s financial statements reflect 
a Net Pension Liability as of September 30, 2015 of $ 1,698,401, which is 2.73% of the City’s annual 
covered payroll of $62,261,492.           
 
The Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund (the Plan) reflects a Net Pension Liability as of September 
30, 2015 of $26,152,622, which is 230% of the Plan’s annual covered payroll of $11,365,262.  
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Information contained in the financial statements themselves including the third schedule of Required 
Supplementary Information (RSI), Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios, is 
based on the reporting valuation.  The fourth schedule in the RSI, Schedule of Contributions, is based on 
the funding valuation. 

 
Retiree health care’s net OPEB liability has been calculated in accordance with GASB Statement No.45, 
“Accounting  and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions,” 
to be $1,142,521, as of September 30, 2015. 

 
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

 
Capital Assets 

 
At the end of the fiscal year, the City had $709M in net capital assets. 
 

Capital Assets at Year-end
(Net of Depreciation, in Millions)

Governmental Business-type Primary
Activities Activities Government

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Land 56$      59$      21$      21$      77$      80$      
Buildings and improvements 87        90        322      301      409      391      
Equipment 21        22        20        19        41        41        
Infrastructure 82        86        -           -           82        86        
Construction in progress 50        24        42        49        92        73        
Capitalized interest -           -           1          1          1          1          
Water rights -           -           7          6          7          6          

Totals 296$    281$    413$    397$    709$    678$    

Total

 
 
This year’s major additions included the following projects (in millions):   

  
    
Memorial Stadium Rehab $3 
Street projects financed by the City directly and dedicated by developers     2 
Drainage projects       2 
Public Safety Building Improvements 2 
Airport projects 9 

Water and Sewer improvement projects                                                       10 
  Total     $28 

 
For more detailed information on capital asset activity, refer to the notes to financial statements (refer to 
pages 75 and 77). 
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Debt 

At the end of the fiscal year, the City had $238M in bonds outstanding-as shown in the following table: 
Outstanding Debt at Year-end 

(in Millions) 
Total 

Governmenta l Business-type Primary 
Activities Activities Govemment 

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

GeneraVceltificate of ob ligation 

bonds/note (backed by the City) $ 12 $ 31 $ $ $ 12 $ 31 
Revenue bonds backed by 

Specific tax and fee revenues 56 42 170 139 226 181 

Totals $ 68 $ 73 $ 170 $ 139 $ 238 $ 212 

For more detailed information on long term debt activity, refer to the notes to financial statements (refer to 
page 92). 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

During the budget process for fiscal year 2015-16 the elected and appointed officials considered many 
factors including the forces driving the economy-among which were slowing of job growth, lack of 
growth in new housing, bank deposits, retail sales growth, the unemployment rate, and inflation. As a result 
of the deliberations, within the General Fund, revenues budgeted to increase from last year's budget by 
$3.8M or more than 3.54%. Expenditures were budgeted with a $3.5M increase or 2.0% over this year 's 
budget. 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial repOlt is designed to infOllli the citizens, taxpayers and customers of the City of McAllen as 
well as its investors and creditors about the City's finances and to provide accountability for the public 
support that it receives. If you have any questions about the report or need additional financial information, 
CQ tact he Finance Director's Office at the City of McAllen, 1300 Houston, McAllen, Texas 7850!. 

Roel Rodriguez 
City Manager 

, 

~o~ 
Finance Director 
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Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total

 

ASSETS

Cash 2,420,926$                 2,643,193$            5,064,119$                     

Certificate of deposits 34,950,150 435,000 35,385,150

Investments 110,603,142 30,071,312 140,674,454

Receivables, net 21,376,601 7,509,000 28,885,601

Internal balances (2,087,650) 2,087,650 -

Inventories - 409,509 409,509

Prepaid expense 41,595 37,941 79,536

Notes receivable - 168,702 168,702

Restricted assets - 118,022,054 118,022,054

Capital assets not being depreciated:

 Land 55,958,562 21,102,311 77,060,873

 Construction in progress 50,044,063 41,890,742 91,934,805

  Water rights (perpetual) - 4,923,100 4,923,100

  Goodwill - 609,713 609,713

Capital assets being depreciated:

  Buildings and systems 84,278,927 321,796,290 406,075,217

  Equipment 84,475,951 60,493,019 144,968,970

  Improvements 49,653,263 210,618,236 260,271,499

  Infrastructure 203,512,586 - 203,512,586

  Water rights - 3,200,000 3,200,000

    Accumulated depreciation (231,464,793) (251,116,399) (482,581,192)

Other long term assets 2,254,350 - 2,254,350

Total Assets 466,017,673 574,901,373 1,040,919,046

Deferred outflows of resources:

Deferred charges on refunding - 539,097 539,097

Deferred charges - pensions 8,513,968 1,515,164 10,029,132

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 474,531,641$             576,955,634$        1,051,487,275$              

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 14,476,478 14,290,140 28,766,618

Unearned revenues 608,224 1,548,083 2,156,307

Other 3,670,583 1,782,636 5,453,219

Non-current liabilities:

 Due within one year 11,042,263 9,111,631 20,153,894

 Due in more than one year 71,474,984 170,614,579 242,089,563

Net OPEB obligation 1,142,521 - 1,142,521

Net pension liability - Firemen's Pension 26,152,623 - 26,152,623

Net pension liability - TMRS 1,198,224 500,177 1,698,401

Total liabilities 129,765,900 197,847,246 327,613,146

Deferred inflows of resources

Deferred charges on refunding 369,152 631,922 1,001,074

Deferred charges - pensions 3,224,576 - 3,224,576

Total Liabilities And Deferred Inflows of Resources 133,359,628 198,479,168 331,838,796

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 271,338,778 245,028,871 516,367,649

Restricted for:

Economic Development 14,510,490 - 14,510,490

 Capital projects - 41,463,534 41,463,534

 Federal and state grant awards 6,255,265 - 6,255,265

 Hotel Tourism 274,254 - 274,254

 Parks 1,209,462 - 1,209,462

 Debt service 637,201 6,248,754 6,885,955

 Distribution of net surplus revenues - 5,674,899 5,674,899

 Other purposes 1,120,462 - 1,120,462

Unrestricted 45,826,101 80,060,408 125,886,509

Total net position 341,172,013 378,476,466 719,648,479

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position 474,531,641$             576,955,634$        1,051,487,275$              

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

 September 30, 2015
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Expenses
Charges for 

Services
Operating Grants 
and Contributions

Functions/Programs

   Governmental activities:

     General government 26,748,778$            2,088,536$              471,679$                 

     Public safety 57,338,636 7,394,577 299,903

     Highways and streets 23,018,428 1,108,870 4,532

     Health and welfare 7,676,848 414,699 1,012,255

     Culture and recreation 13,810,026 1,202,362 172,821

     Interest on long-term debt 2,159,876 - -

     Total governmental activities 130,752,592 12,209,044 1,961,190

   Business-type activities:

     Water services 17,161,204 15,659,444 -

     Sewer services 15,063,966 15,378,193 -

     Sanitation services 16,352,417 17,398,629 945

     Golf course services 1,365,580 1,264,069 -

     Civic center services 417,072 383,717 -

     Convention center services 5,660,315 2,071,647 -

     Airport services 7,922,418 6,974,726 -

     Transit services 1,432,186 42,838 424,171

     Bus services 3,621,901 1,064,209 904,096

     Bridge services--anzalduas 4,552,866 3,219,969 -

     Bridge services 6,877,304 13,600,185 -

       Total business-type activities 80,427,229 77,057,626 1,329,212

Total primary government 211,179,821 89,266,670 3,290,402

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

 

Program Revenues

   Royalties

   Miscellaneous

Transfers

          Total general revenues, special items, and transfers

            Change in net position

 Net position - at beginning of year, restated

General revenues:

  Gain on sale of capital assets

   Property taxes

   Hotel occupancy tax

   Sales taxes

   Franchise taxes

   Unrestricted investment earnings
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Capital Grants and 
Contributions

Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total

-$                            (24,188,563)$        -$                          (24,188,563)$        

333,808 (49,310,348) - (49,310,348)

2,432,464 (19,472,562) - (19,472,562)

- (6,249,894) - (6,249,894)

640,017 (11,794,826) - (11,794,826)

- (2,159,876) - (2,159,876)

3,406,289 (113,176,069) - (113,176,069)

47,806 - (1,453,954) (1,453,954)

881,504 - 1,195,731 1,195,731

- - 1,047,157 1,047,157

- - (101,511) (101,511)

- - (33,355) (33,355)

- - (3,588,668) (3,588,668)

8,977,886 - 8,030,194 8,030,194

3,057,983 - 2,092,806 2,092,806

77,514 - (1,576,082) (1,576,082)

- - (1,332,897) (1,332,897)

- - 6,722,881 6,722,881

13,042,693 - 11,002,302 11,002,302

16,448,982 (113,176,069) 11,002,302 (102,173,767)

39,050,045 - 39,050,045

5,479,719 - 5,479,719

63,758,787 - 63,758,787

6,613,745 - 6,613,745

1,077,441 649,882 1,727,323

828,482 - 828,482

4,332,402 1,220,285 5,552,687

- 1,123,687 1,123,687

3,086,193 (3,086,193) -

124,226,814 (92,339) 124,134,475

11,050,745 10,909,963 21,960,708

330,121,268 367,566,503 697,687,771

341,172,013$       378,476,466$       719,648,479$       

Net (Expenses) Revenues and

Changes in Net Position

Primary Government
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General

Development 

Corp.

ASSETS

 Cash 1,207,847$           70,576$                

 Certificates of deposit - -

 Investments 50,390,584 14,915,211

 Receivables, net:

  Taxes 11,724,436 2,524,109

  Accounts 1,609,038 16

  Accrued interest 26,291 11,310

  Other 570,141 -

 Due from other funds 195,862 -

 Due from other governments 127,207 200,856

 Prepaids 41,595 -

 Board advances 2,254,349 -

 Total assets 68,147,350$         17,722,078$         

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,

AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

 Accounts payable 2,648,685$           1,180,132$           

 Accrued liabilities 3,034,105 369,206

 Due to other funds - 319,420

 Unearned revenues 608,224 -

 Other 905,565 -

 Total liabilities 7,196,579 1,868,758

Deferred inflows of resources 11,828,243 1,338,332

  Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 19,024,822 3,207,090

Fund balances:

 Nonspendable 2,295,944 -

 Restricted 457,022 14,514,988

 Committed - -

 Assigned - -

 Unassigned 46,369,562 -

 Total fund balances 49,122,528 14,514,988

  Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund balances 68,147,350$         17,722,078$         

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

 September 30, 2015
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Capital 

Improvement

Other 

Governmental 

Funds

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

116,733$              717,427$              2,112,583$           

300,000 34,590,150 34,890,150

3,053,167 27,359,763 95,718,725

-

- 117,756 14,366,301

- 383,126 1,992,180

3,164 18,878 59,643

4,244 600 574,985

- - 195,862

774,921 499,277 1,602,261

- - 41,595

- - 2,254,349

4,252,229$           63,686,977$         153,808,634$       

255,669$              1,847,225$           5,931,711$           

156,473 901,216 4,461,000

- 413,529 732,949

- - 608,224

- 2,765,017 3,670,582

412,142 5,926,987 15,404,466

- 117,757 13,284,332

412,142 6,044,744 28,688,798  

- - 2,295,944

- 56,517,726 71,489,736

- 513,561 513,561

3,840,087 610,946 4,451,033

- - 46,369,562

3,840,087 57,642,233 125,119,836

4,252,229$           63,686,977$         153,808,634$       
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Total governmental fund balances (refer to page 23)  125,119,836$        

284,384,426          

weed and lot cleaning-$693,789; others-$1,213,262; and Mission repayment on Series B Bridge bonds, 
$2,254,349. 13,284,332            

24,793,059            

(106,409,640)         

Net position of governmental activities  341,172,013          

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and therefore are deferred in the 
funds.  The amount consists of the following:  property taxes-$3,604,336; sales taxes-$5,518,596;

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to individual funds.  The 
assets and liabilities of certain internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of 
net position.

Some liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not 
reported in the funds, including unpaid compensated absences, ($10,391,400), sales tax revenue bonds payable, 
($75,000), accrued interest, ($336,464), certificates of obligation, ($11,645,000), general obligations 
($56,815,000), premium, ($3,573,648), deferred inflows of resources, ($3,593,728), Firemen's net pension 
liability, ($26,152,623), OPEB obligation, ($1,142,521), deferred outflows of resources, $8,513,968, and 
TMRS net pension liability, ($1,198,224).

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of the Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2015

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the 
funds.
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General
Development 

Corp

REVENUES
Taxes 90,125,099$          15,734,994$          
Licenses and permits 1,597,010 -
Intergovernmental 2,000 172,106
Charges for services 4,663,555 -
Fines and forfeitures 1,505,643 -
Investment earnings 394,552 107,553
Net increase in the fair value of investments 80,064 19,629
Other 2,137,921 564,285

Total revenues 100,505,844 16,598,567

EXPENDITURES
Current:
 General government 18,878,258 5,554,319
 Public safety 52,677,013 -
 Highways and streets 9,789,103 5,925,312
 Health and welfare 2,131,645 4,412,204
 Culture and recreation 16,912,664 2,066,419
 Debt service:
  Principal - 25,000
  Interest and fiscal charges - 5,400

 Total expenditures 100,388,683 17,988,654

 Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 117,161 (1,390,087)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
  Transfers in 10,197,181 5,900,000
  Transfers out (5,021,595) (5,189,299)

  Issuance of debt - -

  Bond premium - -

  Net other financing sources 5,175,586 710,701

  Net change in fund balances 5,292,747 (679,386)

Fund balances at beginning of year 43,829,781 15,194,374

Fund balances at end of year 49,122,528$         14,514,988$         

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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Capital 
Improvement

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

-$                            8,902,922$            114,763,015$        
- 16,387 1,613,397

470,963 2,857,431 3,502,500
- 1,104,240 5,767,795
- 3,909,494 5,415,137

26,836 240,006 768,947

5,948 1,805 107,446
1,192,461 454,058 4,348,725

  
1,696,208 17,486,343 136,286,962

1,188,574 2,034,225 27,655,376
1,693,601 2,788,966 57,159,580
1,117,540 2,118,095 18,950,050

- 1,122,351 7,666,200
1,104,117 12,822,719 32,905,919

- 19,828,534 19,853,534
- 3,797,974 3,803,374

5,103,832 44,512,864 167,994,033

(3,407,624) (27,026,521) (31,707,071)

2,863,491 7,984,426 26,945,098
(352,716) (5,360,286) (15,923,896)

- 15,035,000 15,035,000

- 1,281,031 1,281,031

2,510,775 18,940,171 27,337,233

(896,849) (8,086,350) (4,369,838)

4,736,936 65,728,583 129,489,674

3,840,087$            57,642,233$         125,119,836$        
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Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances--total governmental funds (refer to page 27) (4,369,838)$            

17,810,314             

951,444                  

3,695,000               

2,466,713               

(9,502,886)              

Change in net position of governmental activities 11,050,747$           

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

For the year ended September 30, 2015

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement of activities the cost of 
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.  This is the 
amount by which capital outlays $31,868,245 exceeded depreciation, net of  depreciation ($14,057,931) in the 
current period.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as 
revenues in the funds.

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term 
liabilities in the statement of net position.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and 
therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds of which ($120,417) is compensated 
absences, $288,745 accrued interest expense, $1,039,759 bond premium amortization expense,  ($1,668,276) 
Firemen's Fund net pension liability, and  $2,926,902, pension expense.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to individual funds.  The 
net revenue (expense) of certain internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.
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 Original 

Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positive 

(Negative)

REVENUES

 Taxes:

 Property 34,847,424$      34,847,424$      35,627,720$      780,296$           

 Sales:     

  City sales 47,697,314 47,697,314 47,204,977 (492,337)

  Mixed drink 785,000 785,000 818,816 33,816

 Franchise 6,620,500 6,620,500 6,473,586 (146,914)

  Total taxes 89,950,238 89,950,238 90,125,099 174,861

Licenses and permits:

 Business licenses and permits 55,000 55,000 76,582 21,582

 Occupational 254,100 254,100 260,738 6,638

 Non-business licenses and permits 1,013,500 1,013,500 1,259,690 246,190

  Total licenses and permits 1,322,600 1,322,600 1,597,010 274,410

Intergovernmental revenues:

 State shared revenues - - 2,000 2,000

  Total intergovernmental revenues - - 2,000 2,000

Charges for services:

 General government 2,199,500 2,199,500 2,103,350 (96,150)

 Public safety 693,000 693,000 694,749 1,749

 Highways and streets 3,000 3,000 4,630 1,630

 Health 607,950 607,950 713,865 105,915

 Culture and recreation 1,140,710 1,140,710 1,146,961 6,251

  Total charges for services 4,644,160 4,644,160 4,663,555 19,395

Fines and forfeitures:

 Corporations court 1,550,000 1,611,497 1,450,244 (161,253)

 Other fines 65,000 65,000 55,399 (9,601)

  Total fines and forfeitures 1,615,000 1,676,497 1,505,643 (170,854)

Investment earnings 375,000 375,000 394,552 19,552

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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 Original 

Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positive 

(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

Net increase  in fair value of investments -$                       -$                       80,064$             80,064$             

Other:

 Royalties 1,000,000 1,000,000 828,482 (171,518)

 Rents and concessions 10,000 10,000 21,211 11,211

 Reimbursements - - 610,752 610,752

 Other 18,100 18,100 677,476 659,376

  Total other revenues 1,028,100 1,028,100 2,137,921 1,109,821

  Total revenues 98,935,098 98,996,595 100,505,844 1,509,249

EXPENDITURES

 General government:

  City commission 191,659 191,659 299,115 (107,456)

  Special service 811,800 811,800 759,407 52,393

  City manager 1,408,253 1,408,253 1,280,418 127,835

  City secretary 486,503 486,503 526,711 (40,208)

  Vital statistics 159,074 159,074 157,293 1,781

  Passport facility 94,604 94,604 84,842 9,762

  Audit office 251,652 251,652 119,732 131,920

  Municipal court 1,377,321 1,438,818 1,287,893 150,925

  Finance 1,303,194 1,303,194 1,126,448 176,746

  Budget & management 357,520 357,520 331,635 25,885

  Tax office 944,012 944,012 1,029,606 (85,594)

  Purchasing and contracting 577,276 577,276 512,185 65,091

  Legal 1,334,970 1,334,970 1,369,372 (34,402)

  Grant administration 403,584 403,584 407,763 (4,179)

  Right of way 188,898 188,898 167,326 21,572

  Human resources 805,311 805,311 745,762 59,549

  Risk management 651,761 651,761 651,761 -

  Planning 1,210,823 1,210,823 904,620 306,203

  Information technology 2,713,331 2,713,331 2,537,049 176,282

  Public information office 728,108 728,108 722,771 5,337

  311 Call center 204,401 204,401 186,380 18,021

  City hall 607,344 607,344 642,019 (34,675)

  Development Center 110,434 110,434 104,947 5,487

  Building maintenance 801,076 801,076 793,431 7,645

  Non-departmental activities 2,150,435 2,150,435 2,129,772 20,663

  Contingency (1,275,000) (1,275,000) - (1,275,000)

  Total general government 18,598,344 18,659,841 18,878,258 (218,417)
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 Original 

Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positive 

(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

 Public safety:

  Police 31,703,319$      31,703,319$      31,105,740$      597,579$           

  Animal control 384,443 420,662 337,801 82,861

  Communication technology 337,696 337,696 295,366 42,330

  Fire 16,803,453 16,803,453 17,579,457 (776,004)

  Traffic operations 2,473,724 2,473,724 2,352,207 121,517

  Building code compliance 1,009,152 1,009,152 1,006,442 2,710

  Total public safety 52,711,787 52,748,006 52,677,013 70,993

Highways and streets:

 Engineering services 1,852,359 1,852,359 1,690,862 161,497

 Street cleaning 419,572 452,291 410,050 42,241

 Street maintenance 6,342,243 6,492,778 3,796,193 2,696,585

 Street lighting 1,977,001 1,977,001 2,419,099 (442,098)

 Sidewalk construction 342,637 348,392 240,240 108,152

 Drainage 1,405,365 1,493,444 1,232,659 260,785

  Total highways and streets 12,339,177 12,616,265 9,789,103 2,827,162

Health and welfare:

 Health code compliance 1,180,989 1,180,989 1,243,361 (62,372)

 Graffiti cleaning 154,613 154,613 154,076 537

 Other agencies 367,662 367,662 734,208 (366,546)

  Total health and welfare 1,703,264 1,703,264 2,131,645 (428,381)

Culture and recreation:

 Parks and recreation administration 572,119 572,119 511,374 60,745

 Parks 6,875,800 6,875,800 6,362,746 513,054

 Recreation 1,574,995 1,574,995 1,377,095 197,900

 Pools 905,701 905,701 870,287 35,414

 Las palmas community center 408,245 408,245 396,562 11,683

 Recreation center-Lark 534,544 534,544 508,693 25,851

 Recreation center-Palmview 532,606 532,606 469,920 62,686
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 Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

 Quinta mazatlan 536,877$           536,877$           537,021$           (144)$                 

 Library 3,519,049 3,519,049 3,191,148 327,901

 Library branch-Lark 470,172 470,172 452,117 18,055

 Library branch-Palmview 496,579 496,579 460,042 36,537

 Other agencies 983,259 983,259 983,259 -

 Museums 792,400 792,400 792,400 -

  Total culture and recreation 18,202,346 18,202,346 16,912,664 1,289,682

  Total expenditures 103,554,918 103,929,722 100,388,683 3,541,039

  Excess of revenues over expenditures (4,619,820) (4,933,127) 117,161 5,050,288

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in 9,443,115 9,443,115 10,197,181 754,066

  Transfers out (4,507,300) (4,697,300) (5,021,595) (324,295)

  Net other financing sources 4,935,815 4,745,815 5,175,586 429,771

Net change in fund balances 315,995 (187,312) 5,292,747 5,480,059

Fund balances at begining of year 43,829,781 43,829,781 43,829,781 -

Fund balances at end of year 44,145,776$      43,642,469$      49,122,528$      5,480,059$        

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 

REVENUES

 Sales tax 15,823,750$      15,823,750$      15,734,994$      (88,756)$            

 Intergovernmental revenues 5,269,465 6,709,465 172,106 (6,537,359)

 Investment earnings 100,000 100,000 107,553 7,553

 Net increase (decrease) in the

   fair value of investments - - 19,629 19,629

 Other 1,667,729 2,690,229 535,536 (2,154,693)

  Total revenues 22,860,944 25,323,444 16,569,818 (8,753,626)

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  General government 9,736,297 10,182,797 5,554,319 4,628,478

  Public safety 50,000 34,000 - 34,000

  Highways and streets 8,792,280 9,447,110 5,925,312 3,521,798

  Health and welfare 2,412,801 4,412,801 4,412,204 597

  Culture and recreation 5,237,836 7,452,594 2,066,419 5,386,175

Debt service:

  Principal 25,000 25,000 25,000 -

  Interest and fiscal charges 4,594 4,594 5,400 (806)

  Total expenditures 26,258,808 31,558,896 17,988,654 13,570,242

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

  expenditures (3,397,864) (6,235,452) (1,418,836) 4,816,616

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in 5,900,000 5,900,000 5,900,000 -

  Transfers out (5,699,224) (5,786,538) (5,189,299) 597,239

  Total other financing sources 200,776 113,462 710,701 597,239

  Net changes in fund balances (3,197,088) (6,121,990) (708,135) 5,413,855

Fund balances--beginning 15,194,374 15,194,374 15,194,374 -

Fund balances--ending 11,997,286$      9,072,384$        14,486,239$      5,413,855$        

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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Water Sewer Sanitation
Convention 

Center

McAllen 
International 

Airport

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash 184,928$           2$                      229,182$           81,069$             419,164$           
Certificate of deposit - 45,000 300,000 - 30,000
Investments 2,829,299 1,729,646 8,917,859 2,684,683 6,066,395
Receivables, net:
 Accounts 1,798,210 1,696,809 1,835,171 22,051 221,127
 Accrued interest 2,229 1,028 5,802 806 3,871
 Other - 14,537 - - -
Due from other funds - - - 175,127 -
Due from other governments - - 247 - 750,873
Inventories, at cost 42,589 - - - -
Interfund loan - - - - -
Prepaid expense - - - 37,941 -
Restricted assets:
  Cash and cash equivalents 499,361 1,109,988 15,074 5,155 127,985

  Total current assets 5,356,616 4,597,010 11,303,335 3,006,832 7,619,415

Noncurrent assets:

 Restricted assets:

   Investments 12,397,016 71,227,623 8,635,793 1,468,833 6,022,883

   Accrued interest - - 7,659 - -

   Interfund loan receivable 3,684,885 - - - -

   Other 22,232 - - - 922,220

  Total noncurrent restricted assets 16,104,133 71,227,623 8,643,452 1,468,833 6,945,103

Capital assets:

 Land 3,039,265 2,257,236 1,101,490 5,711,485 3,251,781

 Buildings and systems 62,555,673 105,992,519 2,379,267 56,281,224 32,480,501

 Improvements other than buildings 60,654,471 37,569,994 532,748 6,733,381 81,933,827

 Machinery and equipment 7,981,135 7,544,780 24,653,026 2,955,170 2,684,146

 Construction in progress 3,264,441 27,969,560 9,152 - 9,411,561

 Goodwill - - - - -

 Water rights 8,123,100 - - - -

   Less accumulated depreciation
    and amortization (63,489,835) (67,018,977) (18,732,777) (13,720,747) (52,449,984)

 Total capital assets (net of
    accumulated depreciation and amortization) 82,128,250 114,315,112 9,942,906 57,960,513 77,311,832

Other noncurrent assets
 Loans receivable 84,351 84,351 - - -

 Board advances - - - - -

  Total other noncurrent assets 84,351 84,351 - - -

  Total noncurrent assets 98,316,734 185,627,086 18,586,358 59,429,346 84,256,935

  Total assets 103,673,350$   190,224,096$   29,889,693$     62,436,178$     91,876,350$     

Deferred outflows of resources: 

 Deferred charges on refundings 335,434 203,663 - - -

 Deferred charges - pensions 371,974 233,577 378,148 108,557 95,695

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 104,380,758$   190,661,336$   30,267,841$     62,544,735$     91,972,045$     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business Type Activities-Enterprise Funds

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PROPRIETARY  FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

 September 30, 2015
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Governmental

Activities
McAllen 

International 
Toll Bridge

Anzalduas 
International 

Crossing

Other 
Proprietary 

Funds Total
Internal 

Service Funds

297,728$           114,774$           460,306$           1,787,153$              1,164,383$        
- - 60,000 435,000 60,000

1,826,129 1,122,154 4,895,147 30,071,312 14,884,417

8,188 - 3,482 5,585,038 371,350
- - 1,938 15,674 11,184
- - - 14,537 430,765
- - 363,202 538,329 -

150,669 - 769,526 1,671,315 5,362
- - - 42,589 366,920
- - - - 2,185,006
- - - 37,941 -

154,123 79,879 151,264 2,142,829 -

2,436,837 1,316,807 6,704,865 42,341,717 19,479,387

9,495,750 1,859,807 134,525 111,242,230 -

- - - 7,659 -

- - - 3,684,885 -

- - - 944,452 -

9,495,750 1,859,807 134,525 115,879,226 -

573,798 2,936,598 2,230,658 21,102,311 4,928,005

11,976,770 42,823,095 7,307,240 321,796,289 -

3,254,474 8,017,194 11,789,324 210,485,413 132,823

2,230,250 970,334 10,680,520 59,699,361 25,581,799

1,147,685 88,343 - 41,890,742 -

609,713 - - 609,713 -

- - - 8,123,100 -

(10,566,175) (8,778,399) (15,823,928) (250,580,822) (18,177,590)

9,226,515 46,057,165 16,183,814 413,126,107 12,465,037

- - - 168,702 -

16,397,628 - - 16,397,628 -

16,397,628 - - 16,566,330 -

35,119,893 47,916,972 16,318,339 545,571,663 12,465,037

37,556,730$     49,233,779$     23,023,204$     587,913,380$          31,944,424$     

- - - 539,097 -

74,086 27,782 170,809 1,460,628 54,536

37,630,816$     49,261,561$     23,194,013$     589,913,105$          31,998,960$     

Continued

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds
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Water Sewer Sanitation
Convention 

Center

McAllen 
International 

Airport

Business Type Activities-Enterprise Funds

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PROPRIETARY  FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

 September 30, 2015

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

 Accounts payable 903,473$           2,306,504$        765,571$           138,072$           700,587$           

 Accrued expenses 426,742 1,180,300 269,817 75,886 1,286,779

 Due to other funds - - - - -

 Due to other government agencies - - - - -

 Customer deposits payable 2,499,647 - - 48,265 -

 Compensated absences 408,898 251,395 337,193 74,964 96,093

 Current portion of revenue bonds 1,649,458 4,486,542 - - 395,000

 Interfund loan - - - - -

 Other 16,684 100,000 300 255,984 30,934

  Total current liabilities 5,904,902 8,324,741 1,372,881 593,171 2,509,393

Other noncurrent liabilities:

 Revenue bonds, net of current portion 17,379,386 107,903,778 - - 7,970,000

 Compensated absences 59,938 93,151 101,299 49,261 22,093

 Interfund notes payable - - - - 3,684,885

 Unearned revenues 232,168 495,000 468,816 133,149 -

 Board advances - - - - -

Net pension liability 122,794 77,107 124,832 35,836 31,590

  Total other noncurrent liabilities 17,794,286 108,569,036 694,947 218,246 11,708,568

   Total liabilities 23,699,188 116,893,777 2,067,828 811,417 14,217,961

Deferred inflows of resources - refunding 353,877 278,045 - - -

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 24,053,065$     117,171,822$   2,067,828$        811,417$           14,217,961$     

NET POSITION

Net investments in capital assets 63,204,495 10,630,372 9,942,906 57,960,513 65,043,172

Restricted for:

 Capital projects 12,746,633 18,391,903 - 1,473,988 5,435,190

 Debt service 547,126 3,930,183 - - 292,001

 Distribution of net surplus revenues - - - - -

Unrestricted 3,829,439 40,537,056 18,257,107 2,298,817 6,983,721

  Total net position 80,327,693 73,489,514 28,200,013 61,733,318 77,754,084

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position 104,380,758$   190,661,336$   30,267,841$     62,544,735$     91,972,045$     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statements.

38



Governmental

Activities
McAllen 

International 
Toll Bridge

Anzalduas 
International 

Crossing

Other 
Proprietary 

Funds Total
Internal 

Service Funds

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

913,440$           117,288$           915,065$           6,760,000$              1,598,378$        

- 150,394 283,278 3,673,196 2,507,893

1,242 - - 1,242 -

950,066 - - 950,066 -

- - - 2,547,912 -

84,435 - 22,653 1,275,631 -

- 1,305,000 - 7,836,000 -

1,328,623 - - 1,328,623 -

50,072 - 39 454,013 -

3,327,878 1,572,682 1,221,035 24,826,683 4,106,271

- 32,305,987 - 165,559,151 -

14,042 16,646 129,038 485,468 45,889

856,384 - - 4,541,269 -

116,855 - 102,095 1,548,083 -

- 16,397,628 - 16,397,628 -

24,457 9,171 56,387 482,174 18,003

1,011,738 48,729,432 287,520 189,013,773 63,892

4,339,616 50,302,114 1,508,555 213,840,456 4,170,163

- - - 631,922 -

4,339,616$        50,302,114$     1,508,555$        214,472,378$          4,170,163$        

9,226,515 12,446,180 16,183,814 244,637,967 12,465,037

2,637,157 740,036 38,627 41,463,534 -

503,104 976,340 - 6,248,754 -

5,674,899 - - 5,674,899 -

15,249,525 (15,203,109) 5,463,017 77,415,573 15,363,760

33,291,200 (1,040,553) 21,685,458 375,440,727 27,828,797

37,630,816$     49,261,561$     23,194,013$     589,913,105$          31,998,960$     

Concluded
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Fund equity - total proprietary funds (page 39) 375,440,727$         

are included with business-type activities. 3,035,739               

Net position of business-type activities 378,476,466$         

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of net 
position are different because certain internal service fund assets and liabilities 

CITY OF MCALLEN, TEXAS
Reconciliation of the Statement of Net Position of the Proprietary Funds

to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2015
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Water Sewer Sanitation
Convention 

Center

Operating revenues

 Charges for services 15,244,137$      14,984,408$      17,320,489$      990,710$           

 Rentals - - - 1,033,167

 Other 875,307 393,786 78,140 147,770

Total operating revenues 16,119,444 15,378,194 17,398,629 2,171,647

Operating expenses

 Salaries, wages and employee benefits 5,733,627 3,552,473 5,883,517 1,653,793

 Supplies 3,046,524 679,070 326,779 126,870

 Contractual and other services 2,567,410 3,031,302 4,850,925 1,962,611

 Repairs and maintenance 626,845 425,117 3,170,042 373,782

 Depreciation and amortization 4,262,777 5,658,492 2,014,457 1,582,447

 Self insurance claims - - -

 Other - - - -

  Total operating expenses 16,237,183 13,346,454 16,245,720 5,699,503

   Operating income (loss) (117,739) 2,031,740 1,152,909 (3,527,856)

Non operating revenues (expenses)

 Intergovernmental - - 945 -

 Investment earnings 103,997 187,886 132,731 28,743

 Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 18,760 24,763 21,824 4,580

 Interest expense (1,017,374) (1,422,902) - -

 Interest on board advances - - - -

 Bond related charges--issuance cost (127,641) (144,275) - -

 Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 23,215 - (2,602) 1,102,569

 Other 598,726 - - -

  Net non-operating revenues (expenses) (400,317) (1,354,528) 152,898 1,135,892

  Income (loss) before contributions and transfers (518,056) 677,212 1,305,807 (2,391,964)

Capital contributions 47,806 881,504 - -

Transfers in - - - 2,435,582

Transfers out - - - (1,300,504)

  Change in net position (470,250) 1,558,716 1,305,807 (1,256,886)

Total net position at beginning of year, restated 80,797,943 71,930,798 26,894,206 62,990,204

Total net position--ending 80,327,693$      73,489,514$      28,200,013$      61,733,318$      

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business Type Activities-Enterprise Funds

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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Governmental

Activities
McAllen 

International 
Airport

McAllen 
International 
Toll Bridge

Anzalduas 
International 

Crossing

Other 
Proprietary 

Funds Total
Internal 

Service Funds

2,807,756$        11,221,926$      3,182,441$        1,783,223$        67,535,090$        6,536,976$        

4,129,117 2,310,672 15,098 299,203 7,787,257 -

37,853 67,587 22,430 672,407 2,295,280 13,859,509

6,974,726 13,600,185 3,219,969 2,754,833 77,617,627 20,396,485

1,486,507 1,136,903 421,033 2,667,344 22,535,197 1,421,569

79,800 89,069 22,177 163,503 4,533,792 32,019

1,884,789 1,029,194 289,799 1,447,423 17,063,453 6,566,715

338,413 212,001 67,296 865,966 6,079,462 695,673

3,604,916 604,697 1,530,387 1,599,792 20,857,965 2,038,802

- - - - - 12,666,051

- - - - - 306,501

7,394,425 3,071,864 2,330,692 6,744,028 71,069,869 23,727,330

(419,699) 10,528,321 889,277 (3,989,195) 6,547,758 (3,330,845)

- - - 1,328,267 1,329,212 19,777

81,948 2,944 1,494 22,384 562,127 180,295

13,363 - - 4,465 87,755 20,753

(476,164) (38,270) (1,600,510) - (4,555,220) -

- 576,160 (576,160) - - -

- - - - (271,916) -

- - - 505 1,123,687 59,605

14,965 (3,725,318) - - (3,111,627) 724,222

(365,888) (3,184,484) (2,175,176) 1,355,621 (4,835,982) 1,004,652

(785,587) 7,343,837 (1,285,899) (2,633,574) 1,711,776 (2,326,193)

8,977,886 - - 3,135,497 13,042,693 -

- 947,888 2,443,610 5,827,080 3,670,000

(1,103,965) (6,096,804) - (412,000) (8,913,273) (11,605,009)

7,088,334 1,247,033 (338,011) 2,533,533 11,668,276 (10,261,202)

70,665,750 32,044,167 (702,542) 19,151,925 363,772,451 38,089,999

77,754,084$      33,291,200$      (1,040,553)$       21,685,458$      375,440,727$      27,828,797$      

Business Type Activites-Enterprise Funds
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Change in net position - total proprietary funds (page 43) 11,668,276$             

service funds is reported  with business-type activities. (758,313)                   

Change in net position of business-type activities 10,909,963$             

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of activity are different 

because the net revenue (expense) of  certain internal 

CITY OF MCALLEN, TEXAS

Reconciliation of the Statement Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position of the Proprietary Funds

to the Government-Wide Statement of Activities

For The Year Ended September 30, 2015
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McAllen
Convention

Water Sewer Sanitation Center

Cash flows from operating activities:
  Receipts from customers 16,293,967$           15,358,847$           17,530,083$        2,209,051$            
  Payments to employees (6,016,031)              (3,748,997)             (6,077,336)          (1,713,920)            
  Payments to suppliers (6,503,556)              (4,963,720)             (8,426,703)          (2,665,432)            

  Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 3,774,380               6,646,130               3,026,044            (2,170,301)            

Cash flows from noncapital financing
  activities:
   Transfers from other funds -                              -                             -                          2,435,582              
   Transfers to other funds -                              -                             -                          (1,300,504)            
   Subsidy from federal grant -                              -                             945                      -                            
   Board advances -                              -                             -                          -                            
   Distribution of income to City of Hidalgo -                              -                             -                          -                            

    Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
     financing activities -                              -                             945                      1,135,078              

Cash flows from capital and related
  financing activities:
   Capital contributions -                              608,882                  -                          -                            
   Purchases of  capital assets (3,166,866)              (15,034,616)           (2,687,011)          (81,952)                 
   Proceeds from sale of capital assets 23,215                    -                             40,724                 1,300,504              
   Proceeds from loan for capital improvements -                              -                             -                          -                            
   Proceeds from bond issuance -                              39,475,763             -                          -                            
   Principal repayments-bonds and notes (1,577,100)              (3,600,900)             -                          -                            
   Interest paid (1,052,182)              (1,378,180)             -                          -                            

    Net cash provided (used) by capital and 
      related financing activities (5,772,933)              20,070,949             (2,646,287)          1,218,552              

Cash flows from investing activities:
   Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments  3,439,384               10,936,209             2,033,352            -                            
   Purchase of investments (1,490,791)              (37,959,338)           (2,691,386)          (210,397)               
   Receipt of interest 143,343                  240,810                  167,679               36,953                   

    Net cash provided (used) by 
     investing activities 2,091,936               (26,782,319)           (490,355)             (173,444)               

    Net increase (decrease) in cash 93,383                    (65,240)                  (109,653)             9,885                     

    Cash at beginning of year 590,906                  1,175,230               353,909                76,339                   

    Cash at end of year  684,289$                 1,109,990$              244,256$              86,224$                 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Business Type Activities
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Governmental
Activities

McAllen McAllen Anzalduas Other Internal
International International International Proprietary Service

Airport Toll Bridge Crossing Funds Total Funds

7,167,195$            13,387,808$             3,219,969$           2,760,228$               77,927,148$       18,700,830$              
(1,535,649)            (1,200,358)                (443,259)               (2,819,496)                (23,555,046)       (1,478,050)                
(2,544,089)            (1,299,378)                (367,448)               (2,495,403)                (29,265,729)       (20,931,876)              

3,087,457              10,888,072               2,409,262             (2,554,671)                25,106,373         (3,709,096)                

-                            -                                -                            1,771,474                 4,207,056           3,670,000                  
(1,103,965)            (5,148,107)                -                            (412,000)                   (7,964,576)         (9,570,000)                

-                            -                                -                            4,278,992                 4,279,937           19,777                       
-                            (947,888)                   947,888                -                                -                         -                                
-                            (3,700,777)                -                            -                                (3,700,777)         -                                

(1,103,965)            (9,796,772)                947,888                5,638,466                 (3,178,360)         (5,880,223)                

8,590,293              -                                -                            9,199,175           -                                
(9,251,699)            (941,371)                   (42,742)                 (2,814,808)                (34,021,065)       (3,543,798)                

-                            -                            1,364,443           4,512,815                  
-                            2,239,581                 -                            2,239,581           -                                
-                            -                                -                            39,475,763         -                                

(385,000)               (54,574)                     (1,250,000)            (6,867,574)         -                                
(466,653)               (38,270)                     (1,635,364)            (4,570,649)         -                                

(1,513,059)            1,205,366                 (2,928,106)            (2,814,808)                6,819,674           969,017                     

-                            16,362,716               3,779,373             12,022,673               48,573,707          10,915,051                
(789,326)               (18,742,553)              (4,118,524)            (12,151,615)              (78,153,930)       (2,712,386)                
101,977                 2,944                        1,494                    29,973                      725,173              226,398                     

(687,349)               (2,376,893)                (337,657)               (98,969)                     (28,855,050)       8,429,063                  

(216,916)               (80,227)                     91,387                  170,018                    (107,363)            (191,239)                   

 764,065                  532,078                     103,266                441,552                    4,037,345            1,355,622                  

 547,149$                451,851$                   194,653$              611,570$                   3,929,982$          1,164,383$                

Continued

Business Type Activities
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McAllen
Convention

Water Sewer Sanitation Center

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to 
  net cash provided by operating activities
Operating income (loss) (117,739)$              2,031,740$            1,152,909$          (3,527,856)$         
Adjustment to reconcile operating income
  (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating
  activities:
   Depreciation and amortization 4,262,777             5,658,492             2,014,457           1,582,447            

Deferred outflows - pension (371,974)               (233,577)              (378,148)            (108,557)             
   (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (107,893)               (19,343)                131,508              15,255                 
   (Increase) decrease in intergovernmental receivables -                            -                           (247)                   -                          
   (Increase) decrease in due from other funds -                            -                           -                         9,633                   
   (Increase) decrease in prepaid items 2,419                    -                           197                     12,514                 
   (Increase) decrease in inventories (2,343)                   -                           -                         -                          
   Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 320,146                1,068,761             (105,926)            (218,946)             
   Increase (decrease) in customer deposits payable 56,135                  -                           -                         (11,125)               
   Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable 8,093                    (321)                     74,358                17,149                 
   Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities (36,968)                 658,977                47,188                (1,171)                 
   Increase (decrease) in due to other funds (377,652)               -                         -                          
   Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 70,889                  44,514                  72,065                20,688                 
   Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities -                            (1,861,020)           -                         16,492                 
   Increase (decrease) in unearned revenues 68,490                  (702,093)              17,683                23,176                 

Total adjustments 3,892,119             4,614,390             1,873,135           1,357,555            

    Net cash provided by (used) by

      operating activities 3,774,380$             6,646,130$             3,026,044$          (2,170,301)$          

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
Contributions of capital assets 47,806                  92,234                  -                         -                          
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 18,760                  24,763                  21,824                4,580                   

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-(Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Business Type Activities
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Governmental
Activities

McAllen McAllen Anzalduas Other Internal
International International International Proprietary Service

Airport Toll Bridge Crossing Funds Total Funds

(419,699)$             10,528,321$             889,277$             (3,989,195)$             6,547,758$         (3,330,845)$             

3,604,916              604,697                    1,530,387            1,599,792               20,857,965       2,038,802                 
(95,695)                 (74,086)                     (27,782)                (170,809)                 (1,460,628)       (54,536)                    
192,467                 (1,802,602)                -                           2,994                      (1,587,614)       (1,732,360)               

-                            -                                -                           -                              (247)                  (5,362)                      
-                            -                                -                           2,408                      12,041              -                               
-                            -                                -                           -                              15,130              -                               
-                            -                                -                           -                              (2,343)              80,207                      

(419,104)               30,887                      11,824                 (189,256)                 498,386            (308,824)                  
-                            -                                -                           -                              45,010              -                               

27,091                   (6,483)                       299                      (15,149)                   105,037            (13,381)                    
179,944                 16,547                      6,207                   156,933                  1,027,657         (393,190)                  

-                            -                              (377,652)          -                               
18,237                   14,120                      5,293                   32,552                    278,358            10,393                      

(700)                      (13,554)                     (6,243)                  (1,865,025)       -                               
-                            1,590,225                 -                           15,059                    1,012,540         -                               

3,507,156              359,751                    1,519,985            1,434,524               18,558,615       (378,251)                  

3,087,457$            10,888,072$             2,409,262$           (2,554,671)$              25,106,373$       (3,709,096)$              

-                            -                                -                           -                              140,040            -                               
13,363                   -                                -                           4,465                      87,755              20,753                      

Concluded

Business Type Activities
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Pension Trust
Firemen's 
Relief and 
Retirement

Fund Agencies

 

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 321,048$          1,261,711$      

Receivables:

Interest 13,438              1,562               

Other -                       10,738             

Investments, at fair value:

TexPool -                       1,964,096        

Certificate of deposit -                       -                      

Domestic and international equities 25,035,975       -                      

Treasury and corporate bonds 8,531,353         1,502,547        

Alternate investments 8,399,150         -                      

Total investments 41,966,478       3,466,643        

Total assets 42,300,964       4,740,654        

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable -                       875,737           

Due  agency -                       1,470,568        

Escrow payables -                       2,394,349        

  Total liabilities - 4,740,654$      

NET POSITION

Net position restricted for pension 42,300,964$     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN , TEXAS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
 September 30, 2015
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Pension Trust

Firemen's Relief 
and Retirement

Fund

ADDITIONS

Contributions:

 Member 1,223,445$            

 Employer 1,477,483

  Total contributions 2,700,928

Investment earnings:

 Interest and dividends 924,652

 Gain on sale of investments 3,630,518

 Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investments (6,746,265)

 Total investment earnings (2,191,095)

  Less: investment expense 275,928

  Net investment earnings (2,467,023)

  Total additions 233,905

DEDUCTIONS

  Benefits 2,532,106

  Refund of contributions 52,969

  DROP payments 585,633

  Administrative expense 46,070

  Total deductions 3,216,778

    Changes in net position (2,982,873)

NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR PENSION

Net position--beginning 45,283,837

Net position--ending 42,300,964$          

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN , TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

September 30, 2015 
 
 

 I.    Summary of significant accounting policies 
 

(A) Reporting entity 
 

The City of McAllen, Texas (the City) is a municipal corporation, which was incorporated 
February 20, 1911 under Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution.  The City operates under 
the commission-manager form of government and provides a full range of municipal services as 
authorized by its charter.  The governing body consists of an elected mayor and a six-member 
commission.  Services provided include those typically provided by general-purpose local 
governments, namely public safety (principally police and fire,) highways and streets, health and 
welfare, culture and recreation (principally library, parks and recreation).  Other services provided 
include water and sewer utilities, sanitation, civic center, convention center, international airport, 
international toll bridge linking Hidalgo, Texas with downtown Reynosa, Tamaulipas, Mexico, 
international toll bridge linking south of the City of Mission with the west side of Reynosa, 
Tamaulipas, Mexico, golf course, bus transit system, and intermodal transit terminal.   

  
 The accompanying financial statements present the reporting entity, which consists of the 

primary government.  Financial reporting standards also require the City to include, if any, 
legally-separate entities or organizations for which the primary government is financially 
accountable and other organizations for which the primary government is not accountable, but 
for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such 
that exclusion could cause the City’s basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 
 
Financial accountability exists if a primary government appoints a voting majority of an 
organization’s governing Board and either is able to impose its will on that organization or there 
is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific 
financial burdens on, the primary government.  A primary government may also be financially 
accountable for governmental organizations with a separately elected governing Board, a 
governing Board appointed by another government, or a jointly appointed Board that is fiscally 
dependent on the primary government. 

 
Applying these tests to other entities and activities for possible inclusion in the reporting entity, 
the City has determined that the Development Corporation meets the financial accountability 
tests and, therefore is included as a blended component unit.  Its Board is appointed by the City 
Commission and serves as an advisory board to the City Commission. 
 
The City of McAllen issues separate publicly available audited financial statements of the 
McAllen International Toll Bridge and the Anzalduas International Crossing, enterprise funds of 
the City, which may be obtained by writing to City of McAllen Finance Department, 1300 
Houston, P.O. Box 220, McAllen, Texas  78505. 
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The Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund is included as a pension trust fund, and reported as a 
fiduciary fund in the accompanying financial statements. These financials are audited and issued 
separately. 

 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP) applicable to states 
and local governments.  US GAAP for local governments include those principles prescribed by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”), the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants in the publication entitled Audits of State and Local Governments.   
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued the following pronouncements, which 
are relevant to the City, and became effective this fiscal year and have been implemented: 
 
GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension Plans—an 
amendment of GASB Statement No.27 
 
The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by 
state and local governments for pensions.  It also improves information provided by state and 
local governmental employers about financial support for pensions that is provided by other 
entities.  This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing 
standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-
useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and inter-period equity, and 
creating additional transparency.  
 
GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the 
Measurement Date—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68 
 
The objective of this Statement is to address an issue regarding application of the transition 
provisions of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.  The issue 
relates to amounts associated with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government 
employer or nonemployer contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan after the 
measurement date of the government’s beginning net pension liability.  This Statement amends 
paragraph 137 of Statement 68 to require that, at transition, a government recognize a beginning 
deferred outflow of resources for its pension contributions, if any, made subsequent to the 
measurement date of the beginning net pension liability.  Statement 68, as amended, continues 
to require that beginning balances for other deferred outflows or resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions be reported at transition only if it is practical to determine all 
such amounts.  The provisions of this Statement are required to be applied simultaneously with 
the provisions of Statement 68. 
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The GASB has issued the following statements, which will become effective for the City.   
 
GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application 
 
This statement addresses accounting and financial reporting issues related to fair value 
measurements.  The definition of fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset 
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between marker participants at the 
measurement date.  This Statement provides guidance for determining a fair value measurement 
for financial reporting purposes.  This Statement also provides guidance for applying fair value 
to certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value measurements. The requirements 
of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2015.  
The City has not determined the impact of the implementation of this standard. 
 
GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets 
That Are Not Within The Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions 
to GASB Statements 67 and 68. 
 
The objective of this Statement is to improve the usefulness of information about pensions 
included in the general purpose external financial reports of state and local governments for 
making decisions and assessing accountability.  This Statement results from a comprehensive 
review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for all 
postemployment benefits with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting 
assessments of accountability and inter-period equity, and creating additional transparency.  
The requirements of this Statement for pension plans that are within the scope of Statement 67 
or for pensions that are within the scope of Statement 68 are effective for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15, 2015.  The City has not determined the impact of the implementation of this 
standard. 

 
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 
Other Than Pensions. 

 
This statement changes the focus of accounting of postemployment benefits other than pensions 
from whether they are responsibly funding the benefits over time to a point-in-time liability that 
is reflected on the employer’s financial statements for any actuarially unfunded portion of 
benefits earned to date.  This statement will become effective for the City in fiscal year 2018.  
The City has not determined the impact of the implementation of this standard. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

55



CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

September 30, 2015 
 
 

GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures. 
 
This statement requires governments that enter into tax abatement agreements to provide certain 
disclosures regarding those commitments.  This statement will become effective for the City in 
fiscal year 2017.  The City has not determined the impact of the implementation of this standard. 

 
The more significant accounting policies of the City are described on the following pages. 
 
 
(B) Government-wide and fund financial statements 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements consist of the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities, a statement of results of operations. These statements report information 
on all the activities of the reporting entity with the exception of fiduciary activity.  Generally, 
the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from these statements.  Governmental 
activities, normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately 
from business-type activities, which primarily rely on fees and charges. 
 
The statement of activities reflects the extent to which direct expenses of each function are offset 
by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are attributable to a specific function and 
are clearly identifiable.  Program revenues include charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a specific 
function as well as grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or 
capital requirements of a specific function.  Taxes and other items not appropriately included 
with program revenues are shown as general revenues. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
In addition to and apart from the government-wide financial statements, fund financial 
statements are presented for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.  In each 
of these financial statements, major funds are presented in separate columns. 
 
(C) Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation 

 
The government-wide financial statements are presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting; consistent with the presentation of the 
proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements, with the exception that agency funds 
do not have a measurement focus.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, without regard to the timing of the related cash flows.  
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and 
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similar items are recognized as revenue as soon all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when 
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current period.  The City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 30 days 
of the end of the current fiscal period, except for property taxes, which is 60 days required by 
GAAP.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, consistent with accrual 
accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as those related to compensated 
absences and claims and judgments are recognized only when payment is made. 
 
Revenues derived from federal or state grants are recognized when earned at the end of the 
current fiscal year and are reflected as due from other governments.  Because of their nature, the 
availability period has a longer duration of six months to a year. 
 
Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, and interest associated with the current fiscal period 
are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the 
current fiscal period. Other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only 
when cash is received by the government. 
 
The City reports the following major governmental fund types and related funds: 
 

The General Fund is the primary operating fund.  It accounts for all of the financial 
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. 
 
The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources, other than for debt service or major capital projects that are legally 
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes.  The only special revenue 
fund reported as a major fund is the Development Corp. Fund, a blended component unit. 
It is used to account for the additional ½¢ sales tax for economic development. 
 
The Debt Service Fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are 
restricted, committed or assigned for the payment of principal, interest and related costs on 
general long-term debt paid primarily from taxes levied by the City.  The fund balance of 
the Debt Service fund is restricted to signify the amounts that are restricted exclusively for 
debt service expenditures. 
 
The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are 
restricted, committed or assigned for the acquisition and/or construction of capital facilities 
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except those financed by proprietary fund types.  The Capital Improvement Fund is the only 
fund of this type that is reported as a major fund.  

 
The governing body has adopted the policy that the Development Corp. Fund and the Capital 
Improvement Fund are to be considered major funds, without regard to the major fund criteria, 
due to them being particularly important to the users of these financial statements. 

 
The City reports the following major proprietary fund types and related funds: 

 
The following enterprise funds are used to account for City operations for which a fee is 
charged to external users for goods or services.  These funds must be used for activities, 
whose debt is backed solely by fees and charges or there is a legal requirement to recover 
cost, including capital cost, or a policy decision has been made to recover cost, including 
capital cost.  Enterprise funds, which are reported as major funds include: 
 
The Water Fund, which accounts for the activities of the City’s water system. 
  
The Sewer Fund, which accounts for the activities of the City’s sewer system. 
 
The Sanitation Fund, which accounts for the activities of the City-owned residential and 
commercial garbage and brush collection as well as recycling systems. 
 
The Convention Center Fund, which accounts for the activities of the City’s convention 
center. 
 
The McAllen International Airport Fund, which accounts for the activities of the City-
owned international airport. 
 
The McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund, which accounts for the operations of the City-
owned international bridge connecting the City of Hidalgo, Texas with downtown Reynosa, 
Mexico. 

 
The Anzalduas International Crossing Fund, which accounts for the operations of the 
international bridge connecting south of the City of Mission, Texas with the west side of 
Reynosa, Mexico. 

 
The City also reports, although not as major funds, the internal service funds as proprietary 
funds.  These fund types were established to finance and account for goods and services provided 
to various departments of the City, and on a limited basis to other local agencies, on a cost-
reimbursement basis.  They account for fleet management, health insurance, retiree health 
insurance, and general insurance services provided to other operating funds of the City, as well 
as a general depreciation fund for rolling stock used within departments of the General Fund. In 
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the statement of net position, only fleet management is reported in the business-type column, 
because the predominant user is determined to be the Sanitation Fund, a proprietary fund. 
 

The City reports fiduciary fund types, in which the City accounts for assets received and held by 
the City in the capacity of trustee, agent or custodian. Expenditures are made only in accordance 
with the purpose for which the assets are received and cannot be used to support the City’s 
programs.  Within this category of fund types, the pension trust fund accounts for the activities 
of the Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund, this accumulates resources for pension benefit 
payments to qualified firefighters.  It also accounts for developers’ contributions for future 
infrastructure development in the Developers’ Fund, an agency fund.  Additionally, it accounts 
for Communications Group Fund, an agency fund, which was established for the purpose of 
accounting for the operations and maintenance of a consolidated regional public safety services 
communication system. The City also includes the Payroll Fund as an agency fund. 
 
Generally, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements.  Exceptions to this general statement are charges between the City’s water 
and sewer function and various other functions of the City.  Eliminating these charges would 
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported by the respective functions. 
 
Amounts reported in program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues, which include all 
taxes, as opposed to program revenues. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  
Operating revenues and expenses typically are the result from activities specific to a particular 
proprietary fund’s operations.  Operating revenues include charges for services.  Operating 
expenses include costs of services as well as materials, contracts, personnel and depreciation.  
All other revenues and expenses are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

 
When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position 
is available, the City typically first applies restricted resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, 
but reserves the right to selectively defer the use thereof to a future project or replacement 
equipment acquisition. 
 
(D) Assets, liabilities, and net position 

 
(1) Authorized Investments 
 
Assets of the City may be invested only in the following instruments in accordance with the 
City’s Investment Policy and further defined by the Public Funds Investment Act for the state 
of Texas. 
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• Obligations of the U.S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities, including pass-
through mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations (CMO).  

 
• FDIC insured or collateralized depository certificates of deposit of state and national 

banks doing business in Texas to include CDARS initiated through a Texas bank. 
 

• Local government investment pools. 
 

• AAA-rated, SEC registered money market mutual funds. 
 

• No-load bond mutual fund. 
 

• FDIC insured or collateralized interest bearing and money market accounts from any 
FDIC insured bank in Texas to include depository spread money market funds initiated 
in a Texas bank. 

 
• Debt obligations of any state or political subdivision in any US state. 

 
• Fully collateralized repurchase agreements. 

 
• A1/P1 commercial paper 

 
• FDIC insured brokered certificate of deposit securities from U.S. banks 
 
The City’s investment policy further restricts investments to the following: 
 
• Obligations whose payment represents the coupon payments on the outstanding principal 

balance of the underlying mortgage-backed security and pays no principal. 
 

• Obligations whose payment represents the principal stream of cash flow from the 
underlying mortgage-backed security collateral and bears no interest. 

 
• Collateralized mortgage obligations that have a stated final maturity date of greater than 

ten (10) years. 
 

• Collateralized mortgage obligations the interest rate of which is determined by an index 
that adjusts opposite to the changes in a market index. 

 
The City’s investments are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices.  Fair value is 
the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between 
willing parties.   
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(2)  Receivables and payables 
 
Lending/borrowing between funds that results in amounts outstanding at the end of the fiscal 
year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” or “advances to/from other funds.”   “Due 
to/from other funds” represents the current portion of interfund loans.  The noncurrent portion 
of interfund loans is reflected as interfund loans on the fund financial statements. With respect 
to the government-wide financial statements, any residual balances outstanding between the 
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported as “internal balances.” 
 
Advance receivables between funds, reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a  
category of fund balance in the applicable governmental fund(s) to indicate that they are not 
available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. 
All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible. 
 
Property taxes are levied on October 1 based on the assessed value of property as listed on the 
previous January 1, on which date a tax lien attaches.  Assessed values are an approximation of 
market value.  A valuation of all property must be made at least every three (3) years.  However, 
due to growth, the appraisal district conducts annual valuation by property category. Property 
taxes at the fund level are recorded as receivables and unearned revenues at the time the taxes 
are levied.  Revenues are recognized as the related ad valorem taxes are collected.  Additional 
amounts estimated to be collectible in time to be a resource for payment of obligations incurred 
during the fiscal year and, therefore, susceptible to accrual in accordance with GAAP have been 
recognized as revenue.  Taxes are due on October 1, the levy date, and are delinquent after the 
following January 31. Tax liens are automatic on January 1 each year. The tax lien is part of a 
lawsuit for property that can be filed any time after taxes become delinquent (February 1). The 
City usually waits until after May 1 and July 1 to file suits on business personal property and 
real property, respectively. 

 
(3)  Inventories and prepaid items 
 

Inventories for all governmental funds are valued at the lower of cost or market on the first-in, 
first-out basis.  The consumption method is used to account for inventories.  Under the 
consumption method, all inventory purchases are recorded as inventory acquisitions (current 
assets) at the time of purchase and expended when used. 
 
Inventories of proprietary funds are valued at the lower of cost or market on the first-in, first-
out basis as well. 
 
Payments to vendors, reflecting costs applicable to future accounting periods, are recorded as 
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 
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(4) Restricted assets 
 

Proceeds from the issuance of bonds, primarily related to enterprise funds and sales tax revenue 
bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets  
on the statement of net position due to their use being limited by applicable bond covenants.  
The “revenue bond current debt service” account is used to report segregated assets accumulated 
for debt service payments over the next twelve months.  The “revenue bond contingency” 
account is used to report resources set aside to subsidize potential deficiencies from the McAllen 
International Toll Bridge Fund and/or the Anzalduas International Crossing Fund operation that 
could adversely affect debt service payments.  In addition to assets restricted by bond covenants, 
others are restricted by enabling legislation for replacement and/or acquisition of capital assets. 

 
(5) Capital assets 

 
Capital assets, which includes property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, 
bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets are defined 
by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of $2,500 or more and an estimated useful 
life in excess of one year.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost.  Donated assets are 
reflected at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of an asset or materially 
extend the assets life are not capitalized. 

 
 Gains or losses on dispositions of capital assets are included in income within the proprietary 
fund financial statements and in the governmental activities and business-type activities columns 
of the government-wide financial statements. In the governmental fund financial statements only 
the proceeds from the disposition are reported. Within the proprietary funds, interest cost, less 
interest earned on investments acquired with proceeds of related borrowing, is capitalized during 
the construction of capital projects when material. Interest expense is not capitalized on general 
capital assets.    
 

Depreciation of capital assets used by proprietary funds, including those acquired by contributed 
capital, is charged as an expense against their operations in the fund financial statements as well 
as the government-wide financial statements.  Depreciation of general capital assets used by 
funds categorized as governmental activities is not provided in the fund financial statements, 
however is included in the gross expense by function in the government-wide Statement of 
Activities.  Capital assets, accumulated depreciation as well as the net amount are reported on 
proprietary fund statement of net position and in both the governmental activities and business-
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type activities column of the government-wide statement of net position. Depreciation has been 
provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.   
 
 
The estimated useful lives are as follows: 
 

Buildings and improvements  10 – 50 years
Equipment  5 – 15 years
Infrastructure  15 – 40 years

 
(6) Compensated absences 

 
Accumulated unpaid compensated absences are accrued when incurred in all funds reported 
within the proprietary fund financial statements as well as the governmental activities and 
business-type activities columns of the government-wide statements. The expense is recognized 
in the governmental fund financial statements when paid or expected to be paid with current 
financial resources.  

 
(7) Long-term obligations 

 
    In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types in the fund financial 

statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities.  Bond 
premiums and discounts are amortized over the life of the bonds.  Bonds payable are reported 
net of the applicable bond premium or discount.   
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.  Premiums received on debt 
issuances are reported as other financing sources and discounts are reported as other financing 
uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from debt proceeds, are reported as debt service 
expenditures. 

 
(8)  Fund balances 

 
Fund balance, reported in governmental funds, which has some level of constraint placed on it, 
is classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, or assigned.  The amount remaining, which 
can be spent for any lawful purpose is classified as unassigned.  Amounts classified as restricted 
have constraints placed on the use by law, regulations of other governments, creditors, grantors 
or by enabling legislation.  Those classified as committed are constrained by the City 
Commission through an ordinance for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor 
committed.  Reversing a commitment would require City Commission approval through an 
ordinance.  Non-spendable amounts cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable 
form, or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.  The City Commission has 
delegated the authority to make assignments to the City Manager with Commission direction.  
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For the purposes of classifying governmental fund balances, the City typically considers 
expenditure to be made from the most restrictive first when more than one classification is 
available, however reserves the right to selectively defer the use thereof to future expenditure.  
During the budget process, the City Manager designates the assignment of fund balances and 
makes recommendations to the City Commission for their consent and approval. 
 
The following outlines the composition of the City’s governmental fund balances classifications. 
 

Non-major

Development Capital Funds
General Corp. Improvements Other Total

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:

Board advances 2,254,349$        -$                      -$                     -$                      2,254,349$           
Prepaids 41,595               -                        -                       -                        41,595                  

Restricted for:
Law enforcement -                        -                        -                       6,271,858          6,271,858             
Debt service -                        -                        -                       632,703             632,703                
Economic development -                        14,514,988        -                       181,120             14,696,108           
Tourism -                        -                        -                       299,184             299,184                
Capital improvements -                        -                        -                       47,358,021        47,358,021           
Radio communication system 457,022             -                        -                       565,378             1,022,400             
Parks -                        -                        -                       1,209,462          1,209,462             

Committed to:
Downtown services parking -                        -                        -                       513,561             513,561                

Assigned to:
Information technology projects -                        -                        -                       610,946             610,946                
Other capital projects -                        -                        3,840,087         -                        3,840,087             

Unassigned 46,369,562        -                        -                       -                        46,369,562           

Total fund balances 49,122,528$      14,514,988$      3,840,087$       57,642,233$      125,119,836$       

Major Funds

  
         The amount of fund balance restricted by enabling legislation totaled $16,770,132, as of   
         September 30, 2015. 

 
(9)  Minimum fund balance policy 

 
In order to maintain a margin of safety in the General Fund balance in anticipation of economic 
downturns or natural disasters, the City Commission has adopted an ordinance, requiring a 
minimum fund balance of 140 days of expenditures. 
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(10)  Deficit Net Position/Fund Balance 
 
The Anzalduas Bridge Fund’s net position reflects a deficit in the amount of $1,040,553 
primarily as a result of advances from the Hidalgo Bridge, as authorized by the board of trustees.  
These advances supported the annual debt service requirements and interest on the advances.  
The Hidalgo Bridge Board of trustees has no intention of calling these advances, which will be 
repaid once the resources are available. In addition, the Employee Benefits Fund reflects a 
deficit net position in the amount of $1,262,919.  It is estimated that this temporary shortfall 
will be covered by a health insurance premium rate increase, plan design changes to reduce 
expenses, and negotiations with several vendors to ensure lower fees. 
 
(11)  Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position and/or balance sheet will sometimes 
report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement 
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies 
to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then.  The City has several deferred outflows of resources 
classifications that qualifies for reporting in this category for business-type activities and 
government wide activities: deferred charges on refundings,  pension contributions made after 
measurement date,  deferred charges on actuarial losses, and differences in projected and actual 
earnings on pension assets.  A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the 
carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price.  This amount is deferred and 
amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded debt or refunding debt. The other categories 
of deferred outflows of resources pertain to implementing GASB 68. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  At the governmental fund level, 
revenues that have been billed but not yet collected or collected within the availability period 
are reported as unavailable revenues.  These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow 
of resources in the period that the amounts become available. The City has five categories that 
qualifies as deferred inflows of resources at the governmental fund level.  The following table 
describes the items and amounts: 
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Deferred Inflows Amount

Property taxes 3,604,336$        

Weedy lots 693,789             

Mission Repayment on Series B 2,254,349          

Sales taxes 5,518,596          

Other 1,213,262          

Totals 13,284,332$      

 
On the statement of net position, the deferred inflows of resources category also includes 
deferred inflows related to refundings, differences in investment experience/assumptions 
related to pensions, and differences in expected and actual pension experiences. See Note D for 
further information on pension related deferred inflows of resources.  
 
(12)  Restatement of Net Position at Beginning of Year 

 
The implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions resulted in prior year adjustment of -$22,516,522 to pension expense for 
governmental activities and -$211,426 for business type activities at the government-wide 
level. At the fund level, pension expense was adjusted by -$203,817; and fleet materials 
management fund, an internal service fund was adjusted by -$7,611. The changes in the 
beginning net position for FY 2014 are reflected on the following tables: 
 

Government-wide 
Statement of Activities

Net position at 
9/30/2014, as 
previously 
reported

Change in reporting 
pension expense

Net position at 
9/30/2014, as 

restated

Governmental Activities 352,637,790$          (22,516,522)$             330,121,268$      

Business-type 
Activities 367,777,929$          (211,426)$                  367,566,503$       
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Fund Level

Net position at 
9/30/2014, as 
previously 
reported

Change in 
reporting pension 

expense

Net position at 
9/30/2014, as 

restated

Water 80,849,847$            (51,904)$                  80,797,943$            

Sewer 71,963,391$            (32,593)$                  71,930,798$            

Sanitation 26,946,973$            (52,767)$                  26,894,206$            

Convention Center 63,005,352$            (15,148)$                  62,990,204$            

McAllen Int'l Airport 70,679,103$            (13,353)$                  70,665,750$            

McAllen Int'l Toll Bridge 32,054,507$            (10,340)$                  32,044,167$            

Anzalduas Int'l Crossing (698,664)$                (3,878)$                    (702,542)$                

Other Proprietary Funds 19,175,759$            (23,834)$                  19,151,925$            

Fleet -Internal Service 
Fund 1,199,945$              (7,611)$                    1,192,334$              

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Fund

 
 

 
 
II. Stewardship, compliance and accountability 

 
(A)  Budgetary information 
 

The City adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in 
the basic financial statements: 

 
1. Prior to August 1 of each year, the City Manager is required to submit to the City 

Commission a proposed budget for the fiscal year beginning on the following 
October 1.  The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of 
financing them. 

 
2.   Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. 

 
3. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted by the City Commission through 

passage of an ordinance. 
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4. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between accounts 
within any department; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of 
any department must be approved by the City Commission.  Budgeted amounts 
include transfers and revisions to the original appropriations ordinance. 

 
5. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for all governmental funds with the 

exception of less significant grants, which are included in the Miscellaneous 
Government Grants fund. 

 
6.   The budget and actual comparisons include the General Fund and the Development 

Corp Fund. Budgets for these funds are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP) applicable 
to state and local governments.  Budgets for proprietary funds have been prepared 
on a non-US GAAP basis, which excludes depreciation but includes capital outlay 
and debt principal payments. 

 
7. Annual budgeted expenditures are adopted at the department level within funds.  As 

previously noted, the City Manager is authorized to make transfers within a 
department.  Accordingly, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed 
appropriations is the department level.  During the year, several supplementary 
appropriations were necessary. 

 
(B)  Excess of expenditures over appropriations 

 
For the year ended September 30, 2015, expenditures in certain general fund departments 
exceeded appropriations.  These expenditures over appropriations are the result of 
underestimating actual expenditures for the year.  Revenue sufficient to provide for the excess 
was made available through the use of available surplus from current and prior years. The 
related departments and the excess of expenditures over appropriations are reflected in the table 
that follows:   
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Department:  

  City commission 107,456$     
  City secretary 40,208         
  Tax office 85,594         
  Legal 34,402         
  Grant administration 4,179          
  City hall 34,675         
  Fire 776,004       
  Street lighting 442,098       
  Health code compliance 62,372         
  Other agencies 366,546       
  Quinta mazatlan 144             

    Total general fund 1,953,678$   

 
III. Detailed notes on all funds 

 
(A)  Deposits and investments 
 

It is the City’s policy as well as a requirement in its Depository Agreement for deposits plus 
accrued interest thereon to be 110% secured by collateral valued at fair value, less the amount of 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance.  At September 30, 2015, the City’s 
deposits were entirely covered by federal deposit insurance or were secured by collateral held 
by the City’s agent in the City’s name pursuant to the City’s Investment Policy and its Depository 
Agreement.   
 

Investments at fair value, including accrued interest, as of September 30, 2015 are reflected in 
the table that follows: 
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Fair Value 1 or less 2 3+

Tex Pool 104,215,613$   104,215,613$  -$                -$                 
Money Market 37,469,076       37,469,076     -                        -                          
Certificates of deposit 35,745,098       32,745,098     3,000,000    -                          
U.S. Government
   securities 111,832,703     -                   33,938,539  77,894,164     

289,262,490$   174,429,787$  36,938,539$ 77,894,164$    

Investment Maturities (in Years)

 
Public funds investment pools 
Public funds investment pools in Texas (“Pools”) are established under the authority of the 
Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 79 of the Texas Government Code and are subject to the 
provisions of the Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code. 
 
In addition to other provisions of the Act designed to promote liquidity and safety of principal, 
the Act requires Pools to:  (1) have an advisory board composed of participants in the pool and 
other persons who do not have a business relationship with the pool and are qualified to advise 
the pool; (2) maintain a continuous rating of no lower than AAA or AAAm or an equivalent 
rating by at least one nationally recognized rating service; and (3) maintain the fair value of its 
underling investment portfolio within one half of one percent of the values of its shares. 
 

The City’s investments in Pools are reported at an amount determined by the fair value per share 
of the pool’s underlying portfolio, unless the pool is 2a7-like, in which case they are reported at 
amortized cost.  A 2a7-like pool is one which is not registered with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (“SEC”) as an investment company, but nevertheless has a policy that it will, and 
does, operate in a manner consistent with the SEC’s Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act 
of 1940. 
 

TexPool is a public funds investment pool created pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, 
Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, and the Act.  The State Comptroller of Public 
Accounts exercises oversight responsibility over TexPool.  Oversight includes the ability to 
significantly influence operations, designation of management, and accountability for fiscal 
matters.  Additionally, the State Comptroller of Public Accounts has established an Advisory 
Board composed both of participants in TexPool and of other persons who do not have a business 
relationship with TexPool.  The Advisory Board members review the investment policy and 
management fee structure. 
 
The City believes TexPool operates in a manner consistent with the SEC’s Rule 2a-7 of the 
Investment Company Act of 1940 and like a pool, as described in GASB Statement No. 59, 
Financial Instrument Omnibus.  As such, TexPool uses amortized cost to report net assets  
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Interest rate risk. The investment policy states that no investment shall exceed seven years 
in maturity.  By limiting the exposure of its investments by no more than four years as 
reflected in the schedule below, the City reduces its risk to rising interest rates.  The table 
that follows reflects the allocation of the investment portfolio. 
  

  

Government Certificates
Agencies of  Deposit

< 1 Year -$                          32,745,098$           
1-3 Years 111,832,703         3,000,000               

Total 111,832,703$       35,745,098$           

 Weighted
Average Maturity 919 Days 128 Days

 
 
Credit risk.  As of September 30, 2015, the investments in the State’s investment pool was 
rated AAAm by Standards and Poor’s.  Available funds were invested in certificates of 
deposit, all of which are under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limit, as well as 
with the City’s depository bank, PlainsCapital Bank, an independently owned bank.  
However, the collateral pledged against the certificates of deposit with PlainsCapital Bank 
is comprised of government securities, which carry AAA rating from Moody’s and AA+ 
from S&P.  The government securities consist of instruments issued by the Federal Home 
Loan Bank, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Association and Federal Farm Credit Bank, all of 
which are rated AAA by Moody’s Investors Service and AA+ by S&P.  The City’s 
investment policy limits authorized investments to TexPool, certificates of deposits, U.S. 
Treasuries, federal government agencies, including mortgage backed securities, commercial 
paper and municipal bonds.   
 
Concentration of credit risk.  The certificate of deposits holdings at September 30, 2015 
represents 12.36% of the total portfolio.  The U.S. government agencies category represents 
38.66% of the total portfolio.  Within this category, securities issued by the Federal Home Loan 
Bank represent 13% of the portfolio, those issued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
Corporation represent 69%, and those issued by Federal Farm Credit Bank represent 18%.  The 
investment policy is silent in the concentration of holding in the various types of securities and 
investments. 
 
 
 

 

71



CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

September 30, 2015 
 
 

Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund Investments 
 

 The Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund Investments (Plan) are recorded at fair value as of 
September 30, 2015.  The table below reflects the composition of these investments. 

 

  

Firemen's Relief and Retirement Fund Investments: Investment Policy
Asset

Fair Value % of Portfolio Allocation
Equities:
   Domestic 18,434,763$   44% 30-60%
   International 6,601,212      16% 10-30%

Equities total 25,035,975     

Fixed income
Treasury/corporate bonds 8,531,353      

Fixed income total 8,531,353      20% 20-50%
 

Alternative investments 8,399,150 20% 0-20%

Total portfolio 41,966,478$   100%

 
 

Because of the complexity of the portfolio, the firemen’s board of trustees relies on its consultant 
to provide the necessary guidance to accomplish the Plan’s objectives.  The Board also 
understands that return objectives can be achieved while assuming “market” volatility.  The 
Board is willing to forgo potential return in strong markets in return for protection against a 
severe decline during weak periods. 
 
Concentration of credit risk.  As noted in the above schedule, none of the sectors exceed their 
percentage of asset allocation.     The Plan is well diversified; with no one issue exceeding 5%.  
With the exception of the alternative investments, the portfolio can be liquidated within one to 
two days if so desired.  Alternative investments can only be liquidated quarterly.   

 
Interest rate risk.  Only the fixed income securities of the Plan are subject to interest rate risk 
due to the possibility that prevailing interest rates could change before the securities reach 
maturity.  Securities that are subject to interest rate risk as of September 30, 2015 amount to 
$7,191,517 and have weighted-average duration of 3.78 years.  Durations is defined as the 
change in the value of a fixed income security that will result from a 1% change in interest rates.  
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Duration is stated in years.  For example, 5 year duration means the bond will decrease in value 
by 5% if interest rates rise 1% and increase in value by 5% if interest rates fall 1%.  Securities 
that are subject to interest rate risk are shown in the following table.  The investment policy is 
silent on the subject. 

Weighted-Average
Percentage Duration

Investment Type Fair Value of Total (Years)

Corporate bonds 788,196$        10.96% 5.56

Government agencies 1,351,536       18.79% 0.51

Government bonds 4,669,346       64.93% 5.82

Government MBS 382,078          5.31% 5.06

Sub-pranationals 5,567             0.08% -0.1

Municipal & derivatives (5,206)            -0.07% -0.1

Total interest rate sensitive bonds 7,191,517$      100.00% 3.78

 
Credit risk.  Using Standard and Poor’s rating system for fixed income securities as of 
September 30, 2015 the Plan’s bonds were rated as noted below. The investment policy is 
silent on the subject. 
 

S&P Rating Fair Value     Percentage of Total 
AAA $1,918,372 26.68% 
AA      390,106  5.42% 
A   1,033,831 14.38% 
BBB   1,727,439 24.02% 
BB   1,081,299 15.04% 
B     728,357 10.13% 
C       10,139   0.14% 
CC         6,759    0.09% 
CCC     230,125    3.20% 
Not rated       65,090    0.91% 

 
Total credit sensitive bonds $7,191,517 100.00% 

 
Foreign currency risk.  Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will 
adversely affect the fair value of an investment or a deposit.  The Plan holds investments in 
American Depository Receipts (“ADRs”) which have currency risk; however, they are not 
included in foreign currency as they are denominated in U.S. dollars and accounted for at fair 
market value.  The Plan had indirect exposure to foreign currency risk of $6,601,221 through 
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its investments in international mutual funds, foreign stock and convertible securities as of 
September 30, 2015. The investment policy is silent on the subject of foreign currency risk. 
 

(B) Receivables 
 

 
Receivables for the City’s governmental activities and business type activities at year end are 
reflected in the following table below: 

Inter- Net
Accounts Taxes Interest governmental Other Receivables

Governmental activities:
General 1,609,038$         11,724,436$      26,291$           127,207$         570,141$        14,057,113$       
Development corp. 16                       2,524,109          11,310             200,856           -                      2,736,291           
Capital Improvement -                         -                         3,164               774,921           4,244              782,329              
Nonmajor governmental
and internal service funds 2,717,046           117,756             30,062             504,639           431,365          3,800,868           

Total governmental 4,326,100$         14,366,301$      70,827$           1,607,623$      1,005,750$     21,376,601$       

Business-type activities:
Water 1,798,210$         -$                       2,229$             -$                     -$                    1,800,439$         
Sewer 1,696,809 -                         1,028               -                       14,537            1,712,374           
Sanitation 1,835,171           -                         5,802               247                  -                      1,841,220           
Convention center 22,051                -                         806                  -                       -                      22,857                
McAllen international 
airport 221,127              -                         3,871               750,873           -                      975,871              
McAllen international toll 
bridge 8,188                  -                         -                      150,669           -                      158,857              
Nonmajor enterprise and 
fleet fund 225,918              -                         1,938               769,526           -                      997,382              

Total business type 5,807,474$         -$                       15,674$           1,671,315$      14,537$          7,509,000$         

 
Within the City’s water, sewer, and sanitation funds, an estimated amount has been recorded for 
services rendered but not yet billed as of the close of the year.  The receivable was determined by 
prorating the cycle billings sent to customers in October 2015 based on the number of days applicable 
to the prior fiscal year.  The receivable balances in the water, sewer, and sanitation have been reduced 
by estimated allowances for doubtful accounts.  Water accounts were reduced by $74,288; sewer 
accounts by $69,884; and sanitation accounts by $86,003. 
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(C) Capital assets 

 
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2015 was as follows:

Beginning Transfers/ Ending

Governmental activities: Balance Increases Retirement Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 59,311,047        $ 1,100,726        (4,453,211)    $ 55,958,562         

Construction in progress 24,504,725        25,411,765      127,573         50,044,063         

Total capital assets, not being

depreciated 83,815,772        26,512,491      (4,325,638)    106,002,625       

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 133,036,911      895,279           -                    133,932,190       

Equipment 79,809,206        5,774,652        (1,107,907)    84,475,951         

Infrastructure 201,402,089      2,110,497        -                    203,512,586       

Total capital assets being depreciated 414,248,206      8,780,428        (1,107,907)    421,920,727       

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements (42,947,963)      (4,417,497)       -                    (47,365,460)        

Equipment (58,131,303)      (5,408,764)       980,334         (62,559,733)        

Infrastructure (115,350,589)    (6,189,011)       -                    (121,539,600)      

Total accumulated depreciation (216,429,855)    (16,015,272)     980,334         (231,464,793)      

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 197,818,351      (7,234,844)       (127,573)       190,455,934       

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 281,634,123      $ 19,277,647      $ (4,453,211)    $ 296,458,559       
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Depreciation expense, exclusive of $980,334 in depreciation retirement, was charged to governmental 
functions as follows: 
 

General government 1,627,855$      

Public safety 2,525,167       

Highways and streets, which includes the depreciation of

 general infrastructure assets 6,384,157       

Health and welfare 9,050             

Culture and recreation 3,511,702       

In addition, depreciation on capital assets held by the City's

 internal service funds is charged to the various functions

 based on their usage of the assets 1,957,341       

Total depreciation-governmental activities 16,015,272$    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

76



CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

September 30, 2015 
 
 

 
 
 

Beginning Transfers/ Ending
Business-type activities: Balance Increases Retirements Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 21,027,005         $ 273,241            $ (197,935)            $ 21,102,311          
Construction in progress 49,439,369         25,225,985       (32,774,612)       41,890,742          
Water rights (perpetual) 4,923,100           -                        -                         4,923,100            
Goodwill 609,713              -                        -                         609,713               
Total capital assets, not being
depreciated 75,999,187         25,499,226       (32,972,547)       68,525,866          

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and systems 314,631,495       621,002            6,543,793          321,796,290        
Improvements other than buildings 171,990,457       4,979,346         26,230,817        203,200,620        
Machinery and equipment 55,951,131         5,558,331         (1,016,443)         60,493,019          
Development cost 7,417,616           -                        -                         7,417,616            
Water rights (non-perpetual) 2,200,000           1,000,000         -                         3,200,000            

Total capital assets being depreciated 552,190,699       12,158,679       31,758,167        596,107,545        

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and systems (107,744,789)      (11,010,077)      402,756             (118,352,110)       
Improvement other than buildings (84,836,217)        (5,171,571)        (414,368)            (90,422,156)         
Machinery and equipment (36,946,315)        (4,462,338)        985,300             (40,423,353)         
Development cost (880,326)             (185,440)           (516)                   (1,066,282)           
Water rights (742,498)             (110,000)           -                         (852,498)              

Total accumulated depreciation (231,150,145)      (20,939,426)      973,172             (251,116,399)       

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 321,040,554       (8,780,747)        32,731,339        344,991,146        

Business-type activities 
Capital assets net $ 397,039,741       $ 16,718,479       $ (241,208)            $ 413,517,012        
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Depreciation expense was charged to business type activity functions as follows: 
 

  

Water 4,262,777$      

Sewer 5,658,492       

Sanitation 2,014,457       

Golf course 290,928          

Civic center 67,976            

Convention center 1,582,447       

McAllen international airport 3,604,916       

McAllen express 662,641          

Transit terminal 578,247          

McAllen international toll bridge 604,697          

Anzalduas international crossing 1,530,387       

In addition, depreciation on capital assets held by the City's

 Fleet management funds is charged to the various functions

 based on their usage of the assets 81,461            

Total depreciation-business type activities 20,939,426$    
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At September 30, 2015, the City had the following significant remaining contractual 
commitments for various construction and improvement projects:    

 

Remaining
Project Description Commitment Financing Sources

Paving and drainage 1,328,815$    Local and grant
Public safety building renovation 543,578        Local
Sewer improvements 44,852,573    Local and bond funds
Park improvements 63,223          Local 
Water improvements 628,175        Local 

Airport improvements 2,091,164     
Local, bond funds 
and grants

Electric bus implementation 313,067        Local and grant
Palm View Golf Course renovation 51,095          Local
Hidalgo Bridge facility improvements 1,915,985     Local
Performing arts center 31,462,894    Local and bond funds
Minor repairs 34,000          Local

83,284,569$  
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(D)  Interfund receivables/loans and transfers 
 

The compositions of inter-fund balances as of September 30, 2015 are reflected below.  
 
 

Receivable Fund: Payable Fund: Amount

General Fund Non-Major Governmental Funds 194,620$    
McAllen Toll Bridge 1,242         

Total Governmental Funds 195,862      

Civic Center Fund Non-Major Governmental Fund 43,782        

Convention Center Fund Non-Major Governmental Fund 175,127      

Transit System Fund Development Corp Fund 319,420      

Water Fund Airport Fund 3,684,885   

General Insurance McAllen Toll Bridge 1,092,503   

General Depreciation McAllen Toll Bridge 1,092,504   

Total Proprietary Funds 6,408,221   

Combined totals 6,604,083$  

 
A loan arrangement between the Water Fund and the Airport Fund for the airport building 
expansion was agreed in the amount of $4,500,000.  The current outstanding balance totals 
$3,684,885.  Payment terms and conditions of this arrangement are to be determined later. In 
addition, the General Insurance and General Depreciation Funds initiated a short and long term 
note payable arrangement to provide tenant improvements and port of entry upgrades in the 
amount of $2,185,007. It is disclosed in this section of the notes, since it is not a third party 
transaction.  
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Transfers are used to 1) provide unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance 
various programs accounted for in other funds, and 2) move revenues from the fund that the 
budget requires to collect them to the fund that the budget requires to expend them.  The table 
on the following page reflects the transfer activity at year end. 

 

Capital Imprv

and Anzalduas 

General Development Convention Nonmajor Nonmajor Int 'l Crossing Internal

Fund Corp. Center Governmental Proprietary Fund Service Total

Transfer out:

General fund -$                 828,482$    -$               4,193,113$  -$                  -$             -$                5,021,595$   

Development corp/CIP 3,707,300     -                  -                 -                  1,834,715     -               -                  5,542,015     

Nonmajor prop. -                   -                  -                 412,000       -                    -               -                  412,000        

Nonmajor gov. 237,000        -                  2,435,582   2,078,809    608,895        -               -                  5,360,286     

Convention center -                   -                  1,300,504    -                    -               -                  1,300,504     

Internal service -                   7,935,009   -                 -                  -                    3,670,000   11,605,009   

McAllen int 'l toll bridge 5,148,916     -                  -                 -                  -                    947,888    -                  6,096,804     

McAllen int 'l airport 1,103,965     -                  -                 -                  -                    -               -                  1,103,965     

Total 10,197,181$ 8,763,491$ 2,435,582$ 7,984,426$  2,443,610$   947,888$  3,670,000$ 36,442,178$ 

Transfer In:

 
During the year, the General Fund transferred $828,482 of surplus revenues to the Capital 
Improvement Fund to assist in funding some major projects contemplated in next year’s budget.  
It also provided funding in the amount of $3,507,300 to the Debt Service Fund, a non-major 
governmental fund. This funding is to cover the debt service requirements of the General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015.  During the year, a transfer of $495,813 was made to 
establish a non-major fund, Public Education Government Fund, which was originally reflected 
as restricted. Additionally, the original advance of $190,000 to the McAllen EB5 Fund was 
reclassified as a transfer.  
 
The Development Corporation provided funding for operating costs to the McAllen Express Fund 
and Transit System Fund in the amounts of $846,574 and $635,425 respectively. Additionally, the 
original advance of $352,716 to the Transit System Fund was reclassified as a transfer. It also 
transferred $3,707,300 to the General Fund for operating expenditures associated with the public 
safety building. In addition, the Development Corporation received $5,900,000 from the General 
Depreciation Fund for providing assistance toward the land purchase for a state of the art research 
facility and student housing complex located on the Doctor’s Hospital campus. Also, the original 
advance to the Capital Improvement Fund from the General Insurance Fund in the amount of 
$2,035,009 was reclassified as a transfer.  
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The Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund, a non-major governmental fund, transferred collections of 
$2,435,582 and $608,895, to the Convention Center and Civic Center respectively. The transfer 
of $237,000 from the Downtown Service Parking Fund, a non-major governmental fund, to the 
General Fund is a reimbursement for debt service requirements on the debt related to the 
downtown parking garage.  The transfer of $190,000 from the General Fund to the McAllen EB-
5 Fund, a non-major governmental fund, represents the reclassification of the advance for start-
up costs.  
 
The General Insurance Fund and the Retiree Health Insurance Fund provided funding for 
operational costs to the Employee Benefits Fund, in the amounts of $2,170,000 and $1,500,000, 
respectively.  
 
The Transit System Fund advance from the Capital Improvement Fund, $352,716, was reclassified 
as a transfer, which is reflected in the non-major proprietary column.   

  
The transfer of $1,103,965 from the Airport Fund to the General Fund represents reimbursement 
for public safety personnel assigned to the airport. 
 
The Convention Center Fund transferred $1,300,504 to the Performing Arts-General Obligation 
Fund for funding expenditures related to the Performing Arts Center. 
 
The Civic Center Depreciation Fund, a non-major proprietary fund, transferred $412,000 to the 
Performing Arts Center to assist with construction expenditures. 
 
The amount reflected from the McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund to the General Fund of 
$5,148,916 represents the City’s share of surplus net revenue from operation of the international 
toll bridge.  Additionally, it transferred $947,888 to the Anzalduas International Crossing Fund 
for debt service requirements on the International Toll Bridge System Revenue Bonds, Series 
2007B. 
 

(E) Operating leases 
 

The McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund leases property and buildings to the United States 
Government, the State of Texas, and various commercial dealers under operating leases.  The 
leases range from monthly leases with commercial dealers to a 15-year lease with the General 
Service Administration (GSA) and a 5-year lease with three additional 5-year extension options 
with the United Export Traders Association (UETA) of Texas, Inc.  
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Estimated future minimum lease payments to be received under the non-cancellable operating 
lease with GSA and UETA are as follows: 
 

Year Ending GSA UETA Total

2016 2,118,988$        240,000$     2,358,988$        

2017 2,118,988          240,000       2,358,988          

2018 2,118,988          240,000       2,358,988          

2019 2,118,988          240,000       2,358,988          

2020 2,118,988          240,000       2,358,988          

2021-2025 10,594,940        1,315,000    11,909,940        

2026-2029 8,475,952          1,195,000    9,670,952          

Totals 29,665,832$      3,710,000$  33,375,832$       
 

(F) Long-term liabilities 
 

(1)  General obligation bonds and other   
 
The City issues general obligation bonds to finance the acquisition and construction of major 
capital facilities, generally for governmental activities and are direct obligations, for which the 
City has pledged the full faith and credit of the government.  These bonds generally are serial 
bonds and carry a term of 20 years or more with varying amounts of principal maturing each 
year.  All outstanding general obligation bonds have been retired, leaving only sales tax revenue 
bonds and combination tax and revenue certificates of obligation bond indebtedness. 

  
The schedule that follows presents an analysis of general long-term debt outstanding, followed 
by a schedule of the debt service requirements on those bonds. 
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Governmental activities

$25,000,000 Development Corporation of McAllen, Inc.
     Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1998  due in annual installments of
     $25,000 per year through February 15, 2018; interest
     at 4.80% to 5.25% 75,000$          

  $42,380,000 General Obligation Bonds,
    Series 2014 due in annual installments ranging from $600,000 to
    $3,085,000 per year through February 15, 2034, with a final installment
    of $3,085,000; interest at 3.00% to 5.00% 41,780,000      

  $11,850,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation,
    Series 2014 due in annual installments ranging from $205,000 to
    $840,000 per year through February 15, 2034, with a final installment
    of $840,000; interest at 3.00% to 4.00% 11,645,000      

  $15,035,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds,
    Series 2015 due in annual installments ranging from $3,000,000 to
    $3,450,000 per year through February 15, 2020, with a final installment
    of $3,450,000; interest at 3.50% to 4.00% 15,035,000      

Unamortized bond premium 3,590,847       

Net OPEB obligation 1,142,521       

Net pension liability 26,152,623      

TMRS net pension liability 1,198,224       

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 10,391,400      

Total general long-term liabilities 111,010,615$   
 
The annual debt service requirements to maturity on sales tax bonds payable and combination tax and 
revenue certificates of obligation as of September 30, 2015, including interest, are reflected on 
following page.  
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Year Ending Principal Interest

2016 4,715,000$      2,605,876$        

2017 4,855,000       2,459,138          

2018 5,055,000       2,261,175          

2019 5,265,000       2,028,419          

2020 5,475,000       1,818,494          

2021-2025 12,800,000      7,213,619          

2026-2030 15,575,000      4,430,253          

2031-2034 14,795,000      1,209,056          

Totals 68,535,000$    24,026,030$       

 
 
 
(2) Revenue bonds and other 
 
The City also issues bonds, for which it pledges revenue, derived from the activity using the bond-
financed assets, to pay debt service.  The total amount of interest expense paid on revenue bonds in 
the current period was $4,555,220. The following schedule is an analysis of the business-type activity 
long-term debt, including related revenue bonds.  
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Business-type activities:

Payable from Water Fund:

$12,029,050 Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue and

Refunding Bonds, Series 2006 due in annual installments from $685,000

to $1,960,000 through February 1, 2031: interest at 3.00% to 5.00% 8,064,808$      

$9,363,200 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue 

and Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 due in annual installments from $380,000

to $1,825,000 through February 1, 2030: interest at 2.00% to 5.00% 9,363,200       

Unamortized bond premium 1,600,836       

TMRS net pension liability 122,794          

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 468,836          

Total water fund 19,620,474$    
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Payable from Sewer Fund:

  $26,525,950 Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue

   and Refunding Bonds, Series 2006 due in annual installments from $685,000 

   to $1,960,000 through February 1, 2031: interest at 3.00% to 5.00% 20,240,192$    

   $39,485,000 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2009

   due in annual installments from $1,090,000 to $1,350,000

   through February 1, 2040: with no interest 33,840,000      

   $1,190,000 Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue

   Series 2012 due in annual installments from $95,000 to $1,135,000 

   through February 1, 2022: interest at 0.240% to 0.850%; with interest 

   commencing  February 1, 2019 875,000          

   $6,655,000 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2013

   due in annual installments from $175,000 to $285,000

   through February 1, 2043: interest at 1.60%. 6,320,000       

   $217,000 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A

   due in annual installments from $18,000 to $25,000

   through February 1, 2043: interest at 2.43%. 181,000          

   $2,995,000 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2013B

   due in annual installments from $270,000 to $310,000

   through February 1, 2043: interest at 0.52%. 2,450,000       

 $7,356,800 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue 

 and Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 due in annual installments from $380,000

 to $1,825,000 through February 1, 2030: interest at 2.00% to 5.00% 7,356,800     

 $40,000,000 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds

 Series 2015 (loan) due in annual installments from $710,000

 to $1,730,000 through September 30, 2045: interest at 0.14% to 1.62% 40,000,000   

Unamortized bond premium 1,803,980        
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Payable from Sewer Fund (Continued):

TMRS net pension liability 77,107$          

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 344,546          

Total sewer fund 113,488,625$  

Payable from Sanitation Fund:

TMRS net pension liability 124,832$        

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 438,492          

Total sanitation fund 563,324$        

Payable from Palm View Golf Course Fund:

TMRS net pension liability 15,116$          

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 82,776            

Total palm view golf course fund 97,892$          

Payable from  Convention Center Fund:

TMRS net pension liability 35,836$          

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 124,225          

Total convention center fund 160,061$         
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Payable from McAllen International Airport Fund:

$9,820,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificate of Obligation

Bonds, Series 2011 due in annual installments from $325,000 

to $710,000 through September 30, 2031: interest at 2.00% to 4.75% 8,365,000$      

TMRS net pension liability 31,590            

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 118,186          

Total airport fund 8,514,776$      

Payable from McAllen Express Fund:

TMRS net pension liability 37,874$          

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 67,032            

Total McAllen Express Fund 104,906$        

Payable from Transit System Fund:

TMRS net pension liability 3,397$            

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 1,883             

Total Transit System Fund 5,280$            

Payable from McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund:

TMRS net pension liability 24,457$          

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 98,477            

Total McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund 122,934$         
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Payable from Anzalduas International Crossing Fund:

$26,000,000 International Toll Bridge System Revenue Bonds, Series 2007A

due in annual installments from $415,000 to $1,895,000 through

March 1, 2032: interest at 4.50% to 4.65% 22,300,000$    

Payable from Anzalduas International Crossing Fund (Continued):

$13,160,000  International Toll Bridge System Revenue Bonds, Series 2007B

due in annual installments from $340,000 to $915,000 through 10,895,000      

March 1, 2032: interest at 4.00% to 5.00%

TMRS net pension liability 9,171             

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 16,466            

Unamortized bond premium 415,987          

Total Anzalduas International Crossing Fund 33,636,624$    

Payable from Fleet Materials Management Fund (an internal service fund 
treated as BTA):

TMRS net pension liability 18,003$          

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 28,691            

Total Fleet Materials Management Fund 46,694$          

Total Proprietary Fund Debt 176,361,590$  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

90



CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

September 30, 2015 
 
 

 
 
The table below reflects the revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity. 
 

  

Year Ending Principal Interest

2016 7,836,000$      4,457,494$        

2017 8,036,000       4,248,134          

2018 8,277,000       4,016,980          

2019 8,582,000       3,757,691          

2020 7,863,000       3,511,099          

2021-2025 41,932,000      13,862,690        

2026-2030 39,730,000      7,313,576          

2031-2035 23,145,000      2,100,117          

2036-2040 15,665,000      1,114,052          

2041-2045 9,185,000       365,502             

Total bonds  
outstanding 170,251,000$  44,747,335$       

 
 
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds Refunding 
 
Due to favorable interest rates, during fiscal year 2015, $16,316,031, including premium, of Series 
2015 General Obligation and Refunding Bonds were issued to refund $16,130,000 of the City’s 
previously issued and outstanding GO bonds, plus accrued interest and interest costs.  In addition, 
$19,287,075, including premium, of Series 2015 Waterworks and Sewer System Refunding Bonds 
were issued to refund $16,720,000 of the City’s previously issued and outstanding Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2005, plus accrued interest and interest costs.   The proceeds were deposited with an escrow 
agent for redemption on March 3, 2015.   
 
As a result of the refundings, the City reduced its aggregate debt service payments to maturity by 
$3,932,078 for the Waterworks and Sewer System bonds and $1,119,104 for the GO bonds and 
obtained an economic gain (difference between present value of the debt service payments on the 
old and new debt) of $3,311,189 for Waterworks and Sewer bonds and $1,086,650 for the GO 
bonds.    
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(3)  Changes in long-term liabilities 

 
Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2015 is shown on the following 
table: 
 

Additional
Balance at Obligations Retirement Balance at Amounts

September 30, and Net and Net September 30, Due Within
2014 Increases Decreases 2015 One Year

Governmental activities:

Sales tax revenue bonds 100,000$             -$                      (25,000)$             75,000$               25,000$             

Certificates of obligation 30,845,000          -                        (19,200,000)        11,645,000          430,000             
General obligation bonds 42,380,000          15,035,000        (600,000)             56,815,000          4,260,000          
Bond premium 3,887,561            1,281,031          (1,577,745)          3,590,847            574,182             
Compensated absences 10,303,250          914,081             (825,931)             10,391,400          5,753,081          
TMRS net pension liability -                          1,198,224          1,198,224            
Net OPEB obligation 1,225,918            -                        (83,397)               1,142,521            -                        
Fire net pension liability 814,623               26,152,623        (814,623)             26,152,623          -                        

Total general long-term 89,461,889          44,580,959        (23,126,696)        111,010,615        11,042,263        

Business-Type activities:
Revenue bonds payable 139,304,000        56,720,000        (25,773,000)        170,251,000        7,836,000          
Compensated absences 1,683,065            376,239             (269,694)             1,789,610            1,275,631          
Bond premium 2,185,491            2,702,225          (1,066,913)          3,820,803            -                        
TMRS net pension liability -                          500,177             -                          500,177               -                        

Total proprietary fund debt 143,172,556        60,298,641        (27,109,607)        176,361,590        9,111,631          

 
With respect to governmental activities; compensated absences, TMRS net pension liability, net 
OPEB obligation and the Fire net pension liability are liquidated by the General Fund. Under 
business-type activities, the TMRS net pension liabilities are liquidated by the respective 
proprietary funds and Fleet fund. In addition, interfund notes payable of $4,541,269 was 
reflected at the end of September 30, 2015 under the business-type activities and will be 
liquidated by the Airport ad Toll Bridge Funds. 
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(4) Debt covenants 
 

The City is required to comply with various provisions included in the trust indenture for issued 
bonds (including bonds issued through the Texas Water Development Board).  The City has 
complied with all significant provisions of the trust indenture.  
 
Bonds issued by the City for the construction of the toll bridge located in the City of Mission are 
secured by the net revenues of both international bridges.   Also, bonds issued by the City for water 
and sewer improvements are secured by pledging the net revenues of the water and sewer utilities 
systems. 
 

IV. Other information 
 
(A)  Risk Management 
 
 The City is exposed to various risks or torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 

injuries to employees, citizens and the general public; and natural disasters.  During fiscal year 
2015, the City self-funded group health insurance, life insurance, general liability insurance, 
and workmen’s compensation insurance.  The City purchased insurance coverage for fire and 
extended coverage on buildings and contents; and fire, lightning, and windstorm insurance for 
its vehicles for damages in excess of certain limits. 
 
The group health insurance program is reported in the Employee Benefits Fund, an internal 
service fund.  General liability and workmen’s compensation insurance programs are reported 
in the General Insurance Fund, an internal service fund, and the Retiree Health Insurance Fund, 
an internal service fund. 

  
 The health insurance excess coverage policy covers individual claims in excess of $150,000.  

Third-party coverage is currently maintained for workmen’s compensation claims in excess of 
$400,000.  Third-party coverage is also currently maintained for general liability claims in 
excess of $10,000. 

  
 The City estimates the liabilities for its self-funded insurance programs on a case-by-case basis 

based on historical claims experience.  A liability for a claim is established if information 
indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial 
statements and the amount of loss is reasonably estimable.  Accruals for claims are adjusted on 
a regular basis based on the latest information available on each case.  Claims incurred but not 
reported have been considered in determining the accrual for claims, and City management 
believes adequate accruals have been provided at September 30, 2015.  Inter-fund premiums 
are based primarily on claims experience and are reported as interfund services provided and 
used. 
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 There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year by 
major category of risk.  In addition, there were no insurance settlements exceeding insurance 
coverage in any of the past three years. Changes in claims payable amounts for the most recent 
two years are reflected below: 
 

Retiree
Employee Health General
Benefits Insurance Insurance Total

Claims payable at       
September 30, 2013 (1,750,000)$     (240,000)$       (411,178)$       (2,401,178)$     

Current period claims and changes
in estimate (9,053,786)       (1,049,307)      (3,131,226)      (13,234,319)     

Current period claims paid 9,053,786         1,049,307       3,212,046        13,315,139       

Claims payable at       
September 30, 2014 (1,750,000)       (240,000)         (330,358)         (2,320,358)       

Current period claims and changes
in estimate (11,223,481)     (1,226,471)      (1,151,416)      (13,601,368)     

Current period claims paid 11,223,481       1,226,471       1,076,062        13,526,014       

Claims payable at       
September 30, 2015 (1,750,000)$    (240,000)$      (405,712)$       (2,395,712)$    

 
(B) Contingent liabilities  

 
Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by 
grantor agencies, principally the federal government.  Any disallowed claims, including 
amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds.  The amount, if 
any of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, 
although the City expects such amounts, if any to be immaterial. 
 
The City is a defendant in various lawsuits.  Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not 
presently determinable, in the opinion of the City’s management and legal counsel the 
resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of 
the City. 
 
The City has been granted authority from U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Service to operate 
an EB-5 Visa (also known as the Employment Based 5th Preference Visa) Regional Center, 
which attracts foreign investment for jobs creation in exchange for expediting applicants for 
permanent residency.  This activity is accounted for in a non-major governmental fund.  Under 
this program a foreign national deposits with the City—in addition to $10,000 application fee, 
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$540,000, which is held in deposit pending approval of permanent residency, at which time 
$40,000 is released to the City as an administrative fee and the remaining $500,000 to the 
investment project selected by applicant.  As of September 30, 2015, the deposit amount totaled 
$2,765,000.   
 

(C)  Accounting for post-employment benefits other than pensions 
 

(1) Plan Description: The City provides post-employment health care benefits for eligible 
retirees and their dependents.  To be eligible to elect retiree medical coverage, a City 
employee retiring at age 60 or over must have at least 10 years of service with the City.  
City employees retiring before age 60 must have at least 20 years of service with the 
City. Members of the City’s Fire Department are eligible to retire on or after age 50 
with at least 20 years of service with the City. 
 
Effective October 1, 2008, spouses must have been covered for at least three years prior 
to retirement, Retirees less than age 65 will have a one-time option to drop coverage 
and to be reinstated once the retiree reached age 65 and has enrolled in Medicare Parts 
A and B. Retirees are required to pay 100% of the blended (active and retiree) premium 
cost for both single and dependent coverage.  However, police officers who retired prior 
to October 1, 2010 with 25 or more years of service pay 50% of the blended premium 
cost for both single and dependent coverage.  As of year- end, there were 196 employees 
who had retired: 59 with single coverage and 137 dependent subscribers. 
 

(2) Funding Policy:  The policy of the City is to fund the plan on a pay-as-you-go basis.   
 

(3) Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation:  The Retiree Health Insurance Fund’s 
(Fund) ARC is actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB 
Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension.  The ARC represents a level of funding 
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and 
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to 
exceed 30 years. The most current actuarial valuation was October 1, 2014. The 
following table shows the Fund’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually 
contributed to the plan, and changes in the Fund’s net OPEB obligation.  This net OPEB 
obligation in the amount of $1,142,521 is recorded in the governmental activities 
column of the statement of net position.   
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Annual required contribution 751,799$        
Interest on net OPEB obligation 67,425            
Adjustment to annual required contribution (84,372)           

Annual OPEB cost 734,852          
Contributions made (818,249)         

Decrease in net OPEB obligation (83,397)           

Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year 1,225,918       

Net OPEB obligation at end of year 1,142,521$     

Net OPEB Obligation

 
 

The City’s annual OPEB cost and the percentage cost contributed to the plan for the 
year ended September 30, 2015 is as follows: 

Annual Percentage of Net OPEB
Year Ended OPEB Annual OPEB Obligation (Asset)

September 30, Cost Cost Contributed at Year End

2008 548,770$     136.6% (201,098)$             
2009 551,544       96.2% (179,896)               
2010 882,368       51.5% 248,430                
2011 876,453       63.1% 572,194                
2012 862,625       44.7% 1,049,270             
2013 845,460       90.3% 1,131,455             
2014 736,159       87.2% 1,225,918             
2015 734,852       111.3% 1,142,521              

 
(4) Funded Status and Funding Progress:  The funding of the plan was based on the actuarial 

valuation dated October 1, 2014.  The study reported the unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability (UAAL) at $8,137,801 with an annual required contribution of $751,799. The 
actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an UAAL of $8,137,801.  The City 
contributed $734,852 at year end. The City will also be required to have an actuarial 
valuation performed at least every two years.  
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The next actuarial valuation will be performed at the end of September 30, 2016.  The 
table below reflects the funding progress.  

 
Actuarial 

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

10/01/10 -                 8,076,583       8,076,583       0.0% 62,858,165        12.8%
10/01/12 -                 7,165,857       7,165,857       0.0% 62,616,631        11.4%
10/01/14 -                 8,137,801 8,137,801 0.0% 67,484,896 12.1%

 
(5) Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:  Projections of benefits for financial reporting 

purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and 
the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each 
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing the benefits costs between the employer 
and the plan members to that point.  The actuarial methods and assumptions used 
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in 
actuarial accrued liabilities consistent with the long-term perspective of the 
calculations.  For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, the actuarial valuation date 
was October 1, 2014.  The actuarial method used was the “projected unit credit” method, 
the amortization method used was the “level dollar open” method, and the remaining 
amortization period was 30 year open period.  The asset valuation method was market 
value and the assumed investment rate of return was 4.5%.  The healthcare initial 
inflation rate was 5.2%, with an ultimate goal of 4.2%.  Assumptions such as projected 
salary increases and post-retirement benefit increases are not applicable to the plan. 

 
(D) Retirement Plans  
 

   (1) Texas Municipal Retirement System 
 

a). Plan Description     
 

The City participates as one of 860 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, 
hybrid defined benefit pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal 
Retirement System (TMRS).  TMRS is an agency created by the State of Texas and 
administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas 
Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement 
system for municipal employees in the State of Texas.  The TMRS Act places the 
general administration and management of the System with a six-member Board of 
Trustees.  Although the Governor, with the advice and consent of the Senate, 
appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas.  TMRS’s 
defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401 (a) of the 
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Internal Revenue Code.  TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual 
financial report (CAFR) that can be obtained at www.tmrs.com. 
 
All eligible employees of the city are required to participate in TMRS.  Fire 
department personnel, except clerical staff, have a separate pension plan and are not 
covered by TMRS. 
 
b). Benefits provided 
 
TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits.  Benefit provisions are 
adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in the state 
statutes governing TMRS. 
 
At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee’s contributions, 
with interest, and the city-financed monetary credits with interest were used to 
purchase an annuity.  Members may also choose to receive a portion of their benefit 
as a Partial Lump Sum Distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly 
payments, which cannot exceed 75% of the member’s deposits and interest. 
 
Plan provisions for the City are as follows: 
 

Employee deposit rate 7.0% 
Matching ratio (city to employee) 2 to 1 
Years required for vesting 10 
Service retirement eligibility 
(expressed as age/years of service) 

60/10,0/20 
 

Updated Service Credit 100%,   
Transfers 

Annuity Increase (to retirees) 0% of CPI 
 
Employees covered by benefit terms – 
 
At the December 31, 2014 valuation and measurement date, the following 
employees were covered by the benefit terms: 
 
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 412 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 304 
Active employees 1,489
Total 2,205
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 c). Contributions 
 

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of 
employees gross earnings, and the city matching are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, 
both as adopted by the governing body of the city.  Under the state law governing 
TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the consulting 
actuary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method.  The actuarially 
determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits 
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any 
unfunded accrued liability. 
 
Employees for the City of McAllen were required to contribute 7% of their annual 
gross earnings during the fiscal year.  For fiscal year 2015, the City made 
contributions of 6.53%. 
 

          d). Net Pension Liability 
 
The City’s Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2014, 
and the Total Pension Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 
 
Actuarial assumptions-- 
 
Inflation 3.0% per year 
Overall payroll growth 3.0% per year 
Investment Rate of Return 7.0% per year composed of an assumed 3.0% 

inflation rate and a 4.0% net real rate of return 
 
Salary increases were based on a service-related table.  Mortality rates for active 
members, retirees, and beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 
Combined Health Mortality Table, with male rates multiplied by 109% and female 
rates multiplied by 103%.  The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by 
scale BB to account for future mortality improvements. 
 
Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2014, valuation were based on the 
results of actuarial experience studies.  This experience study was for the period 
January 1, 2006 through December 31, 2009, first used in the December 31, 2010 
valuation.  Healthy post-retirement mortality rates and annuity purchase rates were 
updated based on a Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 
through 2011, and dated December 31, 2013.  These assumptions were first used in 
the December 31, 2013 valuation, along with a change to the Entry Age Normal 
(EAN) actuarial cost method.  Assumptions are reviewed annually.  No additional 
changes were made for the 2014 valuation. 
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 7.0%.  The 
pension plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and 
may be amended the TMRS Board of Trustees.  Plan assets are managed on a total 
return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the production 
of income, in order to satisfy the short-term and the long-term funding needs of 
TMRS. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments were determined 
using a building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real 
rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and 
inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real 
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation.  The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return 
for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 
 

 
Asset Class 

 
Target Allocation

Long-Term Expected Real 
Rate of Return (Arithmetic) 

Domestic Equity 17.5% 4.80% 
International Equity 17.5% 6.05% 
Core Fixed Income 30.0% 1.50% 
Non-Core Fixed Income 10.0% 3.50% 
Real Return   5.0% 1.75% 
Real Estate 10.0% 5.25% 
Absolute Return   5.0% 4.25% 
Private Equity                      5.0% 8.50% 
Total 100.00%  

 
 

  Discount Rate–  
  
The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 7.0%.  The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed the employee 
contributions will remain at the current 7% and employer contributions will be made 
at the rates specified in statute.  Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s 
Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be available to make all projected future 
benefit payments of current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rated 
of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the Total Pension Liability. 
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Changes in the Net Pension Liability– 
 

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension

Liability Net Position Liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balance at 12/31/2013 201,245,807$  200,527,895$  717,912$        

Changes for the year:

Service cost 6,805,485       -                    6,805,485       

Interest 14,011,751      -                    14,011,751     

Difference between expected 

and actual experience 12,762            -                    12,762           

Changes in assumptions -                    -                    -                   

Contributions-employer -                    4,139,770       (4,139,770)      

Contributions-employee -                    4,367,657       (4,367,657)      

Net investment income -                    11,471,696      (11,471,696)    

Benefit payments, including

refunds of employee contributions (8,961,369)      (8,961,369)      -                   

Administrative expense (119,767)         119,767         

Other -                    (9,847)            9,847             

Net Changes 11,868,629      10,888,140      980,489         

Balance at 12/31/2014 213,114,436$  211,416,035$  1,698,401$     

  
Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate–   
 
The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the 
discount rate of 7.0%, as well as what the City’s net pension liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.0%) or 1-
percentage-point higher (8.0%) than the current rate: 
 
 1% Decrease 

in Discount 
Rate 
(6%) 

Current 
Discount Rate 

 
 (7%) 

1% Increase 
in Discount 

Rate  
(8%) 

 
City’s net pension liability 

 
$32,877,240 

 
$1,698,401 

 
$(23,904,963)

 
 
 

101



CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

September 30, 2015 
 
 

 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position– 
 
Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in a 
separately–issued TMRS financial report.  That report may be obtained on the Internet 
at www.tmrs.com.   
 

       e). Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows  
            of Resources Related to Pensions: 

 
For the year ended September 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of 
$3,057,135. 
 
At September 30, 2015, the City reported deferred outflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred

Outflows
of

Resources

Differences between expected

and actual experience 10,918$              

Difference between projected and

actual investment earnings 2,052,206            

Contributions subsequent to 

the measurement date 3,081,743            

Total 5,144,867$          

 
$3,081,743 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting 
from contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net pension liability for the measurement year ending September 30, 
2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized in future pension expense as follows: 
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Year ended
Dec 31

2015 514,895$    
2016 514,895      
2017 514,895      
2018 514,897      
2019 1,844          

Thereafter 1,698          

Total 2,063,124$

 
 

(2) Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund 
 

a). Plan Description     
 

Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund, a single-employer defined benefit plan (the 
“Plan”), was created pursuant to the Texas Local Fire Fighter’s Retirement Act 
(“TLFFRA”) and is administered by the Board of Trustees of the fund.  The fund 
provides pension, disability, death, and severance benefits to employees of the City’s 
fire department and former volunteer firemen eligible to receive benefits. 
 
At the September 30, 2015 valuation and measurement date, the following members 
were covered by the benefit terms: 

 
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 95 
Terminated employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits   7 
Active members 161 
Total 263 

 
The City issues a publicly-available financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information for the Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund.  
This financial report may be obtained by writing to the City of McAllen Finance 
Director, P.O. Box 220, McAllen, Texas 78505-0220 or by calling (956) 681-1081. 

 
b). Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 
Basis of Accounting – The financial statements of the Firemen’s Relief & Retirement 
Fund are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.  Employee and employer 
contributions are recognized as revenues when due, pursuant to formal commitments, 
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as well as statutory or contractual requirements.  Benefits and refunds are recognized 
when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan document. 
 
Plan Benefits – Benefit provisions are established under authority of the TLFFRA.  
Specific plan provisions are governed by a Plan document and a trust agreement 
executed by the Board of Trustees.  The Plan document may be amended as provided 
in Section 7 of the TLFFRA (Article 6243e. V.T.C.S.)  Amending the Plan requires 
approval of any proposed change by an eligible actuary and a majority of the 
participating members of the Plan.  Both the City and the members of the Plan have 
specific authority to appoint members of the Board under TLFFRA. 

 
Pension Benefits – A member is eligible for service retirement upon completion of 
20 years of service and attainment of age 50.  A member who retires under the 
service retirement provisions of the fund will receive a monthly benefit equal to the 
sum of (a), (b), and (c) where: (a) equal to 2.9 percent of the member’s highest 60-
month average salary for each of the member’s years of service up to and including 
the 20th year of service and (b) equals the greater of 2.9 percent of the member’s 
highest 60-month average salary, or $58.00 per month for each of the member’s 21st 
and 22nd years of service, and (c) equals $58.00 per month for each year of service 
in excess of 22 years. 
 
Disability Benefits – An active member who becomes disabled as defined in the plan 
will receive a monthly disability benefit.  Separate disability benefits are provided for 
duty-related and off-duty disabilities.  Disability benefits are payable in the same joint-
and-survivor form as service retirement benefits.  However, disability benefits stop if 
the member recovers to the point that he no longer meets the definition of disability 
under the fund.  If the total monthly amount a disabled member receives from (a) the 
fund, (b) workers compensation, and (c) the City of McAllen, exceeds the member’s 
monthly rate of pay as of his date of disability, the amount payable from the fund will 
be reduced so that the member’s benefit from all three sources, combined, does not 
exceed such rate of pay.  

 
Death Benefits – Duty-related death benefits, payable to a member’s spouse for as 
long as they are living, equal the sum of (a) 38.67% of the member’s highest 60-
month average salary, (b) plus two-thirds of any additional service benefit earned by 
the member as of the date of their death. The death benefit is payable for life, but it 
ceases upon remarriage.  Effective January 1, 2006 the widowed spouse of a member 
who completed 10 or more years of service prior to their death will have the death 
benefit payments terminated in the event of remarriage.  In addition to the above 
spousal death benefit, each unmarried child of the member will receive a monthly 
benefit of 7.73 percent of the fire fighter’s highest 60-month average salary.  Orphan 
benefits continue until the child reaches age 18.  However, benefits will continue until 
age 22 for a child who is a full-time student.  If the member’s spouse dies or remarries, 
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or if the member has no spouse on the date of their death, each eligible orphan will 
receive a monthly benefit of 15.47 percent of the member’s highest 60-month average 
salary.  Orphan benefits are continued for life to disabled children. The total of all 
benefits paid as a result of the death of an active fund member may not exceed the 
disability or retirement benefits such member had earned as of the date of their death.  
The total of all benefits paid as a result of the death of a retired member may not 
exceed the retirement benefit the member was receiving as of the date of their death.  
Benefits are reduced pro rata, if necessary, in order to satisfy these limitations. 

 
Severance Benefits – Members who terminate employment with less than 10 years of 
service will be entitled to the return of the excess of their contributions to the fund 
over the amount of any benefits they have received from the Plan.  Such refunds will 
not include any interest on the members’ contributions.  If members terminate on or 
after the date they have completed 10 years of service but prior to the date they 
complete 20 years of service, they will be entitled to receive a monthly benefit, 
starting on the date they would have both completed 20 years of service and attained 
age 50, had they remained in the service of the fire department.  The amount the 
members will receive will equal the monthly service retirement benefit they had 
accumulated on the date they separated from service with the fire department, 
multiplied by the vested percentage of the members. 
 
The Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) – A member is eligible to receive 
their benefits under the plan’s DROP provision after they have both completed 20 
years of service and attained age 53.  The election to participate in the DROP may 
be made at the time the member elects to retire.  The monthly retirement income 
payable to a member who retires under the DROP will equal their service retirement 
benefits under the plan based on highest 60-month average salary and years of 
service as of the member’s DROP Eligibility Date.  The member’s benefit will be 
calculated, however using the benefit formula in effect on the member’s actual date 
of retirement.  A members DROP Eligibility Date is the later of (a) the date the 
member meets the eligibility requirements for the DROP or (b) the date which is 
two years prior to the member’s actual retirement date:  Upon retirement, the 
member will receive—in addition to their monthly retirement benefit—a single 
payment equal to the sum of: (a.)  the total of the monthly retirement benefits the 
member would have received between his DROP Eligibility Date and the time they 
retired under the plan, and (b.)  the amount of monthly contributions that the 
member has made to the fund between their DROP Eligibility Date and the time 
they retired under the plan.  
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Method Used to Value Investments – The Plan’s investments are stated at fair value 
and, accordingly, unrealized appreciation and depreciation are reported in the 
statement of changes in fiduciary net position.  The fair value of money market funds 
is considered to be the same as the cost of these investments due to their nature.  The 
fair value of common stocks and foreign equities are based on quoted market prices. 
The fair value of United States Government securities and corporate and foreign 
bonds are based on quotes from broker dealers.  The Plan values investments in 
alternative funds based on its percentage investment in each such fund.  The estimated 
fair value of each fund is based on market conditions and information reported by the 
fund manager, and is generally based on the estimated fair value of each funds’ 
underlying investments at the end of the reporting period. 
 
Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on a trade-date basis and, 
accordingly, the related receivables and payables for any unsettled trades are 
recorded.  Interest income and dividends are recorded on the accrual basis. 

 
  

d). Net Pension Liability 
 
Total pension liability is developed by subtracting the present value of future 
service costs from the present value of future benefits.  The net pension liability 
is calculated by subtracting the plan fiduciary net position from the pension 
liability. The components of the net pension liability of the Plan at September 30, 
2015 were as follows: 

 

 

Total pension liability 68,453,587$            
Plan fiduciary net pension 42,300,964              

Net pension liability 26,152,623$            

Fiduciary net position
as a percentage of total pension liability 61.80%

Covered payroll 11,365,262              

Net pension liability as a % of 
covered payroll 230.11%  
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Actuarial Assumptions -  
 

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of October 
1, 2014 and rolled forward to the measurement date of September 30, 2015, the 
Plan’s fiscal year end. 

 

            

Valuation date October 1, 2014

Measurement date September 30, 2015

Actuarial cost method Entry age

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, open

Equivalent single amortization period of

the unfunded liabilities 29.0 years

Asset valuation method Five-year smoothed value with a 
20% of market value corridor

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.5% per annum, compunded annualy
Projected salary increases 4.00% to 8.60%, including inflation 

based on service at attained age 
(fund specific)

Inflation 3.00% per year

Cost-of-living adjustment None

Mortality Employee and health annuitant 
combined rates from the RP-2000 
Mortality Table, projected to 2015 
using Scale AA, with separate rates 
for males and females

Other information There have been no benefit changes 
since the October 1, 2014 valuation 
date  
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The investment rate of return and the projected salary increases both used the same 
assumptions with regard to inflation.  Best estimates of long-term real rates of return 
for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of 
September 30, 2015 are summaries in the table below: 

Long-term expected
Asset class Target allocation real rate of return

Cash 0.00% 0.68%

Fixed income 29.00% 3.00%
Equities

(a) Domestic 39.00% 7.36%
(b) International 16.00% 5.25%

Alternative investments 16.00% 3.00%  
 

Discount Rate– 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%.  The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rate and 
that contributions from the City will be made at contractually required rates.  Based 
on this assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.  
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return pension plan investments was applied 
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.  
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Changes in the Net Pension Liability– Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund Plan 
 

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension

Liability Net Position Liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balance at 9/30/2014 68,108,494$    45,283,836$    22,824,658$   

Changes for the year:

Service cost 1,824,526       -                    1,824,526       

Interest 4,884,830       -                    4,884,830       

Difference between expected 

and actual experience 221,439          -                    221,439         

Changes in assumptions (3,414,995)      -                    (3,414,995)      

Benefit payments, including

refunds of member contributions (3,170,707)      (3,170,707)      -                   

Contributions-employer -                    1,477,483       (1,477,483)      

Contributions-members -                    1,223,445       (1,223,445)      

Expected net investment income -                    3,376,943       (3,376,943)      

Gain or (loss) due to difference in

projected vs actual earnings -                    (5,843,966)      5,843,966       

Expected administrative expense (46,070)          46,070           

Other -                    -                    -                   

Net Changes 345,093          (2,982,872)      3,327,965       

Balance at 9/30/2015 68,453,587$    42,300,964$    26,152,623$   

  
Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate–   
 
The following presents the net pension liability of the Plan, calculated using the 
discount rate of 7.50%, as well as what the Plan’s net pension liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.50%) or 1-
percentage-point higher (8.50%) than the current rate: 
 
 1% Decrease in 

Discount Rate 
(6.50%) 

Current 
Discount Rate 

(7.50%) 

1% Increase in 
Discount Rate 

(8.5%) 
Plan’s net 
pension liability 

 
$34,548,819 

 
$26,152,623 

 
$19,127,012 
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Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions: 
 
For the year ended September 30, 2015, the Plan recognized pension expense of 
$990,721. 
 
At September 30, 2015, the Plan reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

 
Deferred Deferred

Outflows Inflows
of of

Resources Resources

Differences between expected

and actual experience 209,092$             -$                

Changes in actuarial assumptions -                     3,224,576      

Difference between projected and

actual investment earnings 4,675,173            -               

Total 4,884,265$          3,224,576$    
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year ended
Sept 30

2016 990,721$    
2017 990,721      
2018 990,721      
2019 990,722      
2020 (178,072)     

2021-2025 (890,360)     
2026-2030 (890,360)     
2031-2032 (344,404)     

Total 1,659,689$ 

 
d). Contributions 

 
The Plan’s minimum required contribution provisions are established under Title 8, Subtitle A, 
Chapter 802, Subchapter B, Section 802.101 of the Texas Government Code and under Texas 
Pension Review Board Guidelines for Actuarial Soundness.  Specific Plan contribution rates are 
governed by the Plan document.  Changes in the members’ or the City’s contribution rate requires 
a plan amendment. 

 
The contribution rates of the Plan members and the City are established under the terms of the 
Plan.  An actuarial valuation is performed biennially to verify that Plan benefits and Plan 
contributions are in balance.  Costs of administering the fund are paid from Plan assets. 

 
Pursuant to the Plan document, a legal instrument binding both the City and its firefighters, the 
City of McAllen is required to match employee contributions.  Benefits paid to former volunteer 
firefighters are funded by the City when paid to the former volunteer firefighters or beneficiaries.  
The City’s contribution rate for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015 was 13.25% of annual 
compensation.  Contributions required and paid into the fund as of September 30, 2015 were 
members, $1,223,445 and employer, $1,477,483. 

 
e). Other pension information 

  
In September 2003, Texas voters approved an amendment to the Texas Constitution, which 
provided that once certain benefits are granted to retirees, those benefits may not be 
subsequently reduced.  It was codified as Article XVI, Section 66, of the Texas Constitution.  
The amendment applies only to the City of McAllen Firefighters’ Relief and Retirement Plan.  
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It further provided that the City and the retirement system that finance benefits under the 
retirement system are jointly responsible for ensuring that benefits are not reduced or otherwise 
impaired, which could potentially require the City to involuntarily increase its funding due to 
under-performing investments, plan improvements as well as other factors outside the control 
of the City.  The amendment also permitted the City to be exempt from its requirements upon 
holding an election in which the majority of the votes favored the exemption.  On May 15, 
2004, a special City election was held, in which the majority of the voters voted in favor of 
exempting the City of McAllen and the McAllen Firefighters’ Relief and Retirement Plan from 
the application of this amendment, Article XVI, Section 66 of the Texas Constitution.   
 

E) Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Number One  
 

On December 22, 2014, the City Commission passed a resolution establishing Tax Increment 
Reinvestment Zone Number One, City of McAllen, Texas (TIRZ#1) containing 
approximately 2,571 acres of land located in the northern most area of the City’s jurisdictional 
limits and designating the area as a reinvestment zone being commonly referred to as the 
“Tres Lagos Development Project”. The City has committed to contribute to the Tax Increment 
Fund created for TIRZ#1 80% of its tax increment derived from the City's maintenance and 
operations ad valorem taxes generated therein for 30 years. The amount to be contributed to 
TIRZ #1 is based upon the incremental increase in the appraised value each January 1st 
compared to the base year appraised value of property in the Zone as of January 1, 2014. On 
November 18, 2014, the Commissioners Court of Hidalgo County passed and approved a 
Resolution of Intent to Participate in TIRZ#1 by pledging 77% of its maintenance and 
operation portion of the County’s assessed and collected taxes during the term of TIRZ #1. 
The amount contributed by both taxing entities will be set aside for capital improvement 
projects within TIRZ #1 beginning with taxes levied after January 1, 2015.  As of September 
30, 2015, there was no activity to report for TIRZ #1.  
 

(F) Public Improvement District (PID)  
 

On April 15, 2015, the City Commission adopted a resolution creating the Tres Lagos Public 
Improvement District (PID) for the purpose of financing the costs of maintaining 
improvements, and providing services within and/or related to the Tres Lagos Development 
Project. As of September 30, 2015, there was no activity to report for the Tres Lagos PID. 
 

 
(G) Subsequent events  

 
• On October 26, 2015, the City sold a 2.42 acre parcel of land to a developer at a sale price of  

$952,246 to build a hotel at the Convention Center area complex.  This contemporary hotel will 
feature 99 suites. It is the fourth hotel to be located at the McAllen Convention Center site.  
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• Preliminary stages of construction has begun on Tres Lagos, McAllen’s newest upscale, 
master-planned community. The City is soliciting bids for the community’s spine 
infrastructure, the backbone to delivering gigabyte speed internet and other technological 
features of the development. Tres Lagos is a 2,571-acre planned community located in 
McAllen’s extraterritorial jurisdiction. 

 
• The City closed on the sale of Civic Center property on February 26, 2016. The intent of the 

developer is to build an upscale retail destination within the south McAllen jurisdiction.  
 

• On December 14, 2015, the City created a second TIRZ known as Tax Increment Reinvestment 
Zone Number Two, City of McAllen, Texas (TIRZ#2). This second TIRZ covers approximately 
1,702 acres located in the south central area of City. The City has committed to contribute to 
the Tax Increment Fund created for TIRZ#2 60% of its tax increment derived from the City's 
maintenance and operations ad valorem taxes generated therein for 20 years. 
 

• On December 30, 2015, the City passed an ordinance approving and adopting an Amended 
Service and Assessment Plan and Assessment Roll for the Tres Lagos Public Improvement 
District (PID) to add a debt service assessment (DSA) to facilitate the funding of capital 
improvements for the PID.  
 

• Pursuant to TMRS policy of conducting experience studies every four year, the 
TMRS Board at their July 31, 2015 meeting determined that they would be changing certain 
actuarial assumptions including reducing the long term expected rate of  return from the 
current 7% to 6.75% and changing the inflation assumption from 3% to 2.5%. Reduction of 
expected investment return and related discount rate will increase projected pension liabilities. 
Reducing the inflation assumption reduces liabilities as future annuity levels and future cost of 
living adjustments are not projected to be as large as originally projected. While the actual 
impact on the City’s valuation for December 31, 2015 is not known, the City does expect 
some downward pressure on its funded status and upward pressure on its 2017 actuarially 
determined contribution.            
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 City of McAllen, Texas 
Required Supplementary Information-(Unaudited) 

Texas Municipal Retirement System 
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios  

Last Fiscal Year (Previous years unavailable) 
Measurement

Year

2014
Total pension liability:

Service cost 6,805,485$      

Interest(on the total pension liability) 14,011,751      

Changes of benefit terms -                

Difference between expected and actual experience 12,762            

Change in assumptions -                

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (8,961,369)      

Net change in total pension liability 11,868,629      

Total pension liability - beginning 201,245,807    

Total pension liability - ending (a) 213,114,436$  

Plan fiduciary net position:

Contributions - employer 4,139,770$      

Contributions - employee 4,367,657       

Net investment income 11,471,696      

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (8,961,369)      

Administrative expense (119,767)         

Other (9,847)            

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 10,888,140      

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 200,527,895    

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 211,416,035$  

Net pension liability - ending (a) - (b) 1,698,401$      

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

of total pension liability 99.20%

Covered employee payroll 62,261,492$    

Net pension liability as a percentage

of covered employee payroll 2.73%
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City of McAllen, Texas 
Required Supplementary Information – (Unaudited) 

Texas Municipal Retirement System 
Schedule of Contributions  

Fiscal Year 2015 (Previous years unavailable) 

(2) (5)
Contribution Contributions as

(1) in relation to (3) a percentage 
the Contribution (4) of covered

Actuarial actuarially excess Covered employee
Fiscal determined determined (deficiency) employee payroll
Year contribution contribution (2) -(1) payroll (2)/(4)

2015 4,200,690$       4,200,685$            (5)$               64,045,229$     6.56%  
 
Notes to Schedule: 
 
Valuation Date: Actuarial determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31st and 
become effective in January, 13 months later. 
 
Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rate for 2015: 
 
Actuarial Cost Method   Entry Age Normal 

Amortization Method     Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed 

Remaining Amortization Period  12 years 

Asset Valuation Method   10 Year smoothed market; 15% soft corridor 

Inflation    3.0% 

Salary Increases   3.50% to 12.00% including inflation 

Investment Rate of Return  7.00% 

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the 
City's plan of benefits. Last updated for the 2010 valuation 
pursuant to an experience study of the period 2005 – 2009. 

 
Mortality RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar 

Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109% and female 
rates multiplied by 103% and projected on a fully 
generational basis with scale BB. 

 
Other Information: There were no benefit changes during the year.  
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City of McAllen, Texas 
Required Supplementary Information – (Unaudited) 

Firemen's Relief and Retirement Fund 
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios  

Measurement

Year

2015
Total pension liability:

Service cost 1,824,526$      

Interest(on the total pension liability) 4,884,830       

Changes of benefit terms -                

Difference between expected and actual experience 221,439          

Change in assumptions (3,414,995)      

Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (3,170,707)      

Net change in total pension liability 345,093          

Total pension liability - beginning 68,108,494      

Total pension liability - ending (a) 68,453,587$    

Plan fiduciary net position:

Contributions - employer 1,477,483$      

Contributions - members 1,223,445       

Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (3,170,707)      

Expected net investment income 3,376,943       

Gain or (loss) due to difference in projected vs actual earnings (5,843,966)      

Expected Administrative expense (46,070)          

Net change in plan fiduciary net position (2,982,872)      

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 45,283,836      

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 42,300,964$    

Net pension liability - ending (a) - (b) 26,152,623$    

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

of total pension liability 61.80%

Covered employee payroll 11,365,262$    

Net pension liability as a percentage

of covered employee payroll 230.11%
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City of McAllen, Texas 
Required Supplementary Information – (Unaudited) 

Firemen's Relief and Retirement Fund 
Schedule of Contributions 

Fiscal Year 2015 (Previous years unavailable) 
 

(2) (5)
Contribution Contributions as

(1) in relation to (3) a percentage 
the Contribution (4) of covered

Actuarial actuarially excess Covered employee
Fiscal determined determined (deficiency) employee payroll
Year contribution contribution (2) -(1) payroll (2)/(4)

2015 1,477,483$       1,477,483$            -$                 11,365,262$     13.00%  
 
Valuation Date: Actuarial determined contribution rates are calculated as of October 1st. 
 
Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rate for 2015: 
 
Actuarial Cost Method   Entry Age  

Amortization Method     Level Percentage of Pay, Open 

Remaining Amortization Period  29 years 

Asset Valuation Method   5 Year smoothed market; 20% soft corridor 

Inflation    3.0% 

Salary Increases 4.00% to 8.60% including inflation based on service at 
attained age  

      

Investment Rate of Return  7.75% 

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the 
Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund 

 
Mortality Employee and healthy annuitant combined rates from RP-

2000 Mortality Table, projected to 2024 using Scale AA, 
with separate rates for males and females. 

 
Other Information:  There were no benefit changes during the year.  
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City of McAllen, Texas 
Required Supplementary Information – (Unaudited) 

Post Employment Benefit Plan 
Schedule of Funding Progress  

 
 
 

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

10/01/06 -$                    4,568,795$            4,568,795$   0.0% 51,690,160$   8.8%
10/01/08 -                      7,253,404              7,253,404     0.0% 60,443,815     12.0%
10/01/10 -                      8,076,583              8,076,583     0.0% 62,858,165     12.8%
10/01/12 -                      7,165,857              7,165,857     0.0% 62,616,631     11.4%
10/01/14 -                      8,137,801              8,137,801     0.0% 67,484,896     12.1%

Refer to page 97 of the notes to financial statements for the actuarial assumptions of the plan.

This is a "single-employer" plan and no separate financial report is issued by the City.
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City of McAllen, Texas 
Required Supplementary Information – (Unaudited) 

Post Employment Benefit Plan 
Schedule of Employer Contributions 

Last Eight Fiscal Years 
 
 

Annual
Fiscal OPEB Actual Percentage
Year Cost Contribution Contributed

2008 548,770$ 749,433$       136.6%
2009 551,544   530,342         96.2%
2010 882,368   454,042         51.5%
2011 876,453   552,689         63.1%
2012 862,625   385,549         44.7%
2013 845,460   763,275         90.3%
2014 736,159   641,696         87.2%
2015 734,852   818,249         111.3%   
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Capital Projects Funds:

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for resources allocated to specific purposes.  A special revenue 
fund continues in existence as long as governmental resources are allocated to its specific purposes:

The Community Development Fund was established to account for receipt and disbursement of 
Federal Program revenues.

The Miscellaneous Government Grants Fund was established to account for all grant programs 
applicable to the City for which a separate fund is not established.

The Downtown Services Parking Fund was established to account for revenues and disbursements 
associated with the activities of vehicular parking in the downtown district.

The Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund was established to account for the hotel-motel occupancy tax 
levied.  This tax revenue is allocated to the promotion of tourism and conventions, promotion of the 
arts, support of convention center and civic center management, and other expenditures.

The Hotel Venue Project Fund was established to account for funding under Ordinance 2012-69 
for a  2%  Hotel Occupancy tax for a Performing Arts Facility.

The McAllen EB5 Regional Center Fund was established to account for revenues and expenditures 
to operate an EB-Regional Center under the U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS).

The Parkland Zones Development Fund was established to account for land acquired for future 
park development.

Performing Arts G.O. Construction Fund was established to account for all expenditures related to 
the construction of the Performing Arts Center as funded with General Obligation Funds Series 

Sports Facility Construction Fund was established to account for all expenditures related to the 
construction of 12 fields for youth and adult baseball.

The PD Seized Fund was established to account for court awarded funds and use for purchase of 
police department capital assets .

Information Technology Fund was established to account for all expenditures related to the 
implementation of strategic technology projects.

The Debt Service Fund was established to retired general government debt.

The PEG Fund (Public, Educational and Government) was established to account for the revenue 
and expenditures related to the programming fees provided by various cable subscribers.

Street Improvements Construction Fund was established to account for all expenditures related to 
the construction of intersections and street improvement projects.

Performing Arts C.O.  Construction Fund was established to account for all expenditures related 
to the construction of the Performing Arts Center as funded with Certificate of Obligation Series 



Hotel 
Occupancy Tax

Hotel Venue 
Project

McAllen EB-5 
Regional 
Center Parkland Zones

Community 
Development

Miscellaneous 
Government 

Grants

Downtown 
Services 
Parking

ASSETS

Cash 33,496$              186,734$            189,613$            50,395$              8,989$                12,055$              43,408$              

Certificate of deposit - - - - - - -

Investments 4 44,967 2,760,829 1,159,031 - - 526,926

Receivables:

 Accounts 297,976 85,143 - - - - 7

 Taxes - - - - - - -

 Accrued interest - - - 36 - - -

 Other - - - - - - 600

Due from other governments - - - - 309,901 189,376 -

Total assets 331,476$            316,844$            2,950,442$        1,209,462$        318,890$            201,431$            570,941$            

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 87,637$              -$                        -$                        -$                        301,683$            1,584$                30,470$              

Accrued liabilities - 42,590 4,322 - 17,207 - 26,893

Due to other funds 218,909 - - - - 183,254 -

Advances from other funds - - - - - - -

Other liabilities - - 2,765,000 - - - 17

  Total liabilities 306,546 42,590 2,769,322 - 318,890 184,838 57,380

Deferred inflows of resources - - - - - - -

Total liabilities and deferred inflows 306,546 42,590 2,769,322 - 318,890 184,838 57,380

FUND BALANCES

Restricted 24,930 274,254 181,120 1,209,462 - 16,593 -

Committed - - - - - - 513,561

Assigned - - - - - - -

Total fund balances 24,930 274,254 181,120 1,209,462 - 16,593 513,561

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
    of resources and fund balances 331,476$            316,844$            2,950,442$        1,209,462$        318,890$            201,431$            570,941$            

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

 September 30, 2015

Special Revenue
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PD Seized

Public 
Education 

Governmental Total Debt Service
Information 
Technology

Street 
Improvements

Performing 
Arts-G.O.

Performin 
Arts-C.O.

Sports 
Facilities

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds

15,508$              5,197$                545,395$            36,150$         14,980$        6,104$              44,064$           70,734$           -$                     717,427$          

- - - - - 10,588,150 4,953,600 7,896,750 11,151,650 34,590,150

6,589,943 560,181 11,641,881 596,554 606,742 3,543,593 2,127,866 5,481,177 3,361,950 27,359,763

-

- - 383,126 - - - - - - 383,126

- - - 117,756 - - - - - 117,756

3,893 - 3,929 - - 3,661 715 3,918 6,655 18,878

- - 600 - - - - - - 600

- - 499,277 - - - - - - 499,277

6,609,344$        565,378$            13,074,208$      750,460$       621,722$      14,141,508$    7,126,245$      13,452,579$    14,520,255$    63,686,977$    

218,066$            -$                        639,440$            -$                   10,776$        191,991$          1,003,448$      621$                949$                1,847,225

136,013 - 227,025 - - - 674,191 - - 901,216

- - 402,163 - - - - - 11,366 413,529

- - - - - - - - - -

- - 2,765,017 - - - - - - 2,765,017

354,079 - 4,033,645 - 10,776 191,991 1,677,639 621 12,315 5,926,987

- - - 117,757 - - - - - 117,757

354,079 - 4,033,645 117,757 10,776 191,991 1,677,639 621 12,315 6,044,744

6,255,265 565,378 8,527,002 632,703 - 13,949,517 5,448,606 13,451,958 14,507,940 56,517,726

- - 513,561 - - - - - - 513,561

- - - - 610,946 - - - - 610,946

6,255,265 565,378 9,040,563 632,703 610,946 13,949,517 5,448,606 13,451,958 14,507,940 57,642,233

6,609,344$        565,378$            13,074,208$      750,460$       621,722$      14,141,508$    7,126,245$      13,452,579$    14,520,255$    63,686,977$    

 

Special Revenue Capital Projects
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Hotel 
Occupancy Tax

Hotel Venue 
Project

McAllen EB-5 
Regional 
Center Parkland Zones

Community 
Development

Miscellaneous 
Government 

Grants

Downtown 
Services 
Parking

REVENUES

Hotel taxes 4,262,268$        1,217,451$        -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

Property taxes - - - - - - -

Franchise taxes - - - - - - -

Licenses and permits - - - - - - 16,387

Intergovernmental - - - - 2,223,150 634,281 -

Charges for services - - - - - - 1,104,240

Fines and forfeitures - - - - - - 196,725

Investment earnings 14 808 - 2,737 - (2) 331
Net increase (decrease)

in the fair value of investments - - - 1,046 - - -

Other - - - 242,495 - 188,890 8,349

Total revenues 4,262,282 1,218,259 - 246,278 2,223,150 823,169 1,326,032

EXPENDITURES

Current:

 General government 1,217,791 - 12,975 - 333,167 - -

 Public safety - - - - - 824,184 -

 Highways and streets - - - - 95,259 - 963,097

 Health and welfare - - - - 1,122,351 - -

 Culture and recreation - - - - 672,373 570 -

 Debt service:

  Principal - 205,000 - - - - -

  Interest and fiscal charges - 654,834 - - - - -

 Total expenditures 1,217,791 859,834 12,975 - 2,223,150 824,754 963,097

 Excess (deficency) of revenues

 over (under) expenditures 3,044,491 358,425 (12,975) 246,278 - (1,585) 362,935

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in - - 190,000 - - - -

  Transfers out (3,044,477) (2,078,809) - - - - (237,000)

  Issuance of debt - - - - - - -

  Bond premium - - - - - - -

  Net other financing sources (uses) (3,044,477) (2,078,809) 190,000 - - - (237,000)

  Net change in fund balances 14 (1,720,384) 177,025 246,278 - (1,585) 125,935

Fund balances at beginning of year 24,916 1,994,638 4,095 963,184 - 18,178 387,626

Fund balances at end of year 24,930$             274,254$           181,120$           1,209,462$        -$                      16,593$             513,561$           

Special Revenue

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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PD Seized

Public 
Education 

Government Total Debt Service
Information 
Technology

Street 
Improvements

Performing 
Arts-G.O.

Performing 
Arts-C.O.

Sports 
Facilities

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds

-$                      -$                      5,479,719$        -$                      -$                          -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      5,479,719$        

- - - 3,283,041 - - - - - 3,283,041

- 140,162 140,162 - - - - - - 140,162

- - 16,387 - - - - - - 16,387

- - 2,857,431 - - - - - - 2,857,431

- - 1,104,240 - - - - - - 1,104,240

3,712,769 - 3,909,494 - - - - - - 3,909,494

48,732 181 52,801 813 4,961 46,168 50,586 35,521 49,156 240,006

- - 1,046 - 759 - - - - 1,805

- - 439,734 - - - 5,029 9,295 - 454,058

3,761,501 140,343 14,001,014 3,283,854 5,720 46,168 55,615 44,816 49,156 17,486,343

- 70,778 1,634,711 - 399,514 - - - - 2,034,225

1,964,782 - 2,788,966 - - - - - - 2,788,966

- - 1,058,356 - - 1,059,739 - - - 2,118,095

- - 1,122,351 - - - - - - 1,122,351

- - 672,943 - - 4,693 12,124,280 6,417 14,386 12,822,719

- - 205,000 19,623,534 - - - - - 19,828,534

- - 654,834 3,143,140 - - - - - 3,797,974

1,964,782 70,778 8,137,161 22,766,674 399,514 1,064,432 12,124,280 6,417 14,386 44,512,864

1,796,719 69,565 5,863,853 (19,482,820) (393,794) (1,018,264) (12,068,665) 38,399 34,770 (27,026,521)

- 495,813 685,813 3,507,300 - - 2,490,809 1,300,504 - 7,984,426

- - (5,360,286) - - - - - - (5,360,286)

- - - 15,035,000 - - - - - 15,035,000

- - - 1,281,031 - - - - - 1,281,031

- 495,813 (4,674,473) 19,823,331 - - 2,490,809 1,300,504 - 18,940,171

1,796,719 565,378 1,189,380 340,511 (393,794) (1,018,264) (9,577,856) 1,338,903 34,770 (8,086,350)

4,458,546 - 7,851,183 292,192 1,004,740 14,967,781 15,026,462 12,113,055 14,473,170 65,728,583

6,255,265$        565,378$           9,040,563$        632,703$           610,946$               13,949,517$      5,448,606$        13,451,958$      14,507,940$      57,642,233$      

 

Special Revenue Capital Projects
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These funds are used to account for City operations that are financed and/or operated in a manner similar 
to private business enterprises.  Included in this category are:  Palm View Golf Course; Civic Center; 
Transit Terminal; and McAllen Express.

The Palm View Golf Course Fund is utilized to account for the operations of the City's golf course.

The Civic Center Fund is utilized to account for the operations of a cultural center.

The Transit Terminal Fund is utilized to account for the operations of the Intermodal Transportation System.

The McAllen Express Fund is utilized to account for the operations of the Bus Transportation System.



Palm View 
Golf Course Civic Center

McAllen 
Express 
Transit

Transit 
Terminal Total

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash 179,836$           43,827$            78,540$            158,103$           460,306$          
Certificate of deposit 60,000 - - - 60,000
Investments 524,357 1,859,195 1,010,474 1,501,121 4,895,147
Receivables, net:
  Accounts 52 - 3,430 - 3,482
  Accrued interest - 972 486 480 1,938
Due from other funds - 43,782 - 319,420 363,202

Due from other governments - - 117,123 652,403 769,526

  Total currents assets 764,245 1,947,776 1,210,053 2,631,527 6,553,601

Restricted assets:
Cash 126,264 25,000 - - 151,264
Investments 120,898 13,627 - - 134,525

   Total restricted assets 247,162 38,627 - - 285,789

Capital assets:
Land 187,995 358,070 - 1,684,593 2,230,658
Buildings and systems 228,345 1,454,607 - 5,624,288 7,307,240
Improvements other than buildings 7,717,383 1,283,398 489,143 2,299,400 11,789,324
Machinery and equipment 1,508,947 552,758 5,380,849 3,237,966 10,680,520

  Total capital assets 9,642,670 3,648,833 5,869,992 12,846,247 32,007,742
    Less accumulated depreciation (6,365,646) (2,600,136) (3,774,834) (3,083,312) (15,823,928)

    Net capital assets 3,277,024 1,048,697 2,095,158 9,762,935 16,183,814

    Total assets 4,288,431 3,035,100 3,305,211 12,394,462 23,023,204

Deferred outflows of resources - pensions 45,790 - 114,730 10,289 170,809

 Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 4,334,221$        3,035,100$        3,419,941$        12,404,751$      23,194,013$      

CITY OF McALLEN , TEXAS

NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

 September 30, 2015
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Palm View 
Golf Course Civic Center

McAllen 
Express 
Transit

Transit 
Terminal Total

CITY OF McALLEN , TEXAS

NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

 September 30, 2015

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 46,535$             13,411$            119,300$          718,122$           897,368$          

Accrued expenses 33,084 - 68,519 181,675 283,278

Compensated absences 22,653 - - - 22,653
Other - 39 - - 39

  Total current liabilities 102,272 13,450 187,819 899,797 1,203,338

Liabilities(payable from restricted assets):

Accounts payable 17,697 - - - 17,697

  Total liabilities(payable from restricted assets) 17,697 - - - 17,697

Other noncurrent liabilities:

Unearned revenues 84,922 17,173 - - 102,095

Compensated absences 60,123 - 67,032 1,883 129,038

Net pension liability 15,116 - 37,874 3,397 56,387

  Total other noncurrent liabilities 160,161 17,173 104,906 5,280 287,520

Total liabilities 280,130$           30,623$             292,725$           905,077$           1,508,555$        

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 3,277,024 1,048,697 2,095,158 9,762,935 16,183,814

Restricted for improvements - 38,627 - - 38,627

Unrestricted 777,067 1,917,153 1,032,058 1,736,739 5,463,017

Total net position 4,054,091 3,004,477 3,127,216 11,499,674 21,685,458

Total liabilities and net position 4,334,221$        3,035,100$        3,419,941$        12,404,751$      23,194,013$      
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Palm View Golf 
Course Civic Center

McAllen 
Express 
Transit

Transit 
Terminal Total

 

Operating revenues:

 Charges for services 928,601$           264,835$           550,054$       39,733$             1,783,223$    

 Rentals - 105,392 193,811 - 299,203

 Other 335,468 13,490 320,344 3,105 672,407

  Total operating revenues 1,264,069 383,717 1,064,209 42,838 2,754,833

Operating expenses:

 Salaries, wages and employee benefits 706,948 - 1,804,831 155,565 2,667,344

 Supplies 107,704 12,555 43,244 - 163,503

 Contractual and other services 153,518 311,905 598,110 383,890 1,447,423

 Repairs and maintenance 84,204 29,229 445,427 307,106 865,966

 Depreciation and amortization 290,928 67,976 662,641 578,247 1,599,792

  Total operating expenses 1,343,302 421,665 3,554,253 1,424,808 6,744,028

  Operating loss (79,233) (37,948) (2,490,044) (1,381,970) (3,989,195)

Nonoperating revenues:

 Intergovernmental - - 904,096 424,171 1,328,267

 Investment earnings 3,012 10,243 3,413 5,716 22,384

 Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments 240 987 64 3,174 4,465

 Other - - - 505 505

  Nonoperating revenues 3,252 11,230 907,573 433,566 1,355,621

  Loss before contributions and transfers (75,981) (26,718) (1,582,471) (948,404) (2,633,574)

Capital contributions - - 77,514 3,057,983 3,135,497

Transfers in - 608,895 846,574 988,141 2,443,610

Transfers out - (412,000) - - (412,000)

    Change in net position (75,981) 170,177 (658,383) 3,097,720 2,533,533

Total net position beginning of year, restated 4,130,072 2,834,300 3,785,599 8,401,954 19,151,925

Total net position--ending 4,054,091$        3,004,477$        3,127,216$    11,499,674$      21,685,458$  

CITY OF McALLEN , TEXAS

NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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McAllen  
International McAllen

Palm View Civic Express Transit
Golf Course Center Transit Terminal Total

Cash flows from operating activities:

  Receipts from customers 1,264,040$          386,122$          1,066,363$        43,703$                2,760,228$       

  Payments to employees (734,147)             -                       (1,917,972)        (167,377)              (2,819,496)       

  Payments to suppliers (332,309)             (475,013)          (1,083,638)        (604,443)              (2,495,403)       

  Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 197,584               (88,891)            (1,935,247)        (728,117)              (2,554,671)       

Cash flows from noncapital financing

  activities:

   Transfers from other funds 608,895            846,574             316,005                1,771,474         

   Transfers to other funds (412,000)          -                        -                           (412,000)          

   Subsidy from federal grant -                           -                       969,131             3,309,861             4,278,992         

    Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities -                           196,895            1,815,705          3,625,866             5,638,466         

Cash flows from capital and related

  financing activities:

   Payments for capital acquisitions (249,039)             -                       (39,846)             (2,525,923)           (2,814,808)       

     Cash used by capital and related financing activities (249,039)             -                       (39,846)             (2,525,923)           (2,814,808)       

Cash flows from investing activities:

   Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 617,386               3,570,725         2,665,014          5,169,548              12,022,673       

   Purchase of investments (385,449)             (3,776,466)       (2,556,360)        (5,433,340)           (12,151,615)     

   Receipt of interest 4,168                   12,173              4,584                 9,048                    29,973              

  Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 236,105               (193,568)          113,238             (254,744)              (98,969)            

    Net increase (decrease)  in cash 184,650               (85,564)            (46,150)             117,082                170,018            

    Cash  at beginning of year 121,450                154,391            124,690             41,021                   441,552            

    Cash at end of year 306,100$              68,827$            78,540$             158,103$               611,570$          

Continued

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For  the Year Ended September 30, 2015
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McAllen
International McAllen

Palm View Civic Express Transit
Golf Course Center Transit Terminal Total

Reconciliation of operating loss to 

  net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Operating  loss (79,233)$             (37,948)$          (2,490,044)$      (1,381,970)$          (3,989,195)$     

Adjustment to reconcile operating loss

  to net cash provided by operating

  activities:

   Depreciation 290,928               67,976              662,641             578,247                 1,599,792         

Deferred outflows - pension (45,790)               -                       (114,730)           (10,289)                (170,809)          

   (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (28)                      -                       2,154                 868                       2,994                

   (Increase) decrease in due from other funds -                           2,408                -                        -                           2,408                

   Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 699                      (123,972)          3,143                 (69,126)                (189,256)          

   Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 8,726                   -                       21,865               1,961                    32,552              

   Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable 6,735                   -                       (14,724)             (7,160)                  (15,149)            

   Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 3,133                   (5,552)               159,352                156,933            

   Increase (decrease) in unearned revenues 12,414                 2,645                -                        -                           15,059              

     Total adjustments 276,817               (50,943)            554,797             653,853                1,434,524         

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 197,584$             (88,891)$          (1,935,247)$      (728,117)$            (2,554,671)$     

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:

Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 240                      987                   64                      3,174                    4,465                

Concluded

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
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The Internal Service Funds were established to finance and account for services, materials, and supplies 
furnished to the various departments of the City, and on a limited basis, to other local governmental 
agencies.  These services are provided on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Employee Benefits Fund was established to account for all expenses related to health insurance 
premiums and claims for City employees.  Primary funding sources are transfers in from General Fund and 
Enterprise Funds.

The General Insurance Fund was established to account for all expenses related to workmen's 
compensation claims and general liability insurance.  Primary funding sources are transfers in from General 
Fund and Enterprise Funds.

The General Depreciation Fund which was established for the sole purpose of replacing fixed assets of the 
General Fund.  Funding has been provided by a rental charge to the appropriate department in the General 
Fund

The Fleet Materials Management Fund sales and services are accounted for in two Interdepartmental 
Service Fund departments:  Fleet Operations and Materials Management. 

The Retiree Health Insurance Fund was established to account for all expenses related to health insurance 
premiums and claims for retired City employees.



Fleet Materials 
Management

Employee 
Benefits

ASSETS
Current assets:
 Cash 856,040$           47,509$             
 Certificates of deposit - -
 Investments - 798,378
 Receivables, net:
  Accounts 222,436 21,217
  Accrued interest - -

  Due from other governments - -
  Other - 430,765
 Interfund loan - -
 Inventories 366,920 -

 Total current assets 1,445,396 1,297,869

 Capital assets 926,481 40,998
 Less accumulated depreciation (535,577) (15,220)

  Net capital assets 390,904 25,778

  Total assets 1,836,300$        1,323,647$        

Deferred outflows of resources - pension 54,536 -

  Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources 1,890,836$        1,323,647$        

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
 Accounts payable 319,843$           797,566$           
 Accrued expense 39,124 1,781,930

  Total current liabilities 358,967 2,579,496

Other non-current liabilities:

 Net pension liability 18,003 -
 Accumulated unpaid compensated absences 28,691 7,070

  Total other non-current liabilities 46,694 7,070

  Total liabilities 405,661 2,586,566

NET POSITION

Net investment  in capital assets 390,904 25,778

Unrestricted 1,094,271 (1,288,697)

 Total net position 1,485,175 (1,262,919)

  Total liabilities and net position 1,890,836$       1,323,647$        

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

INTERNAL SERVICE  FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

 September 30, 2015
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Retiree Health 
Insurance

General 
Insurance

General 
Depreciation Total

2,544$               240,121$           18,169$             1,164,383$        
- - 60,000 60,000

727,660 6,795,062 6,563,317 14,884,417

(2,881) 130,578 - 371,350
- 6,059 5,125 11,184

- 5,362 - 5,362
- - - 430,765
- 1,092,503 1,092,503 2,185,006
- - - 366,920

727,323 8,269,685 7,739,114 19,479,387

- 4,946,194 24,728,954 30,642,627
- (18,189) (17,608,604) (18,177,590)

- 4,928,005 7,120,350 12,465,037

727,323$           13,197,690$      14,859,464$      31,944,424$      

- - - 54,536

727,323$           13,197,690$      14,859,464$      31,998,960$      

38,715$             279,055$           163,199$           1,598,378$        
240,000 446,839 - 2,507,893

278,715 725,894 163,199 4,106,271

- - - 18,003
- 10,128 - 45,889

- 10,128 - 63,892             

278,715 736,022 163,199 4,170,163

- 4,928,005 7,120,350 12,465,037

448,608 7,533,663 7,575,915 15,363,760

448,608 12,461,668 14,696,265 27,828,797

727,323$           13,197,690$      14,859,464$     31,998,960$     
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Fleet Materials 
Management

Employee 
Benefits

Retiree Health 
Insurance

Operating revenues:

 Charges for services 4,430,963$        -$                       -$                       

Contributions - 9,361,794 490,903

Total operating revenues 4,430,963 9,361,794 490,903

Operating expenses:

 Salaries, wages and employee benefits 838,201 279,328 -

 Supplies and materials 24,227 3,749 -

 Contractual and other services 3,158,839 1,544,211 83,400

 Repairs and maintenance 48,520 - -

 Depreciation and amortization 81,461 8,200 -

 Self insurance claims - 11,223,481 366,508

 Other 28,943 277,558 -

  Total operating expenses 4,180,191 13,336,527 449,908

  Operating income (loss) 250,772 (3,974,733) 40,995

Non operating revenues (expenses):

 Intergovernmental - - -

 Investment earnings - 2,496 12,368

 Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments - (564) (510)

 Other 42,069 110,410 -

  Net non-operating revenues (expenses) 42,069 112,342 11,858

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 292,841 (3,862,391) 52,853

Transfers in - 3,670,000 -

Transfers out - - (1,500,000)

Change in net position 292,841 (192,391) (1,447,147)

Total net position-at beginning of year - (1,070,528) 1,895,755

Total net position-at beginning of year, restated 1,192,334 - -

Total net position--ending 1,485,175$        (1,262,919)$       448,608$           

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

INTERNAL SERVICE  FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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General 
Insurance

General 
Depreciation Total

-$                       2,106,013$        6,536,976$        

4,006,812 - 13,859,509

4,006,812 2,106,013 20,396,485

304,040 - 1,421,569

4,043 - 32,019

1,780,265 - 6,566,715

647,153 - 695,673

- 1,949,141 2,038,802

1,076,062 - 12,666,051

- - 306,501

3,811,563 1,949,141 23,727,330

195,249 156,872 (3,330,845)

19,777 - 19,777

60,101 105,330 180,295

7,711 14,116 20,753

571,743 59,605 783,827

659,332 179,051 1,004,652

854,581 335,923 (2,326,193)

- - 3,670,000

(4,205,009) (5,900,000) (11,605,009)

(3,350,428) (5,564,077) (10,261,202)

15,812,096 20,260,342 36,897,665

- - 1,192,334

12,461,668$      14,696,265$      27,828,797$      

141



CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Fleet Retiree
Materials Employee Health

Management Benefits Insurance

Cash flows from operating activities:

  Receipts from customers 4,305,485$           9,357,872$                502,350$          

  Payments to employees (875,701)               (293,055)                   -                        

  Payments to suppliers (3,466,704)            (13,038,899)              (462,239)           

  Net cash provided (used)  by operating activities (36,920)                 (3,974,082)                40,111              

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:

  Subsidy from federal grant -                             -                                 -                        

  Transfers from other funds -                             3,670,000                  -                        

  Transfers to other funds -                             -                                 (1,500,000)        

Cash provided (used) by non-capital financing activities -                             3,670,000                  (1,500,000)        

Cash flows from capital and related
 financing activities:
  Payments for capital acquisitions (119,126)             -                                -                      
  Proceeds from sale of capital assets -                           -                                -                      

  Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities (119,126)             -                                -                      

Cash flows from investing activities:

   Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments -                             945,995                     1,751,464         

   Purchase of investments -                             (657,809)                   (325,388)           
   Receipt of interest -                           4,821                        16,768            

    Net cash provided (used) by 
     investing activities -                           293,007                    1,442,844       

    Net increase (decrease) in cash (156,046)               (11,075)                     (17,045)             

Cash at beginning of year 1,012,086              58,584                       19,589              

Cash at end of year 856,040$               47,509$                     2,544$              
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General General
Insurance Depreciation Totals

3,521,614$         1,013,509$         18,700,830$        

(309,294)             -                          (1,478,050)           

(3,872,982)          (91,052)              (20,931,876)         

(660,662)             922,457              (3,709,096)           

19,777                -                          19,777                  

-                          -                          3,670,000             

(2,170,000)          (5,900,000)         (9,570,000)           

(2,150,223)          (5,900,000)         (5,880,223)           

-                         (3,424,672)       (3,543,798)         
4,453,210           59,605              4,512,815           

4,453,210           (3,365,067)       969,017              

-                          8,217,592           10,915,051          

(1,729,189)          -                          (2,712,386)           
67,041                137,768            226,398              

(1,662,148)          8,355,360         8,429,063           

(19,823)               12,750                (191,239)              

259,944              5,419                  1,355,622             

240,121$            18,169$              1,164,383$          

Continued
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Fleet Retiree

Materials Employee Health

Management Benefits Insurance

Operating (loss) income 250,772$              (3,974,733)$             40,995$           

Adjustment to reconcile operating income
  (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating
  activities:

Depreciation 81,461                 8,200                        -                      
Deferred outflows - pension (54,536)               -                                -                      

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (167,545)               (3,922)                       11,447              
(Increase) decrease in inventories 80,207                 -                                -                      
(Increase) decrease in intergovernmental receivables -                           -                                -                      
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (244,315)             5,007                        (12,331)           
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 10,393                 -                                -                      
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable 1,688                   (11,919)                    -                      
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 4,955                   3,285                        -                      

Total adjustments (287,692)             651                           (884)                

    Net cash provided (used) by 
     operating activities (36,920)$               (3,974,082)$              40,111$            

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:

Increase in fair value of investments -                             (564)                           (510)                  
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General General

Insurance Depreciation Totals

195,249$            156,872$           (3,330,845)$        

-                         1,949,141         2,038,802           
-                         -                        (54,536)              

(479,836)             (1,092,504)         (1,732,360)           
-                         -                        80,207                

(5,362)                 -                        (5,362)                
33,867                (91,052)            (308,824)            

-                         -                        10,393                
(3,150)                 -                        (13,381)              

(401,430)             -                        (393,190)            

(855,911)             765,585            (378,251)            

(660,662)$           922,457$            (3,709,096)$         

7,711                  14,116                20,753                  

Concluded
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Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the government as an agent for individuals, private 
organizations, other governments and/or funds.

Agency Fund: - to account for funds which are custodial in nature and for which the City is acting as an 
agent.  The City has established the following agency fund based upon the above definition:

The Developers Fund was established to account for developers' contributions for future infrastructure 
development.

The Communications Group was established to account for operation and maintenance of a consolidated 
regional public safety services communications system.

The Payroll Fund was established to account for the processing of employees payroll.



Communication

Developers Group Payroll

Fund Fund Fund Total

 

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 76,554$                            335,002$                    850,155$             1,261,711$      

Receivables:

 Interest 1,562 - - 1,562

 Other - - 10,738 10,738

Investments, at fair value:

 TexPool 813,686 1,150,410 - 1,964,096

 US government securities 1,502,547 - - 1,502,547

    Total assets 2,394,349$                       1,485,412$                 860,893$             4,740,654$      

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable -$                                      14,844$                      860,893$             875,737$         

Due agency - 1,470,568 - 1,470,568

Escrow payables 2,394,349 - - 2,394,349

  Total liabilities 2,394,349$                       1,485,412$                 860,893$             4,740,654$      

CITY OF McALLEN , TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AGENCY FUNDS

 September 30, 2015

148



CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

AGENCY FUND

DEVELOPER'S FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Year Ended September 30, 2015

Balance Balance

09/30/14 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 09/30/15

Assets:

Cash and equivalents 9,504$                9,558,192$        9,491,142$          76,554$               

Investments:

 Tex-pool 715,287              4,649,503          4,551,104            813,686               

 Certificate of deposits 487,550              -                         487,550               -                           

 Government securities 1,749,925           3,503,909          3,751,287            1,502,547            

Receivables:

  Accrued interest 4,668                  19,319               22,425                 1,562                   

    Total current assets 2,966,934$         17,730,923$      18,303,508$        2,394,349$          

Liabilities:

  Escrow payables 2,966,935$         795,670$           1,368,256$          2,394,349            

.

    Total liabilities 2,966,935$         795,670$           1,368,256$          2,394,349$          
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

AGENCY FUND

 COMMUNICATIONS GROUP

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Year Ended September 30, 2015

Balance Balance

09/30/14 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 09/30/15

Assets:

Cash and equivalents 808,170$            971,316$           1,444,484$          335,002$             

Investments -                         1,150,410          -                           1,150,410            

    Total current assets 808,170$            2,121,726$        1,444,484$          1,485,412$          

Liabilities:

Payables 690$                   266,409$           252,255$             14,844$               

Due Agency 807,480              663,088             1,470,568            

    Total liabilities 808,170$            929,497$           252,255$             1,485,412$          
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

AGENCY FUND

PAYROLL FUND FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Year Ended September 30, 2015

Balance Balance

09/30/14 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 09/30/15

Assets:

Cash and equivalents 834,493$            92,839,385$          92,823,723$        850,155$             

Receivables:

  Other 13,074                135,292                 137,628               10,738                 

    Total current assets 847,567$            92,974,677$          92,961,351$        860,893$             

Liabilities:

  Payables 847,567$            43,813,447$          43,800,121$        860,893$             

    Total liabilities 847,567$            43,813,447$          43,800,121$        860,893$             
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Individual Budget 

Schedules and Other 



 Original 

Budget Final Budget

Actual 

Amount

Variance 

with Final 

Budget 

Positive 

(Negative)

REVENUES

 Taxes:

 Property 34,847,424$  34,847,424$  35,627,720$   780,296$       

 Sales 47,697,314 47,697,314 47,204,977 (492,337)

 Mixed drink 785,000 785,000 818,816 33,816

 Franchise 6,620,500 6,620,500 6,473,586 (146,914)

  Total taxes 89,950,238 89,950,238 90,125,099 174,861

Licenses and permits:

 Business licenses and permits 55,000 55,000 76,582 21,582

 Occupational 254,100 254,100 260,738 6,638

 Non-business licenses and permits 1,013,500 1,013,500 1,259,690 246,190

  Total licenses and permits 1,322,600 1,322,600 1,597,010 274,410

  Total intergovernmental revenues - - 2,000 2,000

Charges for services:

 General government 2,199,500 2,199,500 2,103,350 (96,150)

 Public safety 693,000 693,000 694,749 1,749

 Highways and streets 3,000 3,000 4,630 1,630

 Health 607,950 607,950 713,865 105,915

 Culture and recreation 1,140,710 1,140,710 1,146,961 6,251

  Total charges for services 4,644,160 4,644,160 4,663,555 19,395

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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 Original 

Budget Final Budget

Actual 

Amount

Variance 

with Final 

Budget 

Positive 

(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

Fines and forfeitures:

 Corporations court 1,550,000$    1,611,497$    1,450,244$     (161,253)$      

 Other fines 65,000 65,000 55,399 (9,601)

  Total fines and forfeitures 1,615,000 1,676,497 1,505,643 (170,854)

Investment earnings 375,000 375,000 394,552 19,552

Net increase (decrease) in the

  fair value of investments -                -                80,064           80,064          

Other:

 Royalties 1,000,000 1,000,000 828,482 (171,518)

 Rents and concessions 10,000 10,000 21,211 11,211

 Reimbursements - - 610,752 610,752

 Other 18,100 18,100 677,476 659,376

  Total other revenues 1,028,100 1,028,100 2,137,921 1,109,821

  Total revenues 98,935,098$  98,996,595$  100,505,844$ 1,509,249$    
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 Original 

Budget Final Budget

Actual 

Amount

Variance 

with Final 

Budget 

Positive 

(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

EXPENDITURES

 General government:

  City commission:

   Personal services 126,526$      126,526$      183,860$       (57,334)$       

   Supplies 4,680 4,680 5,285 (605)

   Miscellaneous services 60,453 60,453 109,971 (49,518)

   Total city commission 191,659 191,659 299,116 (107,457)

 Special service:

   Miscellaneous services 811,800 811,800 759,406 52,394

  Total special service 811,800 811,800 759,406 52,394

 City manager:

  Personal services 1,314,962 1,314,962 1,187,920 127,042

  Supplies 2,430 2,430 3,473 (1,043)

  Miscellaneous services 88,181 88,181 85,367 2,814

  Maintenance 1,680 1,680 3,161 (1,481)

  Capital outlay 1,000 1,000 497 503

  Total city manager 1,408,253 1,408,253 1,280,418 127,835

 Budget & management:

  Personal service 331,470 331,470 305,765 25,705

  Supplies 5,000 5,501 5,391 110

  Miscellaneous services 8,050 6,900 7,063 (163)

  Maintenance 13,000 12,699 12,699 -

  Capital outlay - 950 715 235

Total budget & management 357,520 357,520 331,633 25,887
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 Original 

Budget Final Budget

Actual 

Amount

Variance 

with Final 

Budget 

Positive 

(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

 City secretary:

  Personal services 442,453$       442,453$       482,765$        (40,312)$        

  Supplies 4,500 4,500 4,142 358

  Miscellaneous services 20,366 20,366 21,956 (1,590)

  Maintenance 19,184 19,184 17,849 1,335

  Total city secretary 486,503 486,503 526,712 (40,209)

 Audit office:

  Personal services 210,646 210,646 108,088 102,558

  Supplies 2,275 3,135 3,829 (694)

  Miscellaneous services 38,731 36,483 6,427 30,056

  Capital outlay - 1,388 1,388 -

Total audit office 251,652 251,652 119,732 131,920

Vital statistics:

 Personal services 130,216 130,216 137,246 (7,030)

 Supplies 7,200 7,200 6,059 1,141

 Miscellaneous services 21,658 21,658 13,988 7,670

Total vital statistics 159,074 159,074 157,293 1,781
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 Original 

Budget Final Budget

Actual 

Amount

Variance 

with Final 

Budget 

Positive 

(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

Passport facility:

 Personal services 81,844$        81,844$        77,998$         3,846$          

 Supplies 1,490 1,490 1,393 97

 Miscellaneous services 7,320 7,320 5,451 1,869

 Maintenance 200 200 - 200

 Capital outlay 3,750 3,750 - 3,750

 Total passport facility 94,604 94,604 84,842 9,762

 Municipal court:

  Personal services 1,257,361 1,257,361 1,147,795 109,566

  Supplies 8,910 10,690 8,118 2,572

  Miscellaneous services 77,842 68,842 43,653 25,189

  Maintenance 22,702 81,934 77,341 4,593

  Capital outlay 10,506 19,991 10,984 9,007

  Total municipal court 1,377,321 1,438,818 1,287,891 150,927

 Finance:

  Personal services 1,126,776 1,126,776 948,819 177,957

  Supplies 18,520 18,520 18,464 56

  Miscellaneous services 147,404 144,904 144,585 319

  Maintenance 10,494 10,494 9,641 853

  Capital outlay - 2,500 4,936 (2,436)

  Total finance 1,303,194 1,303,194 1,126,445 176,749
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 Original 

Budget Final Budget

Actual 

Amount

Variance 

with Final 

Budget 

Positive 

(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

 Tax office:

  Personal services 256,817$       256,817$       258,118$        (1,301)$          

  Supplies 5,833 7,233 7,325 (92)

  Miscellaneous services 672,055 671,155 756,041 (84,886)

  Maintenance 9,307 8,807 8,123 684

  Total tax office 944,012 944,012 1,029,607 (85,595)

 Purchasing and contracting:

  Personal services 561,828 561,828 486,656 75,172

  Supplies 7,220 7,220 7,303 (83)

  Miscellaneous services 8,228 5,228 15,458 (10,230)

  Capital outlay - 3,000 2,767 233

  Total purchasing and contracting 577,276 577,276 512,184 65,092

 Legal:

  Personal services 967,019 967,019 928,710 38,309

  Supplies 3,078 3,078 3,769 (691)

  Miscellaneous services 364,873 341,873 392,245 (50,372)

  Capital outlay - 23,000 44,646 (21,646)

  Total legal 1,334,970 1,334,970 1,369,370 (34,400)

 Grant administration:

  Personal services 330,784 330,784 334,028 (3,244)

  Supplies 8,347 14,697 15,830 (1,133)

  Miscellaneous services 64,453 58,103 57,904 199

  Total grant administration 403,584 403,584 407,762 (4,178)
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 Original 

Budget Final Budget

Actual 

Amount

Variance 
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 Right of way:

  Personal services 134,947$      134,947$      133,987$       960$             

  Supplies 1,454 1,454 1,453 1

  Miscellaneous services 52,497 52,497 31,886 20,611

  Total right of way 188,898 188,898 167,326 21,572

 Human resources:

  Personal services 644,476 644,476 629,634 14,842

  Supplies 16,165 22,628 21,538 1,090

  Miscellaneous services 134,670 121,207 84,528 36,679

  Maintenance 10,000 10,000 4,806 5,194

  Capital outlay - 7,000 5,256 1,744

  Total human resources 805,311 805,311 745,762 59,549

 Risk management:

  Liability insurance 651,761 651,761 651,761 -

  Total risk management 651,761 651,761 651,761 -

 Planning:

  Personal services 1,069,145 1,069,145 824,589 244,556

  Supplies 75,780 75,780 29,685 46,095

  Miscellaneous services 42,578 42,578 25,492 17,086

  Maintenance 18,970 18,970 6,320 12,650

  Other (19,000) (19,000) - (19,000)

  Capital outlay 23,350 23,350 18,531 4,819

  Total planning 1,210,823 1,210,823 904,617 306,206
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 Information technology:

  Personal services 1,660,791$    1,660,791$    1,684,681$     (23,890)$        

  Supplies 17,548 17,548 20,124 (2,576)

  Miscellaneous services 251,204 209,232 135,310 73,922

  Maintenance 495,788 451,961 438,620 13,341

  Capital outlay 288,000 373,799 258,315 115,484

  Total information technology 2,713,331 2,713,331 2,537,050 176,281

 Public information office:

  Personal services 641,760 641,760 645,123 (3,363)

  Supplies 5,000 5,000 6,826 (1,826)

  Miscellaneous services 74,646 74,646 65,131 9,515

  Maintenance 6,702 6,702 5,692 1,010

  Total public information office 728,108 728,108 722,772 5,336

 311 Call centerenter:

   Personal services 176,401 176,401 171,625 4,776

   Supplies 500 500 1,225 (725)

   Miscellaneous services - - 13,528 (13,528)

   Maintenance 21,500 21,500 - 21,500

   Capital outlay 6,000 6,000 - 6,000

  Total 311 Call center 204,401 204,401 186,378 18,023
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 City hall:
  Personal services 103,888$     103,888$     98,125$         5,763$         
  Supplies 19,900 19,900 14,593 5,307
  Miscellaneous services 336,891 336,891 356,819 (19,928)
  Maintenance 146,665 146,665 172,369 (25,704)
  Capital outlay - - 112 (112)

  Total city hall 607,344 607,344 642,018 (34,674)

Development center
  Personal services 29,634 29,634 32,540 (2,906)
  Supplies 14,300 14,300 14,269 31
  Miscellaneous services 57,700 57,700 50,082 7,618
  Maintenance 8,000 8,000 8,057 (57)
  Capital outlay 800 800 - 800

  Total development center 110,434 110,434 104,948 5,486

 Building maintenance:
  Personal services 655,898 655,898 664,383 (8,485)
  Supplies 17,732 17,732 21,978 (4,246)
  Miscellaneous services 16,570 16,570 16,638 (68)
  Maintenance 37,376 37,376 27,134 10,242
  Capital outlay 73,500 73,500 63,296 10,204

  Total building maintenance 801,076 801,076 793,429 7,647
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 Economic development:

  McAllen Economic Development Corp. 1,383,195$    1,383,195$    1,383,195$     -$                   

  Chambers of commerce 644,200 644,200 644,200 -

  Total economic development 2,027,395 2,027,395 2,027,395 -

 Non-departmental activities 123,040 123,040 102,377 20,663

 Contingency (1,275,000) (1,275,000) - (1,275,000)

  Total general government 18,598,344 18,659,841 18,878,244 (218,403)

Public safety:

 Police:

  Personal services 28,296,962 28,296,962 27,607,711 689,251

  Supplies 396,091 396,091 447,512 (51,421)

  Miscellaneous services 1,349,202 1,349,202 1,431,485 (82,283)

  Maintenance 1,777,320 1,777,320 1,432,313 345,007

  Other (350,000) (350,000) - (350,000)

  Capital outlay 233,744 233,744 186,718 47,026

  Total police 31,703,319 31,703,319 31,105,739 597,580

Animal control:

  Personal services 259,708 259,708 226,797 32,911

  Supplies 12,000 12,000 10,101 1,899

  Miscellaneous services 28,735 28,735 26,875 1,860

  Maintenance 54,000 46,496 37,809 8,687

  Capital outlay 30,000 73,723 36,219 37,504

  Total animal control 384,443 420,662 337,801 82,861
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Communication technology:

 Personal services 229,005$      229,005$      219,996$       9,009$          

 Supplies 4,376 4,376 4,120 256

 Miscellaneous services 100,815 100,815 94,485 6,330

 Maintenance 3,500 3,500 1,442 2,058

 Other - - (24,677) 24,677

 Total communication technology 337,696 337,696 295,366 42,330

 Fire:

  Personal services 14,725,840 14,725,840 15,240,427 (514,587)

  Supplies 273,243 318,243 301,805 16,438

  Miscellaneous services 1,215,292 1,160,292 1,204,690 (44,398)

  Maintenance 520,933 520,933 744,015 (223,082)

  Capital outlay 68,145 78,145 88,519 (10,374)

  Total fire 16,803,453 16,803,453 17,579,456 (776,003)

 Traffic operations:

  Personal services 1,520,245 1,520,245 1,422,109 98,136

  Supplies 115,492 115,492 118,693 (3,201)

  Miscellaneous services 340,063 340,063 326,265 13,798

  Maintenance 360,924 360,924 314,283 46,641

  Capital outlay 137,000 137,000 170,858 (33,858)

  Total traffic operations 2,473,724 2,473,724 2,352,208 121,516
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 Building code compliance:

  Personal services 915,366$       915,366$       932,626$        (17,260)$        

  Supplies 13,687 13,687 7,929 5,758

  Miscellaneous services 59,285 59,285 48,469 10,816

  Maintenance 20,814 20,814 17,418 3,396

  Total building code compliance 1,009,152 1,009,152 1,006,442 2,710

  Total public safety 52,711,787 52,748,006 52,677,012 70,994

Highways and streets:

 Engineering services:

  Personal services 1,637,471 1,637,471 1,460,990 176,481

  Supplies 13,000 13,000 11,973 1,027

  Miscellaneous services 125,809 125,809 163,155 (37,346)

  Maintenance 45,969 45,969 41,199 4,770

  Capital outlay 30,110 30,110 13,548 16,562

  Total engineering 1,852,359 1,852,359 1,690,865 161,494

 Street cleaning:

  Personal services 194,706 227,425 229,666 (2,241)

  Supplies 2,330 2,330 1,896 434

  Miscellaneous services 106,509 106,509 104,942 1,567

  Maintenance 111,427 111,427 68,483 42,944

  Capital outlay 4,600 4,600 5,065 (465)

  Total street cleaning 419,572 452,291 410,052 42,239
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 Street maintenance:

  Personal services 1,675,565$   1,826,100$   1,463,031$    363,069$      

  Supplies 29,607 29,607 27,763 1,844

  Miscellaneous services 234,280 234,280 230,210 4,070

  Maintenance 4,380,691 4,380,691 2,053,178 2,327,513

  Capital outlay 22,100 22,100 22,010 90

  Total street maintenance 6,342,243 6,492,778 3,796,192 2,696,586

 Street lighting:

  Miscellaneous services 1,904,326 1,904,326 2,349,364 (445,038)

  Maintenance 72,675 72,675 69,735 2,940

  Total street lighting 1,977,001 1,977,001 2,419,099 (442,098)

 Sidewalk construction:

  Personal services 235,378 241,133 151,994 89,139

  Supplies 30,132 30,132 27,192 2,940

  Miscellaneous services 27,575 27,575 27,545 30

  Maintenance 38,352 38,352 28,354 9,998

  Capital outlay 11,200 11,200 5,156 6,044

  Total sidewalk construction 342,637 348,392 240,241 108,151

 Drainage:

  Personal services 736,318 824,397 654,176 170,221

  Supplies 20,052 20,052 13,123 6,929

  Miscellaneous services 316,737 316,737 310,364 6,373

  Maintenance 302,658 302,658 222,983 79,675

  Capital outlay 29,600 29,600 32,013 (2,413)

  Total drainage 1,405,365 1,493,444 1,232,659 260,785

  Total highways and streets 12,339,177 12,616,265 9,789,108 2,827,157
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Health and welfare:

 Health code compliance:

  Personal services 1,002,097$    1,002,097$    974,952$        27,145$         

  Supplies 27,995 27,995 23,155 4,840

  Miscellaneous services 95,622 95,622 174,836 (79,214)

  Maintenance 52,275 52,275 67,853 (15,578)

  Capital outlay 3,000 3,000 2,565 435

  Total health code compliance 1,180,989 1,180,989 1,243,361 (62,372)

 Graffiti cleaning:

  Personal services 105,406 105,406 106,670 (1,264)

  Supplies 10,181 10,181 8,894 1,287

  Miscellaneous services 12,551 12,551 12,558 (7)

  Maintenance 23,875 23,875 20,064 3,811

  Capital outlay 2,600 2,600 5,890 (3,290)

  Total graffitti cleaning 154,613 154,613 154,076 537

 Other agencies:

  Humane society 337,662 337,662 612,360 (274,698)

  Other health and welfare agencies 30,000 30,000 30,000 -

  Total other agencies 367,662 367,662 642,360 (274,698)

  Total health and welfare 1,703,264 1,703,264 2,039,797 (336,533)
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Culture and recreation:

 Parks and recreation administration:

  Personal services 397,187$       397,187$       352,001$        45,186$         

  Supplies 5,850 5,850 5,035 815

  Miscellaneous services 125,987 125,987 135,730 (9,743)

  Maintenance 22,795 22,795 16,238 6,557

  Capital outlay 20,300 20,300 2,370 17,930

  Total parks and  recreation administration 572,119 572,119 511,374 60,745

 Parks:

  Personal services 3,835,356 3,835,356 3,554,348 281,008

  Supplies 174,654 174,654 186,658 (12,004)

  Miscellaneous services 2,033,350 2,033,350 1,823,819 209,531

  Maintenance 565,940 565,940 613,584 (47,644)

  Capital outlay 266,500 266,500 184,339 82,161

  Total parks 6,875,800 6,875,800 6,362,748 513,052

 Recreation:

  Personal services 1,254,090 1,254,090 1,042,437 211,653

  Supplies 35,450 35,450 58,266 (22,816)

  Miscellaneous services 240,413 240,413 253,101 (12,688)

  Maintenance 11,042 11,042 9,679 1,363

  Capital outlay 34,000 34,000 13,610 20,390

  Total recreation 1,574,995 1,574,995 1,377,093 197,902
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 Pools:

  Personal services 640,024$       640,024$       611,390$        28,634$         

  Supplies 83,100 83,100 79,798 3,302

  Miscellaneous services 122,077 122,077 105,954 16,123

  Maintenance 56,700 56,700 71,254 (14,554)

  Capital outlay 3,800 3,800 1,892 1,908

  Total pools 905,701 905,701 870,288 35,413

 Las palmas community center:

  Personal services 293,974 293,974 282,392 11,582

  Supplies 11,380 11,380 13,728 (2,348)

  Miscellaneous services 66,990 66,990 77,642 (10,652)

  Maintenance 11,387 11,387 16,435 (5,048)

  Capital outlay 24,514 24,514 6,365 18,149

  Total las palmas community center 408,245 408,245 396,562 11,683

 Recreation center-Lark:

  Personal services 353,000 353,000 331,399 21,601

  Supplies 22,030 22,030 23,637 (1,607)

  Miscellaneous services 124,114 124,114 132,600 (8,486)

  Maintenance 13,000 13,000 15,680 (2,680)

  Capital outlay 22,400 22,400 5,376 17,024

  Total recreation center-Lark 534,544 534,544 508,692 25,852
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 Recreation center-Palmview:

  Personal services 350,341$       350,341$       314,470$        35,871$         

  Supplies 20,805 20,805 19,578 1,227

  Miscellaneous services 119,960 119,960 121,455 (1,495)

  Maintenance 16,000 16,000 10,499 5,501

  Capital outlay 25,500 25,500 3,917 21,583

  Total recreation center-Palmview 532,606 532,606 469,919 62,687

 Quinta mazatlan:

  Personal services 350,637 350,637 341,502 9,135

  Supplies 23,350 23,350 22,524 826

  Miscellaneous services 116,525 116,525 129,963 (13,438)

  Maintenance 22,265 22,265 22,117 148

  Capital outlay 24,100          24,100          20,914           3,186            

  Total quinta mazatlan 536,877 536,877 537,020 (143)

 Library:

  Personal services 2,307,964 2,307,964 2,064,720 243,244

  Supplies 93,600 117,600 86,148 31,452

  Miscellaneous services 622,820 628,820 648,198 (19,378)

  Maintenance 160,665 130,665 108,917 21,748

  Capital outlay 334,000 334,000 283,168 50,832

  Total library 3,519,049 3,519,049 3,191,151 327,898
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 Library branch-Lark:

  Personal services 422,479$       422,479$       412,924$        9,555$           

  Supplies 9,150 9,150 5,332 3,818

  Miscellaneous services 13,293 15,713 13,994 1,719

  Maintenance 5,250 2,830 - 2,830

  Capital outlay 20,000 20,000 19,866 134

  Total library branch-Lark 470,172 470,172 452,116 18,056

 Library branch-Palmview:

  Personal services 445,586 445,586 425,953 19,633

  Supplies 10,500 10,500 7,279 3,221

  Miscellaneous services 14,993 17,663 7,027 10,636

  Maintenance 5,500 2,830 1,379 1,451

  Capital outlay 20,000 20,000 18,405 1,595

  Total library branch-Palmview 496,579 496,579 460,043 36,536

 Other agencies 983,259 983,259 1,075,107 (91,848)

 Museums 792,400 792,400 792,400 -

  Total culture and recreation 18,202,346 18,202,346 17,004,513 1,197,833

  Total expenditures 103,554,918 103,929,722 100,388,683 3,541,039

  Excess of revenues over expenditures (4,619,820) (4,933,127) 117,161 5,050,288
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OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in 9,443,115$   9,443,115$   10,197,181$  (754,066)$     

  Transfers out (4,507,300) (4,697,300) (5,021,595) 324,295

  Net other financing sources 4,935,815 4,745,815 5,175,586 (429,771)

Net change in fund balances 315,995 (187,312) 5,292,747 5,480,059

Fund balances at begining of year 43,829,781 43,829,781 43,829,781 -

Fund balances at end of year 44,145,776$  43,642,469$  49,122,528$   5,480,059$    
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REVENUES

 Hotel tax 4,357,426$        4,357,426$        4,262,268$        (95,158)$            

 Investment earnings - - 14 14

  Total revenues 4,357,426 4,357,426 4,262,282 (95,144)

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  General government 1,239,774 1,239,774 1,217,791 21,983

  Total expenditures 1,239,774 1,239,774 1,217,791 21,983

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

  over expenditures 3,117,652 3,117,652 3,044,491 (117,127)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers out (2,729,672) (2,729,672) (3,044,477) (314,805)

  Total other financing sources (uses) (2,729,672) (2,729,672) (3,044,477) (314,805)

  Net changes in fund balances 387,980 387,980 14 (387,966)

Fund balances--beginning 24,916 24,916 24,916 -

Fund balances--ending 412,896$           412,896$           24,930$             (387,966)$          

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

HOTEL OCCUPANCY  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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REVENUES

 Hotel tax 1,238,358$        1,238,358$        1,217,451$        (20,907)$            

 Investment earnings - - 808 808

  Total revenues 1,238,358 1,238,358 1,218,259 (20,099)

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  Culture and recreation - - - -

Debt service:

  Principal 205,000 205,000 205,000 -

  Interest and fiscal charges 654,028 654,028 654,834 (806)

  Total expenditures 859,028 859,028 859,834 (806)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

  over expenditures 379,330 379,330 358,425 (19,293)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers out (2,078,809) (2,078,809) (2,078,809) -

  Total other financing sources (uses) (2,078,809) (2,078,809) (2,078,809) -

  Net changes in fund balances (1,699,479) (1,699,479) (1,720,384) (19,293)

Fund balances--beginning 1,994,638 1,994,638 1,994,638 -

Fund balances--ending 295,159$           295,159$           274,254$           (19,293)$            

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

HOTEL VENUE PROJECT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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REVENUES

 Charges for services -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          

  Total revenues - - - -

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  General government - - 12,975 12,975

  Total expenditures - - 12,975 12,975

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

  over expenditures - - (12,975) (12,975)

  Transfers in - 190,000 190,000 -

  Net changes in fund balances - 190,000 177,025 3

Fund balances--beginning 4,095 4,095 4,095 -

Fund balances--ending 4,095$               194,095$           181,120$           3$                      

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN EB-5 REGIONAL CENTER  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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REVENUES

 Intergovernmental 1,957,714$        1,957,714$        2,223,150$        265,436$           

  Total revenues 1,957,714 1,957,714 2,223,150 265,436

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  General government 342,214 342,214 333,167 9,047

  Highways and streets 334,229 334,229 95,259 238,970

  Health and welfare 1,011,371 1,011,371 1,122,351 (110,980)

  Culture and recreation 269,900 269,900 672,373 (402,473)

  Total expenditures 1,957,714 1,957,714 2,223,150 (265,436)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

  over expenditures - - - -

  Net changes in fund balances - - - -

Fund balances--beginning - - - -

Fund balances--ending -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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REVENUES

 Licenses and permits 12,000$             12,000$             16,387$             4,387$               

 Charges for services 1,117,747 1,117,747 1,104,240 (13,507)

 Fines and forfeitures 230,000 230,000 196,725 (33,275)

 Investment earnings - - 331 331

 Other 7,200 7,200 8,349 1,149

  Total revenues 1,366,947 1,366,947 1,326,032 (40,915)

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  Highways and streets 1,244,914 1,244,914 963,097 281,817

  Total expenditures 1,244,914 1,244,914 963,097 281,817

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

  over expenditures 122,033 122,033 362,935 240,902

  Transfers out (237,000) (237,000) (237,000) -

  Total other financing sources (uses) (237,000) (237,000) (237,000) -

  Net changes in fund balances (114,967) (114,967) 125,935 240,902

Fund balances--beginning 387,626 387,626 387,626 -

Fund balances--ending 272,659$           272,659$           513,561$           240,902$           

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DOWNTOWN SERVICES PARKING  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For Fiscal Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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REVENUES

 Sales tax 15,823,750$      15,823,750$      15,734,994$      (88,756)$            

 Intergovernmental revenues 5,269,465 6,709,465 172,106 (6,537,359)

 Investment earnings 100,000 100,000 107,553 7,553

 Net increase (decrease) in the

   fair value of investments - - 19,629 19,629

 Other 1,667,729 2,690,229 535,536 (2,154,693)

  Total revenues 22,860,944 25,323,444 16,569,818 (8,753,626)

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  General government 9,736,297 10,182,797 5,554,319 4,628,478

  Public safety 50,000 34,000 - 34,000

  Highways and streets 8,792,280 9,447,110 5,925,312 3,521,798

  Health and welfare 2,412,801 4,412,801 4,412,204 597

  Culture and recreation 5,237,836 7,452,594 2,066,419 5,386,175

Debt service:

  Principal 25,000 25,000 25,000 -

  Interest and fiscal charges 4,594 4,594 5,400 (806)

  Total expenditures 26,258,808 31,558,896 17,988,654 13,570,242

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

  expenditures (3,397,864) (6,235,452) (1,418,836) 4,816,616

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in 5,900,000 5,900,000 5,900,000 -

  Transfers out (5,699,224) (5,786,538) (5,189,299) 597,239

  Total other financing uses 200,776 113,462 710,701 597,239

  Net changes in fund balances (3,197,088) (6,121,990) (708,135) 5,413,855

Fund balances--beginning 15,194,374 15,194,374 15,194,374 -

Fund balances--ending 11,997,286$      9,072,384$        14,486,239$      5,413,855$        

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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Original 
Budget Final Budget

Actual 
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Variance 
with Final 

Budget 
Positive 

(Negative)

REVENUES

 Property tax 3,145,763$        3,145,763$    3,283,041$    137,278$       

 Interest - - 813 813

  Total revenues 3,145,763 3,145,763 3,283,854 138,091

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

Debt service:

  Principal 3,465,000 3,465,000 19,623,534 (16,158,534)

  Interest and fiscal charges 3,188,063 3,188,063 3,143,140 44,923

  Total expenditures 6,653,063 6,653,063 22,766,674 (16,113,611)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (3,507,300) (3,507,300) (19,482,820) (15,975,520)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in 3,507,300 3,507,300 3,507,300 -

  Transfers out - - - -

  Issuance of debt - - 15,035,000 15,035,000

  Bond premium - - 1,281,031 1,281,031

  Total other financing sources (uses) 3,507,300 3,507,300 19,823,331 16,316,031

  Net changes in fund balances - - 340,511 340,511

Fund balance--beginning 292,192 292,192 292,192 -

Fund balance--ending 292,192$           292,192$       632,703$       340,511$       

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DEBT SERVICE  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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(Negative)

 

REVENUES

 Intergovernmental 1,663,763$        1,663,763$        470,963$           (1,192,800)$       

 Investment earnings - - 26,836 26,836

 Net increase (decrease) in the

  fair value of investments - - 5,948 5,948

 Other 120,000 866,427 1,192,461 326,034

  Total revenues 1,783,763 2,530,190 1,696,208 (833,982)

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  General government 727,640 1,784,733 1,188,574 596,159

  Public safety 1,570,000 1,912,232 1,693,601 218,631

  Highways and streets 1,138,351 1,355,041 1,117,540 237,501

  Culture and recreation 1,950,000 2,454,229 1,104,117 1,350,112

  Total expenditures 5,385,991 7,506,235 5,103,832 2,402,403

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (3,602,228) (4,976,045) (3,407,624) 1,568,421

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in 1,000,000 3,035,009 2,863,491 (171,518)

  Transfers out - (352,716) (352,716) -

  Total other financing sources (uses) 1,000,000 2,682,293 2,510,775 (171,518)

  Net changes in fund balances (2,602,228) (2,293,752) (896,849) 1,396,903

Fund balances--beginning 4,736,936 4,736,936 4,736,936 -

Fund balances--ending 2,134,708$        2,443,184$        3,840,087$        1,396,903$        

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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REVENUES

 Net increase (decrease) in the

  fair value of investments -$                       -$                       759$                  759$                  

 Investment earnings - - 4,961 4,961

  Total revenues - - 5,720 5,720

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  General government 463,500 542,933 399,514 143,419

  Total expenditures 463,500 542,933 399,514 143,419

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (463,500) (542,933) (393,794) (137,699)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Net changes in fund balances (463,500) (542,933) (393,794) (137,699)

Fund balances--beginning 1,004,740 1,004,740 1,004,740 -

Fund balances--ending 541,240$           461,807$           610,946$           (137,699)$          

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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REVENUES

 Investment earnings -$                      -$                      46,168$            46,168$            

  Total revenues - - 46,168 46,168

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  Highways and streets 12,021,393 12,021,393 1,059,739 10,961,654

  Culture and recreation - - 4,693 (4,693)

  Total expenditures 12,021,393 12,021,393 1,064,432 10,956,961

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (12,021,393) (12,021,393) (1,018,264) 11,003,129

  Net changes in fund balances (12,021,393) (12,021,393) (1,018,264) 11,003,129

Fund balances--beginning 14,967,781 14,967,781 14,967,781 -

Fund balances--ending 2,946,388$        2,946,388$        13,949,517$      11,003,129$      

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

STREET IMPROVEMENTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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REVENUES

 Investment earnings -$                      -$                      49,156$            49,156$            

  Total revenues - - 49,156 49,156

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  Culture and recreation 14,453,284 14,453,284 14,386 14,438,898

  Total expenditures 14,453,284 14,453,284 14,386 14,438,898

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (14,453,284) (14,453,284) 34,770 14,488,054

  Net changes in fund balances (14,453,284) (14,453,284) 34,770 14,488,054

Fund balances--beginning 14,473,170 14,473,170 14,473,170 -

Fund balances--ending 19,886$             19,886$             14,507,940$      14,488,054$      

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SPORTS FACILITY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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REVENUES

 Franchise tax -$                       -$                       140,162$           140,162$           

 Investment earnings - - 181 181

  Total revenues - - 140,343 140,343

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  General government - 66,250 70,778 (4,528)

  Total expenditures - 66,250 70,778 (4,528)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

  over expenditures - (66,250) 69,565 135,815

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in - 495,813 495,813 -

  Total other financing sources (uses) - 495,813 495,813 -

  Net changes in fund balances - 429,563 565,378 135,815

Fund balances--beginning - - - -

Fund balances--ending -$                       429,563$           565,378$           135,815$           

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PUBLIC EDUCATION GOVERNMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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REVENUES

 Investment earnings -$                 -$                 50,586$            50,586$            

 Other - - 5,029 5,029

  Total revenues - - 55,615 55,615

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  Culture and recreation 24,756,355 25,168,355 12,124,280 13,044,075

  Total expenditures 24,756,355 25,168,355 12,124,280 13,044,075

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (24,756,355) (25,168,355) (12,068,664) 13,099,691

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in 14,184,855 14,596,855 2,490,809 (12,106,046)

  Total other financing sources (uses) 14,184,855 14,596,855 2,490,809 (12,106,046)

  Net changes in fund balances (10,571,500) (10,571,500) (9,577,856) 993,644

Fund balances--beginning 15,026,462 15,026,462 15,026,462 -

Fund balances--ending 4,454,962$        4,454,962$        5,448,606$        993,644$           

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PERFORMING ARTS G.O. FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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REVENUES

 Investment earnings -$                      -$                      35,521$            35,521$            

 Other - - 9,295 9,295

  Total revenues - - 44,816 44,816

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  Culture and recreation - - 6,417 (6,417)

  Total expenditures - - 6,417 (6,417)

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures - - 38,399 38,399

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in - 1,300,504 1,300,504 -

  Transfers out (12,106,046) (12,106,046) - 12,106,046

  Total other financing sources (uses) (12,106,046) (10,805,542) 1,300,504 12,106,046

  Net changes in fund balances (12,106,046) (10,805,542) 1,338,903 12,144,445

Fund balances--beginning 12,113,055 12,113,055 12,113,055 -

Fund balances--ending 7,009$               1,307,513$        13,451,958$      12,144,445$      

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PERFORMING ARTS C.O. FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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Operating revenues:

 Water sales

  Residential customers 11,555,539$        11,555,539$      8,847,734$        (2,707,805)$       

  Commercial accounts 5,913,386 5,913,386 4,780,417 (1,132,969)

  Industrial customers 507,364 507,364 449,615 (57,749)

  Total water sales 17,976,289 17,976,289 14,077,766 (3,898,523)

 Service charges:

  Tap fees 650,000 650,000 681,592 31,592

  Connect fees 170,000 170,000 214,670 44,670

  Reconnect fees 160,000 160,000 204,795 44,795

  Other services 851,000 851,000 940,621 89,621

  Total service charges 1,831,000 1,831,000 2,041,678 210,678

  Total operating revenues 19,807,289 19,807,289 16,119,444 (3,687,845)

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 85,086 85,086 103,997 18,911

  Net increase (decrease) in the

   fair value of investment - - 18,760 18,760

  Other - - 669,748 669,748

  Total non-operating revenues 85,086 85,086 792,505 707,419

  Total revenues 19,892,375 19,892,375 16,911,949 (2,980,426)

Expenses:

 Water plant:

  Salaries and benefits 1,637,721 1,698,500 1,438,036 260,464

  Supplies and raw water purchases 3,750,410 3,750,410 2,937,636 812,774

  Contractual and other services 1,516,295 1,516,295 1,240,994 275,301

  Repairs and maintenance 407,832 407,832 322,747 85,085

  Total water plant 7,312,258 7,373,037 5,939,413 1,433,624

 

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

 

 

Water lab:

  Salaries and benefits 266,023$             266,023$           250,289$           15,734$             

  Supplies 31,130 31,130 26,505 4,625

  Contractual and other services 50,540 50,540 42,251 8,289

  Repairs and maintenance 20,990 20,990 17,052 3,938

  Total water lab 368,683 368,683 336,097 32,586

 Transmission and distribution:

  Salaries and benefits 1,721,009 1,906,156 1,628,909 277,247

  Supplies 42,500 42,500 23,901 18,599

  Contractual and other services 122,970 122,970 87,384 35,586

  Repairs and maintenance 335,751 335,751 157,770 177,981

  Total Transmission and distribution 2,222,230 2,407,377 1,897,964 509,413

 Water meters:

  Salaries and benefits 755,117 793,813 739,086 54,727

  Supplies 24,965 24,965 16,072 8,893

  Contractual and other services 51,349 51,349 38,601 12,748

  Repairs and maintenance 89,857 89,857 59,119 30,738

  Total water meters 921,288 959,984 852,878 107,106

 Utility billing:

  Salaries and benefits 384,865 403,413 361,792 41,621

  Supplies 38,000 38,000 23,851 14,149

  Contractual and other services 347,947 347,947 326,374 21,573

  Repairs and maintenance 100 100 - 100

  Total utility billing 770,912 789,460 712,017 77,443
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

 

 

 Customer relations:

  Salaries and benefits 727,522$             762,769$           667,986$           94,783$             

  Supplies 15,560 15,560 11,375 4,185

  Contractual and other services 85,868 85,868 79,047 6,821

  Repairs and maintenance 37,750 37,750 11,008 26,742

  Total customer relations 866,700 901,947 769,416 132,531

 Administration:

  Salaries and benefits 863,800 800,822 647,529 153,293

  Supplies 5,000 5,000 7,184 (2,184)

  Contractual and other services 499,301 689,190 662,686 26,504

  Repairs and maintenance 80,959 80,959 59,149 21,810

  Total administration 1,449,060 1,575,971 1,376,548 199,423

 Non-departmental expenses:

  Liability insurance 90,073 90,073 90,073 -

  Interest and fiscal charges 1,155,969 1,155,969 1,017,374 138,595

  Bond principal requirements 1,577,100 1,577,100 - 1,577,100

  Other - - 127,641 (127,641)

  Capital outlay 8,069,024 9,474,309 3,155,219 6,319,090

  Total non-departmental expenses 10,892,166 12,297,451 4,390,307 7,907,144

  Total expenses 24,803,297 26,673,910 16,274,640 10,399,270

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

   over expenses (budget basis) (4,910,922) (6,781,535) 637,309 7,418,844

GAAP basis adjustments:

Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (4,262,777) (4,262,777)

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

   per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 3,155,219 3,155,219

Principal payments on revenue bonds-budgeted as 
expenses per budget basis, treated as a reduction of 
bonds payable per GAAP basis 1,577,100 1,577,100 - 1,577,100

Net loss-GAAP basis (6,488,022)$        (8,358,635)$       (470,249)$          7,888,386$        
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

IN RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015

Current

Debt Customer

Service Deposits Depreciation

Cash, certificates of deposit, and

  investments at September 30, 2014 723,765$          2,427,971$               7,566,505$               

Cash receipts:

  Transfers in 2,967,215         -                                1,453,472                 

  Operating activities -                        953,975                    108,600                    

  Interest received 390                   -                                34,717                      

Total cash receipts 2,967,605         953,975                    1,596,789                 

     Total cash available 3,691,370         3,381,946                 9,163,294                 

Cash disbursements:

  Other -                        -                                17,202                      

  Due from other funds -                        -                                142,642                    

  Transfers out 390                   -                                -                                

  Refunds -                        897,840                    -                                

  Capital acquisition -                        -                                952,561                    

  Principal payments 1,577,100         -                                -                                

  Interest and fiscal charges (net) 1,403,477         -                                -                                

     Total cash disbursements 2,980,967         897,840                    1,112,405                 

Cash, certificates of deposit, and

  investments at September 30, 2015 710,403$          2,484,106$               8,050,889$               

Cash, certificates of deposit, and

  investments at September 30, 2015

  is comprised of the following:

   Cash -$                      -$                              159,257$                  

   Certificates of deposit -                        2,484,106                 90,000                      

   Investments (net) 710,403            -                                4,780,048                 

   Accrued Interest -                        -                                21,584                      

   Note receivable -                        -                                3,000,000                 

Totals 710,403$          2,484,106$               8,050,889$               
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Capital Water

Improvement Revenue Bonds Total

 6,579,746$             184,403$                    17,482,390$            

692,920                  -                                 5,113,607                

-                              -                                 1,062,575                

37,037                    -                                 72,144                     

729,957                  -                                 6,248,326                

7,309,703               184,403                     23,730,716              

69,569                    -                                 86,771                     

-                              -                                 142,642                   

-                              -                                 390                          

-                              -                                 897,840                   

2,024,975               41,466                       3,019,002                

-                              -                                 1,577,100                

-                              -                                 1,403,477                

2,094,544               41,466                       7,127,222                

 5,215,159$             142,937$                    16,603,494$            

 197,167$                142,937$                    499,361$                 

150,000                  -                                 2,724,106                

4,175,121               -                                 9,665,572                

7,986                      -                                 29,570                     

684,885                  -                                 3,684,885                

 5,215,159$             142,937$                    16,603,494$            
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Operating revenues:

 Sewer service charges 16,785,666$         16,785,666$  14,676,031$      (2,109,635)$               

 Industrial surcharges 363,520 363,520 308,377 (55,143)

 Other services 283,500 283,500 393,785 110,285

  Total operating revenues 17,432,686 17,432,686 15,378,193 (2,054,493)

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 123,521 123,521 187,886 64,365

  Net increase (decrease) in the

   fair value of investment - - 24,763 24,763

  Other 45,540,000 45,540,000 881,504 (44,658,496)

  Total non-operating revenues 45,663,521 45,663,521 1,094,153 (44,569,368)

  Total revenues 63,096,207 63,096,207 16,472,346 (46,623,861)

Expenses:

 Sewer plant:

  Salaries and benefits 2,052,795 2,076,118 1,869,458 206,660

  Supplies 177,200 177,200 181,776 (4,576)

  Contractual and other services 1,792,953 2,145,953 2,066,454 79,499

  Repairs and maintenance 211,766 211,766 175,833 35,933

  Total sewer plant 4,234,714 4,611,037 4,293,521 317,516

Sewer lab:

  Salaries and benefits 370,319 371,157 316,296 54,861

  Supplies 51,347 51,347 48,210 3,137

  Contractual and other services 7,180 7,180 5,455 1,725

  Repairs and maintenance 8,410 8,410 5,008 3,402

  Total sewer lab 437,256 438,094 374,969 63,125

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SEWER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SEWER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

 Sewer collection:

  Salaries and benefits 1,029,456$           1,091,007$    853,006$           238,001$                   

  Supplies 497,000 497,000 443,168 53,832

  Contractual and other services 286,280 286,280 339,141 (52,861)

  Repairs and maintenance 395,143 395,143 207,689 187,454

  Total sewer collection 2,207,879 2,269,430 1,843,004 426,426

 Administration:

  Salaries and benefits 642,082 665,718 513,713 152,005

  Supplies 21,500 21,500 5,916 15,584

  Contractual and other services 670,183 670,183 548,051 122,132

  Repairs and maintenance 41,659 41,659 36,587 5,072

  Total administration 1,375,424 1,399,060 1,104,267 294,793

 Non-departmental expenses:

  Employee benefits 61,095 - - -

  Liability insurance 72,201 72,201 72,201 -

  Interest and fiscal charges 2,320,447 2,320,447 1,422,902 897,545

  Bond principal requirements 3,600,900 3,600,900 - 3,600,900

  Other - - 144,275 (144,275)

  Capital outlay 65,151,487 71,583,847 16,815,513 54,768,334

  Total non-departmental expenses 71,206,130 77,577,395 18,454,891 59,122,504

  Total expenses 79,461,403 86,295,016 26,070,652 60,224,364

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

   expenses (budget basis) (16,365,196)        (23,198,809) (9,598,306)       13,600,503               

GAAP basis adjustments:

Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (5,658,492) (5,658,492)

Principal payments on revenue bonds-budgeted as 
expenses per budget basis, treated as reduction of 
bonds payable per GAAP basis 3,600,900 3,600,900 - 3,600,900

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

   per budget basis, capitalized per  GAAP basis - - 16,815,513 16,815,513

Net income-GAAP basis (19,966,096)$       (26,799,709)$ 1,558,715$        28,358,424$              
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SEWER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

 Sewer collection:

  Salaries and benefits 1,029,456$           1,091,007$    853,006$           238,001$                   

  Supplies 497,000 497,000 443,168 53,832

  Contractual and other services 286,280 286,280 339,141 (52,861)

  Repairs and maintenance 395,143 395,143 207,689 187,454

  Total sewer collection 2,207,879 2,269,430 1,843,004 426,426

 Administration:

  Salaries and benefits 642,082 665,718 513,713 152,005

  Supplies 21,500 21,500 5,916 15,584

  Contractual and other services 670,183 670,183 548,051 122,132

  Repairs and maintenance 41,659 41,659 36,587 5,072

  Total administration 1,375,424 1,399,060 1,104,267 294,793

 Non-departmental expenses:

  Employee benefits 61,095 - - -

  Liability insurance 72,201 72,201 72,201 -

  Interest and fiscal charges 2,320,447 2,320,447 1,422,902 897,545

  Bond principal requirements 3,600,900 3,600,900 - 3,600,900

  Other - - 144,275 (144,275)

  Capital outlay 65,151,487 71,583,847 16,815,513 54,768,334

  Total non-departmental expenses 71,206,130 77,577,395 18,454,891 59,122,504

  Total expenses 79,461,403 86,295,016 26,070,652 60,224,364

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

   expenses (budget) (16,365,196)        (23,198,809) (9,598,306)       13,600,503               

GAAP basis adjustments:

Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (5,658,492) (5,658,492)

Principal payments on revenue bonds-budgeted as 
expenses per budget basis, treated as reduction of 
bonds payable per GAAP basis 3,600,900 3,600,900 - 3,600,900

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

   per budget basis, capitalized per  GAAP basis - - 16,815,513 16,815,513

Net income-GAAP basis (19,966,096)$       (26,799,709)$ 1,558,715$        28,358,424$              
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SEWER FUND

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

IN RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015

Current Reserve TWDB

Debt Bond for Debt

Service Reserve Improvements Service Depreciation

Cash, certificates of deposit, and

  investments at September 30, 2014 791,775$          1,369,346$       7,524,562$        1,258,618$        11,099,362$     

Cash receipts:

   Escrow proceeds -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

  Transfers from operating cash 2,998,037         248,152            -                        2,628,300         2,829,236         

  Transfers from internal funds -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

  Due sewer fund -                        -                        29,942,552       -                        -                        

  Interest received 429                   775                   1,962                536                   94,376              

  Valuation allowance -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

  Capital contributions -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total cash receipts 2,998,466         248,927            29,944,514       2,628,836         2,923,612         

     Total cash available 3,790,241         1,618,273         37,469,076       3,887,454         14,022,974       

Cash disbursements:

  Other -                        -                        -                        -                        7,552                

  Due sewer fund and internal funds 406                   -                        -                        -                        75,974              

  Principal payments 1,742,900         -                        -                        1,858,000         -                        

   Interest and fiscal charges (net) 1,261,353         -                        -                        228,435            -                        

  Capital acqusitions -                        -                        -                        -                        3,996,495         

     Total cash disbursements 3,004,659         -                        -                        2,086,435         4,080,021         

Cash, certificates of deposit, and

  investments at September 30, 2015 785,582$          1,618,273$       37,469,076$      1,801,019$        9,942,953$       

Cash, certificates of deposit, and

  investments at September 30, 2015

  is comprised of the following:

   Cash -$                      -$                      -$                       157,777$          238,540$          

   Certificates of deposit -                        -                        -                        -                        45,000              

   Investments (net) 785,582            1,618,273         37,469,076       1,643,242         9,648,917         

   Accrued Interest -                        -                        -                        -                        10,496              

Totals 785,582$          1,618,273$       37,469,076$      1,801,019$        9,942,953$       
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Capital Sewer Sewer Sewer Sewer

Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 20122009-TWDB Series 2015 Total

 12,254,744$          10,992,427$        629,141$           -$                    45,919,975                    

-                            -                          518,554            -                     518,554                         

-                            -                          551,324            8,224,732       17,479,781                    

179,768                 -                          -                        -                     179,768                         

-                            -                          -                        -                     29,942,552                    

89,064                   6,739                   -                        -                     193,881                         

14,580                   -                          -                        -                     14,580                           

-                            -                          -                        202,322          202,322                         

283,412                 6,739                   1,069,878         8,427,054       56,439,938                    

12,538,156            10,999,166          1,699,019         8,427,054       102,359,913                  

14,260                   -                          -                     21,812                           

1,595,138              -                          228,376            -                     1,899,488                      

-                            -                          -                        -                     3,600,900                      

-                            -                          -                        -                     1,489,788                      

1,662,822              62,950                 952,089            8,427,052       15,101,408                    

3,272,220              62,950                 1,180,465         8,427,052       22,113,396                    

 9,265,936$            10,936,216$        518,554$           2$                    72,337,611$                  

194,731$               384$                    518,554$          2$                    1,109,988$                    

60,000                   -                          -                        -                     105,000                         

9,004,665              10,935,832          -                        -                     71,105,587                    

6,540                     -                          -                        -                     17,036                           

 9,265,936$            10,936,216$        518,554$           2$                    72,337,611$                  
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Variance with 
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Positive 
(Negative)

 

Operating revenues:

 Solid waste collections 17,053,515$      17,053,515$      17,320,489$      266,974$           

 Other services - - 78,140 78,140

  Total operating revenues 17,053,515 17,053,515 17,398,629 345,114

 Non-operating revenues (expenses):

  Investment earnings - - 132,731 132,731

  Net increase in the

    fair value of investment - - 21,824 21,824

  Other 60,000 60,000 (1,657) (61,657)

  Total non-operating revenues 60,000 60,000 152,898 92,898

  Total revenues 17,113,515 17,113,515 17,551,527 438,012

Expenses:

 Facilities administration:

  Salaries and benefits 850,141 850,141 680,071 170,070

  Supplies 15,750 15,750 12,458 3,292

  Contractual and other services 1,301,220 1,301,220 1,500,567 (199,347)

  Repairs and maintenance 55,097 55,097 26,802 28,295

  Capital outlay 480,600 672,108 361,723 310,385

  Total facilities administration 2,702,808 2,894,316 2,581,621 312,695

 Brush collection:

  Salaries and benefits 1,420,576 1,584,979 1,332,839 252,140

  Supplies 257,320 257,320 163,083 94,237

  Contractual and other services 145,225 145,225 181,232 (36,007)

  Repairs and maintenance 540,531 540,531 527,250 13,281

  Capital outlay 4,500 4,500 - 4,500

  Total brush collection 2,368,152 2,532,555 2,204,404 328,151

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SANITATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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Positive 
(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SANITATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

 Residential collection:

  Salaries and benefits 1,380,190$        1,494,966$        1,357,746$        137,220$           

  Supplies 35,109 35,109 31,394 3,715

  Contractual and other services 558,040 558,040 689,318 (131,278)

  Repairs and maintenance 934,581 934,581 931,159 3,422

  Capital outlay 445,850 445,850 317,682 128,168

  Total residential collection 3,353,770 3,468,546 3,327,299 141,247

 Commercial box collection:

  Salaries and benefits 1,244,460 1,347,409 1,137,633 209,776

  Supplies 42,979 42,979 40,397 2,582

  Contractual and other services 1,220,980 1,220,980 1,446,211 (225,231)

  Repairs and maintenance 1,119,476 1,119,476 1,198,823 (79,347)

  Capital outlay 371,850 371,850 4,099 367,751

  Total commercial box collection 3,999,745 4,102,694 3,827,163 275,531

 Roll offs:

  Salaries and benefits 299,540 322,321 228,838 93,483

  Supplies 5,750 5,750 4,422 1,328

  Contractual and other services 273,450 273,450 305,478 (32,028)

  Repairs and maintenance 249,874 249,874 260,936 (11,062)

  Capital outlay 28,000 28,000 13,727 14,273

Total roll offs 856,614 879,395 813,401 65,994

 Recycling:

  Salaries and benefits 1,105,171 1,125,740 883,963 241,777

  Supplies 53,606 53,606 49,844 3,762

  Contractual and other services 263,943 263,943 362,250 (98,307)

  Repairs and maintenance 154,749 154,749 116,011 38,738

  Capital outlay 171,000 254,900 101,648 153,252

  Total recycling 1,748,469 1,852,938 1,513,716 339,222

199



Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SANITATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

 Composting:

  Salaries and benefits 367,371$           389,782$           262,427$           127,355$           

  Supplies 26,000 26,000 25,180 820

  Contractual and other services 252,375 252,375 260,973 (8,598)

  Repairs and maintenance 108,551 108,551 109,061 (510)

  Capital outlay 2,500 2,500 - 2,500

  Total composting 756,797 779,208 657,641 121,567

 Non-departmental expenses:

  Depreciation fund-capital outlay 2,589,389 2,660,990 1,888,131 772,859

  Liability insurance 104,898 104,898 104,898 -

  Total non-departmental expenses 2,694,287 2,765,888 1,993,029 772,859

  Total expenses 18,480,642 19,275,540 16,918,274 2,357,266

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

  expenses (budget) (1,367,127) (2,162,025) 633,253 2,795,278

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (2,014,457) (2,014,457)

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

  per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 2,687,011 2,687,011

Net income-GAAP basis (1,367,127)$       (2,162,025)$       1,305,807$        3,467,832$        
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Operating revenues:

  Green fees 623,345$           623,345$           632,365$           9,020$               

  Membership sales 176,059 176,059 177,505 1,446

  Cart rental 278,667 278,667 297,410 18,743

  Rentals and other sales 155,722 155,722 156,789 1,067

  Total operating revenues 1,233,793 1,233,793 1,264,069 30,276

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 1,200 1,200 3,012 1,812

   fair value of investment - - 240 240

  Total non-operating revenues 1,200 1,200 3,252 2,052

  Total revenues 1,234,993 1,234,993 1,267,321 32,328

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 796,050 796,050 706,948 89,102

  Supplies 118,583 118,583 107,704 10,879

  Contractual and other services 192,025 192,025 153,518 38,507

  Repairs and maintenance 94,490 94,490 84,204 10,286

  Capital outlay 258,000 258,000 249,039 8,961

  Total expenses 1,459,148 1,459,148 1,301,413 157,735

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

  expenses (budget basis) (224,155) (224,155) (34,092) 190,063

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PALM VIEW GOLF COURSE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PALM VIEW GOLF COURSE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted -$                       -$                       (290,928)$          (290,928)$          

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

   per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 249,039 249,039

Net loss-GAAP basis (224,155)$          (224,155)$          (75,981)$            148,174$           
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Operating revenues:

  Rentals -$                      -$                      33,192$            33,192$            

  Concessions-other - - 6,541 6,541

  Other services 3,600 3,600 3,105 (495)

  Total operating revenues 3,600 3,600 42,838 39,238

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings - - 5,716 5,716

  Net increase (decrease) in the

   fair value of investments - - 3,174 3,174

  Intergovernmental 9,360,270 9,360,270 3,482,154 (5,878,116)

  Other - - 505 505

  Total non-operating revenues 9,360,270 9,360,270 3,491,549 (5,868,721)

  Total revenues 9,363,870 9,363,870 3,534,387 (5,829,483)

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 281,398 281,398 155,565 125,833

  Contractual and other services - 600,515 383,890 216,625

  Repairs and maintenance 308,211 308,211 307,106 1,105

  Capital outlay 10,427,072 9,826,557 3,217,560 6,608,997

  Total expenses 11,016,681 11,016,681 4,064,121 6,952,560

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

  expenses (budget basis) before transfers (1,652,811) (1,652,811) (529,734) 1,123,077

Transfers:

 Transfers in 1,145,350 1,585,380 988,141 (597,239)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses (budget basis) (507,461) (67,431) 458,407 525,838

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (578,247) (578,247)

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

  per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 3,217,560 3,217,560

Net income-GAAP basis (507,461)$         (67,431)$           3,097,720$       3,165,151$       

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

TRANSIT TERMINAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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Operating revenues:

  Rentals 116,800$            116,800$            105,392$            (11,408)$            

  Concessions-other 131,770 131,770 264,835 133,065

  Other services 14,000 14,000 13,490 (510)

  Total operating revenues 262,570 262,570 383,717 121,147

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 651 651 10,243 9,592

  Net increase in the
   fair value of investments - - 987 987

  Total non-operating revenues 651 651 11,230 10,579

  Total revenues 263,221 263,221 394,947 131,726

Expenses:

  Supplies 10,500 11,700 12,555 (855)

  Contractual and other services 528,649 507,449 311,905 195,544

  Repairs and maintenance 16,900 36,900 29,229 7,671

  Capital outlay 291,800 291,800 - 291,800

  Total expenses 847,849 847,849 353,689 494,160

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
  expenses (budget basis) before transfers (584,628) (584,628) 41,258 625,886

Transfers:

 Transfers in 250,000 250,000 608,895 358,895

 Transfers out - (412,000) (412,000) -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses (budget basis) (334,628) (746,628) 238,153 984,781

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted -                    -                    (67,976)             (67,976)             

Net income-GAAP basis (334,628)$          (746,628)$          170,177$            916,805$            

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL CIVIC CENTER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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Operating revenues:

  Rentals 1,030,000$        1,030,000$        1,033,167$        3,167$               

  Concessions-other 1,026,000 1,026,000 990,710 (35,290)

  Other services 160,000 160,000 147,770 (12,230)

  Total operating revenues 2,216,000 2,216,000 2,171,647 (44,353)

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 3,000 3,000 28,743 25,743

  Net increase in the

   fair value of investments - - 4,580 4,580

  Other - - 1,102,569 1,102,569

  Total non-operating revenues 3,000 3,000 1,135,892 1,132,892

  Total revenues 2,219,000 2,219,000 3,307,539 1,088,539

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 1,795,100 1,795,100 1,653,793 141,307

  Supplies 70,675 70,675 126,870 (56,195)

  Contractual and other services 1,599,315 1,599,315 1,962,611 (363,296)

  Repairs and maintenance 299,582 299,582 373,782 (74,200)

  Capital outlay 340,000 340,000 81,952 258,048

  Total expenses 4,104,672 4,104,672 4,199,008 (94,336)

Excess (deficency) of revenues over

  over expenses (budget basis) before transfers (1,885,672) (1,885,672) (891,469) 1,182,875

Transfers:

 Transfers in 2,479,672 2,479,672 2,435,582 (44,090)

 Transfers out - (1,300,504) (1,300,504) -

Total transfers 2,479,672 1,179,168 1,135,078 (44,090)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

  over expenses (budget basis) 594,000 (706,504) 243,609 950,113

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN CONVENTION CENTER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN CONVENTION CENTER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted -$                       -$                       (1,582,447)$       (1,582,447)$       

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

  per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 81,952 81,952

Net loss-GAAP basis 594,000$           (706,504)$          (1,256,886)$       (550,382)$          
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Operating revenues:

  Charges for services 2,839,230$        3,227,230$        2,807,756$        (419,474)$         

  Rentals 2,600,041 2,600,041 2,960,245 360,204

  Other services 391,636 391,636 1,206,725 815,089

  Total operating revenues 5,830,907 6,218,907 6,974,726 755,819

 Non-operating revenues:

  Intergovernmental 13,191,331 13,300,654 8,977,886 (4,322,768)

  Investment earnings 10,500 10,500 81,948 71,448
  Net increase in the fair value of investments - - 13,363 13,363

  Other - - 14,965 14,965

  Total non-operating revenues 13,201,831 13,311,154 9,088,162 (4,222,992)

  Total revenues 19,032,738 19,530,061 16,062,888 (3,467,173)

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 1,842,276 1,842,276 1,486,507 355,769

  Supplies 103,500 103,500 79,800 23,700

  Contractual and other services 1,711,125 1,706,125 1,884,789 (178,664)

  Repairs and maintenance 330,668 335,668 338,413 (2,745)

  Capital outlay 14,017,538 15,039,008 9,251,697 5,787,311

  Total administrative expenses 18,005,107 19,026,577 13,041,206 5,985,371

Non-departmental expenses (income):

 Interest and fiscal charges 341,696 341,696 476,164 (134,468)

Total expenses 18,346,803 19,368,273 13,517,370 5,850,903

Excess of revenues over
 expenses (budget basis) before transfers 685,935 161,788 2,545,518 2,383,730

Transfers:

 Transfers out (1,103,965) (1,103,965) (1,103,965) -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
 over expenses (budget basis) (418,030) (942,177) 1,441,553 2,383,730

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted -                   -                   (3,604,916)       (3,604,916)       

Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

  per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 9,251,697 9,251,697

Net income-GAAP basis (418,030)$         (942,177)$         7,088,334$        8,030,511$        

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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Operating revenues:

 Charges for services 10,746,861$      10,746,861$      11,221,926$      475,065$           

  Rentals 2,177,188 2,177,188 2,310,672 133,484

  Other 171,992 171,992 67,587 (104,405)

  Total operating revenues 13,096,041 13,096,041 13,600,185 504,144

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 352 352 2,944 2,592

  Total non-operating revenues 352 352 2,944 2,592

  Total revenues 13,096,393 13,096,393 13,603,129 506,736

Expenses:

 Administration:

  Salaries and benefits 199,111 199,111 173,263 25,848

  Supplies 24,800 24,800 14,979 9,821

  Contractual and other services 382,325 382,325 368,560 13,765

  Repairs and maintenance 12,162 12,162 9,820 2,342

  Capital outlay 300,000 3,754,660 1,774,841 1,979,819

  Total  administration 918,398 4,373,058 2,341,463 2,031,595

Operations :

  Salaries and benefits 1,409,883 1,409,883 963,640 446,243

  Supplies 85,000 85,000 74,090 10,910

  Contractual and other services 508,250 508,250 610,268 (102,018)

  Repairs and maintenance 176,000 176,000 202,181 (26,181)

  Total operations 2,179,133 2,179,133 1,850,179 328,954

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

 Non-departmental expenses:

  Liability insurance 50,368$             50,368$             50,368$             -$                       

  Interest and fiscal charges - - 38,270 (38,270)

  Bond principal requirement 307,172 307,172 - 307,172

  Other 3,140,050 3,140,050 3,725,315 (585,265)

  Total non-departmental expenses 3,497,590 3,497,590 3,813,953 (316,363)

  Total expenses 6,595,121 10,049,781 8,005,595 2,044,186

Excess of revenues over

   expenses (budget basis) before transfers 6,501,272 3,046,612 5,597,534 2,550,922

Transfers:

 Transfers out (5,582,312) (5,582,312) (6,096,804) (514,492)

Net transfers (5,582,312) (5,582,312) (6,096,804) (514,492)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenses (budget basis) 918,960 (2,535,700) (499,270) 2,036,430

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (604,697) (604,697)

Interest on board advances - - 576,160 576,160

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

   per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 1,774,840 1,774,840

Net income-GAAP basis 918,960$           (2,535,700)$       1,247,033$        3,782,733$        
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE FUND

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

IN RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015

Bridge

Reserved for Capital

City Distribution Contingency Improvement Total

Cash and investments at September 30, 2014 5,149,349$          502,843$        1,466,251$      7,118,443        

Add:

Transfers in 5,674,466            -                      2,945,268        8,619,734        

Interest earned 1,242                161                 1,188               2,591               

Total additions 5,675,708            161                 2,946,456        8,622,325        

Less payments:

Capital assets -                           -                      942,080           942,080           

Interfund transfers 5,148,916            -                      -                       5,148,916        

Total payments 5,148,916            -                      942,080           6,090,996        

Cash and investments at September 30, 2015 5,676,141$          503,004$        3,470,627$      9,649,772$      

Cash and investments at September 30, 2015

  are comprised of the following:

Cash -$                         -$                    154,123$         154,123           

Investments 5,676,141            502,743          3,316,504        9,495,388        

Accrued interest -                           261                 -                       261                  

 

5,676,141$          503,004$        3,470,627$      9,649,772$      
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Operating revenues:

 Charges for services 4,098,318$        3,552,318$        3,182,441$        (369,877)$          

  Rentals - - 15,098 15,098

  Other 56,636 56,636 22,430 (34,206)

  Total operating revenues 4,154,954 3,608,954 3,219,969 (388,985)

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 170 170 1,494 1,324

  Other - - - -

  Total non-operating revenues 170 170 1,494 1,324

  Total revenues 4,155,124 3,609,124 3,221,463 (387,661)

Expenses:

 Administration:

  Salaries and benefits 144,518 144,518 187,561 (43,043)

  Supplies 8,200 8,200 5,170 3,030

  Contractual and other services 263,000 248,000 237,896 10,104

  Repairs and maintenance 7,000 7,000 820 6,180

  Capital outlay 13,500 283,944 126,059 157,885

  Total  administration 436,218 691,662 557,506 134,156

Operations :

  Salaries and benefits 373,669 373,669 233,472 140,197

  Supplies 15,000 15,000 17,007 (2,007)

  Contractual and other services 58,028 58,028 39,903 18,125

  Repairs and maintenance 41,094 41,094 66,476 (25,382)

  Total operations 487,791 487,791 356,858 130,933

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

ANZALDUAS  INTERNATIONAL CROSSING  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

ANZALDUAS  INTERNATIONAL CROSSING  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

 Non-departmental expenses:

  Liability insurance 12,000$             12,000$             12,000$             -$                       

  Interest and fiscal charges 1,633,757 1,633,757 1,630,941 2,816

  Interest on board advances - - 576,160 (576,160)

  Bond related charges - - (30,431) 30,431

  Bond principal requirement 1,250,000 1,250,000 - 1,250,000

  Total non-departmental expenses 2,895,757 2,895,757 2,188,670 707,087

  Total expenses 3,819,766 4,075,210 3,103,034 972,176

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses   
(budget basis) before transfers 335,358 (466,086) 118,429 584,515

Transfers:

 Transfers in 936,885 936,885 947,888 11,003

Net transfers 936,885 936,885 947,888 11,003

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

 expenses (budget basis) 1,272,243 470,799 1,066,317 595,518

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (1,530,387) (1,530,387)

Principal payments on revenue bonds-budgeted 
as expenses per budget basis, treated as a 
reduction of bonds payable per GAAP basis 1,250,000 1,250,000 - -

Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses per 
budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 126,059 126,059

Net loss-GAAP basis 2,522,243$        1,720,799$        (338,011)$          (808,810)$          
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Current Current

Debt Debt

Contingency Service Service

Reserve Series A-$26M Series B-$13M

Cash and investments at September 30, 2014 168,971$         581,805$              286,543$           

Add:

Transfers 45,000          1,965,137          947,888          

Interest earned 102               41                      167                 

Total additions 45,102             1,965,178             948,055             

Less payments:

Principal payments -                       835,000                415,000             

Capital assets -                       -                            -                         

Other -                    -                            -                         

Interest and fiscal charges -                       1,112,655             522,692             

Total payments -                       1,947,655             937,692             

Cash and investments at September 30, 2015 214,073$         599,328$              296,906$           

Cash and investments at September 30, 2015

  are comprised of the following:

Cash -$                     -$                          -$                       

Investments 214,073           599,328                296,906             

214,073$         599,328$              296,906$           

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

ANZALDUAS INTERNATIONAL CROSSING FUND

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

IN RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015
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Capital

Improvement Total

653,343$            1,690,662$                  

240,910           3,198,935                    

356                  666                              

241,266              3,199,601                    

-                          1,250,000                    

65,231                65,231                         

-                                   

-                          1,635,347                    

65,231                2,950,578                    

829,378$            1,939,685$                  

79,879$              79,879$                       

749,500              1,859,807                    

829,379$            1,939,686$                  
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Operating revenues:

  Charges for services 510,525$          510,525$          550,054$          39,529$            

  Rentals - - 193,811 193,811

  Other services 615,887 615,887 320,344 (295,543)

  Total operating revenues 1,126,412 1,126,412 1,064,209 (62,203)

 Non-operating revenues:

  Intergovernmental 1,614,944 1,614,944 981,610 (633,334)

  Investment earnings - - 3,413 3,413

  Increase in the fair value of investments - - 64 64

  Total non-operating revenues 1,614,944 1,614,944 985,087 (629,857)

  Total revenues 2,741,356 2,741,356 2,049,296 (692,060)

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 2,156,955 2,156,955 1,804,831 352,124

  Supplies 49,629 49,629 43,244 6,385

  Contractual and other services 758,028 758,028 598,110 159,918

  Repairs and maintenance 639,802 639,802 445,427 194,375

  Capital outlay - - 39,846 (39,846)

  Total expenses 3,604,414 3,604,414 2,931,458 672,956

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
  expenses (budget basis) before transfers (863,058) (863,058) (882,162) (19,104)

Transfers:

 Transfers in 846,574 846,574 846,574 -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

  expenses (budget basis) (16,484) (16,484) (35,588) (19,104)

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted -                  -                  (662,641)          (662,641)          

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses
   per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 39,846 39,846

Net income-GAAP basis (16,484)$           (16,484)$           (658,383)$         (641,899)$         

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN EXPRESS  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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Operating revenues:

  Fleet billings 3,470,000$        3,470,000$        4,059,470$        589,470$           

  Materials management 280,000 280,000 371,493 91,493

  Other - - - -

  Total operating revenues 3,750,000 3,750,000 4,430,963 680,963

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings - - - -

  Other - - 42,069 42,069

  Total non-operating revenues - - 42,069 42,069

  Total revenues 3,750,000 3,750,000 4,473,032 723,032

Expenses:

 Materials management:

  Salaries and benefits 134,083 134,083 123,706 10,377

  Supplies 2,750 2,750 2,118 632

  Contractual and other services 3,100 3,100 9,533 (6,433)

  Repairs and maintenance 3,890 3,890 6,672 (2,782)

  Capital outlay 7,200 7,200 - 7,200

  Total  materials management 151,023 151,023 142,029 8,994

Fleet operations :

  Salaries and benefits 971,579 971,579 714,495 257,084

  Supplies 27,914 27,914 22,109 5,805

  Contractual and other services 2,406,000 2,406,000 3,136,813 (730,813)

  Repairs and maintenance 37,450 37,450 41,848 (4,398)

  Capital outlay 113,600 182,549 119,128 63,421

  Total fleet operations 3,556,543 3,625,492 4,034,393 (408,901)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

FLEET MATERIALS MANAGEMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

FLEET MATERIALS MANAGEMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

 Non-departmental expenses:

  Liability insurance 12,493$             12,493$             12,493$             -

  Other - - 28,943 (28,943)

  Total non-departmental expenses 12,493 12,493 41,436 (28,943)

  Total expenses 3,720,059 3,789,008 4,217,858 (428,850)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
  expenses (budget basis) 29,941 (39,008) 255,174 294,182

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (81,461) (81,461)

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses per 
budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 119,128 119,128

Net income-GAAP basis 29,941$             (39,008)$            292,841$           331,849$           
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Revenues:

  Operating-contributions 9,326,463$        9,326,463$        9,361,794$        35,331$             

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 12,191 12,191 2,496 (9,695)

  Net increase (decrease) in the
    fair value of investments 1,920 1,920 (564) (2,484)

  Other 102,398 102,398 110,410 8,012

  Total non-operating revenues 116,509 116,509 112,342 (4,167)

  Total revenues 9,442,972 9,442,972 9,474,136 31,164

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 270,817 270,817 279,328 (8,511)

  Supplies 3,000 3,000 3,749 (749)

  Contractual and other services 1,505,455 1,491,055 1,544,211 (53,156)

  Self insurance claims 8,392,550 8,392,550 11,501,039 (3,108,489)

  Repairs and maintenance - - - -

  Capital outlay 20,000 34,400 - 34,400

  Total expenses 10,191,822 10,191,822 13,328,327 (3,136,505)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
  expenses (budget basis) before transfers (748,850) (748,850) (3,854,191) (3,105,341)

 Transfers in 670,000 3,670,000 3,670,000 -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

  expenses (budget basis) (78,850) 2,921,150 (184,191) (3,105,341)

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted -                    -                    (8,200)               (8,200)               

Net loss-GAAP basis (78,850)$            2,921,150$        (192,391)$          (3,113,541)$       

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015

219



Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 

Revenues:

  Operating-contributions 1,361,283$        1,361,283$        490,903$           (870,380)$         

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 9,660 9,660 12,368 2,708

  Net (decrease) in the
   fair value of investments - - (510) (510)

  Total non-operating revenues 9,660 9,660 11,858 2,198

  Total revenues 1,370,943 1,370,943 502,761 (868,182)

Expenses:

  Contractual and other services 100,000 100,000 83,400 100,000

  Self insurance claims 1,035,000 1,035,000 366,508 668,492

  Total expenses 1,135,000 1,135,000 449,908 685,092

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

  expenses (budget basis) before transfers 235,943 235,943 52,853 183,090

 Transfers out - (1,500,000) (1,500,000) -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

  expenses (budget basis) 235,943 (1,264,057) (1,447,147) (183,090)

Net loss-GAAP basis 235,943$           (1,264,057)$      (1,447,147)$      (183,090)$         

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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Revenues:

  Operating-contributions 3,679,412$      3,679,412$      4,006,812$           327,400$         

 Non-operating revenues:

  Intergovernmental - - 19,777 19,777

  Investment earnings 82,792 82,792 60,101 (22,691)

  Net increase (decrease) in the

    fair value of investments - - 7,711 7,711

  Other 109,000 109,000 571,743 462,743

  Total non-operating revenues 191,792 191,792 659,332 467,540

  Total revenues 3,871,204 3,871,204 4,666,144 794,940

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 324,912 324,912 304,040 20,872

  Supplies 4,000 4,000 4,043 (43)

  Contractual and other services 1,703,607 1,752,607 1,780,265 (27,658)

  Self insurance 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,076,062 123,938

  Repairs and maintenance 1,479 418,454 647,153 (228,699)

  Total expenses 3,233,998 3,699,973 3,811,563 (111,590)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
  expenses (budget basis) before transfers 637,206 171,231 854,581 683,350

Operating transfers:

 Transfers out (670,000) (4,205,009) (4,205,009) -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

  expenses (budget basis) (32,794) (4,033,778) (3,350,428) 683,350

Net loss-GAAP basis (32,794)$          (4,033,778)$     (3,350,428)$          683,350$         

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL INSURANCE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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Revenues:

  Operating-charges for services 2,106,012$        2,106,012$        2,106,013$        1$                      

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings - - 105,330 105,330

  Net increase in the

    fair value of investments - - 14,116 14,116

  Other - - 59,605 59,605

  Total non-operating revenues - - 179,051 179,051

  Total revenues 2,106,012 2,106,012 2,285,064 179,052

Expenses:

  Capital outlay 4,055,600 5,323,981 3,424,672 1,899,309

  Total expenses 4,055,600 5,323,981 3,424,672 1,899,309

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
  expenses (budget basis) before transfers (1,949,588) (3,217,969) (1,139,608) 2,078,361

Operating transfers:

 Transfers out (5,900,000) (5,900,000) (5,900,000) -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

  expenses (budget basis) (7,849,588) (9,117,969) (7,039,608) 2,078,361

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (1,949,141) (1,949,141)

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses
   per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 3,424,672 3,424,672

Net loss-GAAP basis (7,849,588)$       (9,117,969)$       (5,564,077)$       3,553,892$        

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL DEPRECIATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2015
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Contents

Financial Trends

Revenue Capacity

Debt Capacity

Demographic and Economic Information

Operating Information

Other Information
Information that City considers useful to its citizens is included in this section.

Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive 
annual financial report for the relevant year.

This part of the City of McAllen's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a 
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required 
supplementary information says about the government's overall financial health.

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the government's financial 
performance and well-being have changed over time.

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government's most significant local revenue 
source, the property tax.

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the government's current levels of 
outstanding debt and the government's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within 
which the government's financial activities take place.

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the 
government's financial report related to the services the government provides and the activities it performs.
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Schedule 1 

City of McAllen, Texas
Net Position by Component (1)

Last TenYears
(accrual basis of accounting)

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014* 2015

Governmental activities
Net investment in capital assets 171,986,623$   186,857,015$   201,811,831$   219,839,458$   230,172,991$   243,869,333$   234,246,829$   243,681,893$   261,002,031$   271,338,778$   
Restricted 17,921,869       24,738,888       55,854,614       47,710,091       29,019,666       32,491,873       33,420,883       33,151,044       23,333,654       24,007,134       
Unrestricted 87,922,212       93,419,084       74,118,438       76,581,779       93,995,308       85,628,563       87,384,447       84,517,660       45,785,583       45,826,104       

Total governmental activities net position 277,830,704$   305,014,987$   331,784,883$   344,131,328$   353,187,965$   361,989,769$   355,052,159$   361,350,597$   330,121,268$   341,172,016$   

Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets 209,134,340$   220,785,257$   230,416,888$   235,021,510$   245,458,038$   254,006,517$   269,408,160$   259,339,759$   263,527,417$   245,028,871$   
Restricted 44,571,692       46,163,426       45,494,800       52,423,804       27,626,738       28,751,369       49,320,757       50,319,574       54,776,089       53,275,318       
Unrestricted 19,168,546       29,769,032       32,304,928       33,396,959       59,404,414       58,277,207       42,513,303       56,415,746       49,262,997       80,172,274       

Total business-type activities net position 272,874,578$   296,717,715$   308,216,616$   320,842,273$   332,489,190$   341,035,093$   361,242,220$   366,075,079$   367,566,503$   378,476,463$   

Primary government
Net investment in capital assets 381,120,963$   407,642,272$   432,228,719$   454,860,968$   475,631,029$   497,875,850$   503,654,989$   503,021,652$   524,529,448$   516,367,649$   
Restricted 62,493,561       70,902,314       101,349,414     100,133,895     56,646,404       61,243,242       82,741,640       83,470,618       78,109,743       77,282,452       
Unrestricted 107,090,758     123,188,116     106,423,366     109,978,738     153,399,722     143,905,770     129,897,750     140,933,406     95,048,580       125,998,378     

Total primary government activities net position 550,705,282$   601,732,702$   640,001,499$   664,973,601$   685,677,155$   703,024,862$   716,294,379$   727,425,676$   697,687,771$   719,648,479$   

(1) As per GASB 63
* 2014 Restated per GASB 68

Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports

Fiscal Year

Source:

No data presented prior to 2002, since GASB 34 pronouncement was not in effect.

2
2
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Schedule 2 

Changes in Net Position (1)
Last Ten Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Expenses
Governmental activities:

General government 17,758,574$      18,902,664$      21,534,637$      20,045,996$      17,117,884$      21,733,177$      22,505,316$      20,817,432$      35,315,069$      26,748,778$      
Public safety 41,964,290        43,294,659        46,437,593        48,085,324        49,869,325        51,471,980        51,714,002        53,799,148        58,432,712        57,338,636        
Highways and streets 18,056,177        17,842,276        19,206,764        20,408,868        19,540,947        18,068,891        22,060,953        19,620,592        20,457,888        23,018,428        
Health and welfare 3,322,904          4,108,795          5,967,509          5,244,236          5,315,188          5,204,340          5,424,919          5,247,302          4,604,866          7,676,848          
Culture and recreation 14,182,788        15,241,701        15,581,730        16,141,618        19,345,749        16,291,072        16,468,099        18,061,633        20,996,431        13,810,026        
Interest on long-term debt 29,704               223,639             218,719             292,661             543,168             1,108,959          900,520             780,778             816,650             2,159,876          

Total governmental activities expenses 95,314,437        99,613,734        108,946,952      110,218,703      111,732,261      113,878,419      119,073,809      118,326,885      140,623,616      130,752,592      

Business-type activities:
Water services 13,011,620        12,953,033        15,068,788        15,716,736        15,273,917        16,687,578        16,492,817        17,390,301        17,474,327        17,161,204        
Sewer services 9,110,829          10,066,916        11,290,032        10,207,047        13,001,407        13,002,414        12,704,012        13,787,604        15,251,999        15,063,966        
Sanitation services 10,960,409        11,522,697        12,862,854        12,550,573        13,146,685        13,522,383        13,808,444        14,799,650        15,756,027        16,352,417        
Golf course services 1,419,748          1,381,746          1,423,536          1,435,269          1,534,412          1,468,387          1,464,808          1,451,413          1,401,051          1,365,580          
Civic center services 1,481,792          1,160,949          441,880             441,900             475,155             452,980             398,739             423,632             438,233             417,072             
Convention center services -                        2,269,201          4,619,870          4,960,887          5,311,447          5,223,853          4,970,522          5,097,875          5,591,643          5,660,315          
Airport services 4,655,977          5,040,685          5,269,306          5,882,936          6,329,579          5,964,651          6,672,164          6,867,863          7,385,213          7,922,418          
Transit services 748,048             773,448             802,198             936,081             1,019,435          1,153,729          1,155,996          1,314,193          965,054             1,432,186          
Bus services 1,051,887          1,309,375          1,915,380          1,759,980          1,631,623          2,194,468          2,553,618          2,877,020          3,973,485          3,621,901          
Anzalduas crossing -                        200,293             1,493,759          599,426             3,913,017          4,504,328          4,140,909          4,571,611          4,558,948          4,552,866          
Bridge services 6,105,402          6,462,091          9,013,061          6,018,329          5,584,690          5,773,631          6,004,265          6,111,267          6,530,689          6,877,304          

Total business-type activities expenses 48,545,712        53,140,434        64,200,664        60,509,164        67,221,367        69,948,402        70,366,294        74,692,429        79,326,669        80,427,229        

Total primary government expenses 143,860,149$    152,754,168$    173,147,616$    170,727,867$    178,953,628$    183,826,821$    189,440,103$    193,019,314$    219,950,285$    211,179,821$    

Program Revenues
Governmental activities:

Charges for services:
General government 1,861,027$        2,347,975$        2,254,601$        2,094,534$        2,187,610$        1,938,393$        1,862,654$        2,079,410$        1,918,951$        2,088,536$        
Public safety 3,950,042          4,210,066          4,058,995          3,849,128          3,665,263          4,922,835          7,358,779          4,358,385          4,366,315          7,394,577          
Highways and streets 609,428             897,697             1,257,667          1,168,774          1,132,893          1,164,718          1,140,683          1,178,562          1,160,689          1,108,870          
Health and welfare 71,060               68,585               525,182             526,815             123,730             85,343               241,620             308,515             271,722             414,699             
Culture and recreation 773,555             860,332             924,944             935,219             975,677             1,032,525          1,206,028          1,187,176          1,213,111          1,202,362          

Operating grants and contributions 1,917,181          1,920,712          2,022,022          2,016,915          1,955,046          3,326,439          2,579,065          3,592,660          2,736,600          1,961,190          
Capital grants and contributions 8,946,949          7,059,478          7,441,811          3,984,011          7,871,082          7,152,106          5,065,923          4,306,512          5,303,435          3,406,289          

Total governmental activities program revenues 18,129,242        17,364,845        18,485,222        14,575,396        17,911,301        19,622,359        19,454,752        17,011,220        16,970,823        17,576,523        

Business-type activities:
Charges for services:

Water services 15,209,812        13,170,730        15,658,843        15,877,792        13,468,048        16,510,355        15,964,657        16,125,777        15,689,054        15,659,444        
Sewer services 11,552,515        12,519,001        14,291,219        14,490,145        13,369,937        14,799,266        14,568,552        14,840,659        14,976,046        15,378,193        
Sanitation services 11,483,355        13,349,134        14,706,767        15,103,546        15,431,922        15,903,096        16,669,790        16,738,683        16,968,558        17,398,629        
Bridge services 12,939,661        12,445,997        14,447,459        12,916,479        12,816,588        13,194,421        14,559,743        14,902,453        15,747,749        13,600,185        
Other 5,580,798          6,502,957          8,824,954          9,191,418          9,571,114          9,709,773          9,536,557          9,870,476          10,513,929        15,021,175        

Operating grants and contributions 240,975             869,975             862,086             999,981             747,606             710,754             784,314             853,095             1,587,799          1,329,212          
Capital grants and contributions 4,514,298          6,766,010          5,624,181          4,514,464          10,226,872        7,959,050          4,323,382          7,161,439          8,520,524          13,042,693        

Total business-type activities program revenues 61,521,414        65,623,804        74,415,509        73,093,825        75,632,087        78,786,715        76,406,995        80,492,582        84,003,659        91,429,531        
Total primary government program revenues 79,650,656$      82,988,649$      92,900,731$      87,669,221$      93,543,388$      98,409,074$      95,861,747$      97,503,802$      100,974,482$    109,006,054$    

(Continued)

City of McAllen, Texas

Fiscal Year
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Schedule 2 

Changes in Net Position (1)
Last Ten Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

City of McAllen, Texas

Fiscal Year

Net (Expense) Revenue
Governmental activities (77,185,195)$    (82,248,889)$    (90,461,730)$    (95,643,307)$    (93,820,960)$    (94,256,060)$    (99,619,057)$    (101,315,665)$  (123,652,793)$  (113,176,069)$  
Business-type activities 12,975,702        12,483,370        10,214,845        12,584,661        8,410,720          8,838,313          6,040,701          5,800,153          4,676,990          11,002,302        
Total primary government net expense (64,209,493)$    (69,765,519)$    (80,246,885)$    (83,058,646)$    (85,410,240)$    (85,417,747)$    (93,578,356)$    (95,515,512)$    (118,975,803)$  (102,173,767)$  

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position
Governmental activities

Taxes
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 24,666,561$      26,590,140$      30,840,205$      32,183,867$      33,061,162$      32,631,332$      33,445,701$      32,783,760$      35,037,958$      39,050,045$      
Hotel occupancy taxes 3,475,170          3,923,740          4,079,224          3,514,817          3,470,995          3,257,935          3,503,985          4,784,757          5,343,765          5,479,719          
Sales tax 53,449,062        56,976,350        58,893,175        54,669,746        53,550,307        54,652,192        58,407,779        60,825,866        61,331,004        63,758,787        
Franchise taxes 6,246,017          6,242,578          6,475,882          6,266,684          6,130,317          6,349,157          6,348,331          6,457,397          6,707,787          6,613,745          

Unrestricted investment earnings 4,926,087          6,573,818          5,720,841          4,308,531          1,087,577          944,557             675,810             123,546             938,877             1,077,441          
Royalties 4,773,487          3,507,509          2,909,479          1,864,867          2,217,798          2,706,824          1,138,925          936,278             944,609             828,482             
Gain on sale of capital assets 81,418               -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Exchange (out) of capital assets to BTA -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        (15,829,693)      -                        -                        -                        
Miscellaneous 3,992,983          2,719,664          2,407,391          2,250,367          382,604             1,223,334          1,727,591          1,188,002          718,857             4,332,402          
Transfers 36,166               2,899,373          5,905,429          2,930,873          (610,088)           1,292,533          2,120,871          1,656,644          4,158,872          3,086,193          

Total governmental activities 101,646,951      109,433,172      117,231,626      107,989,752      99,290,672        103,057,864      91,539,300        108,756,250      115,181,729      124,226,814      

Business-type activities
Unrestricted investment earnings 3,396,648          5,200,991          5,560,052          2,444,095          639,242             515,713             456,604             157,213             467,440             649,882             
Gain on sale of capital assets 16,296,038        31,744               1,629,433          -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        2,098,640          1,220,285          
Miscellaneous 5,648,449          1,608,789          -                        527,774             489,538             484,409             1,001                 532,137             288,076             1,123,687          
Recovery of development costs -                        7,417,616          -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Transfers (36,166)             (2,899,373)        (5,905,429)        (2,930,873)        610,088             (1,292,533)        13,708,822        (1,656,644)        (4,158,872)        (3,086,193)        

Total business-type activities 25,304,969        11,359,767        1,284,056          40,996               1,738,868          (292,411)           14,166,427        (967,294)           (1,304,716)        (92,339)             
Total primary government 126,951,920$    120,792,939$   118,515,682$   108,030,748$   101,029,540$   102,765,453$    105,705,727$   107,788,956$   113,877,013$   124,134,475$   

Change in Net Position
Governmental activities 24,461,756$      27,184,283$      26,769,896$      12,346,445$      5,469,712$        8,801,804$        (8,079,757)$      7,440,585$        (8,471,064)$      11,050,745$      
Business-type activities 38,280,671        23,843,137        11,498,901        12,625,657        10,149,588        8,545,902          20,207,128        4,832,859          3,372,274          10,909,963        
Total government net position 62,742,427$      51,027,420$      38,268,797$      24,972,102$      15,619,300$      17,347,706$      12,127,371$      12,273,444$      (5,098,790)$      21,960,708$      

(1) As per GASB 63
(Concluded)

Comprehensive Annual Financial ReportsSource:
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Schedule 3 

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

General Fund

Nonspendable -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    400,000$        1,396,791$     1,774,762$     2,160,543$     2,295,944$     

Reserved/Assigned 1,610,164       6,540,485       5,580,194       5,253,567       3,449,615       2,925,598       1,552,643       1,730,634       447,859          457,022          

Unreserved/Unassigned 37,695,319     43,546,755     45,909,209     44,182,058     47,422,976     39,649,659     42,860,830     40,370,161     41,221,379     46,369,562     

Total General Fund 39,305,483$   50,087,240$   51,489,403$   49,435,625$   50,872,591$   42,575,257$   45,810,264$   43,875,557$   43,829,781$   49,122,528$   

All Other Governmental Funds

Reserved-other purposes 15,054,620$   23,367,311$   34,502,750$   27,576,520$   38,291,958$   -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Reserved-debt service -                      83,605            104,000          134,456          175,923          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Unreserved, reported in:

Special revenue funds 3,078,131       2,834,331       3,088,393       2,866,137       792,646          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Information technology fund -                      -                      -                      -                      1,398,522       -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Development corporation fund -                      -                      -                      -                      20,049,897     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Capital projects funds 34,036,926     21,395,178     18,159,471     17,132,979     11,855,332     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Nonspendable -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      352,716          352,716          352,716          -                      -                      

Restricted -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      38,387,750     34,171,127     33,636,421     79,530,591     71,032,714     

Committed -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      179,755          217,989          154,790          387,626          513,561          

Assigned -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      12,054,227     8,459,646       9,090,061       5,741,676       4,451,033       

Total all other governmental funds 52,169,677$   47,680,425$   55,854,614$   47,710,092$   72,564,278$   -$                    43,201,478$   43,233,988$   85,659,893$   75,997,308$   

Note:  The City implemented GASB Statement 54 "Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Defenitions" fiscal year 2011.

City of McAllen, Texas

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Last Ten Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year

2
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Schedule 4   

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Revenues

Taxes 87,632,429$   93,364,798$   99,953,473$       96,848,195$   96,048,168$     97,069,725$     101,438,055$   105,293,773$    107,695,530$    114,763,015$    

Licenses and permits 1,486,878       1,633,047       1,591,862           1,393,010       1,331,758         1,373,972         1,536,902         1,429,150          1,447,712          1,613,397          

Intergovernmental 3,261,927       4,367,134       4,868,657           4,304,941       7,277,287         8,801,979         6,734,270         6,782,631          7,376,849          3,502,500          

Charges for services 3,969,257       4,719,193       5,417,637           5,249,637       5,350,634         4,867,779         5,026,625         5,279,159          5,220,385          5,767,795          

Fines and forfeitures 2,214,624       2,311,181       2,240,518           2,170,771       1,901,986         3,185,630         5,422,628         2,548,733          2,556,904          5,415,137          

Investment earnings 4,177,110       5,577,715       4,635,946           3,675,833       807,932            728,330            508,483            69,628              739,885            876,393            

Other 9,210,805       6,949,566       7,389,981           3,265,362       3,591,386         3,979,302         2,686,826         2,101,208          1,784,518          4,348,725          

Total revenues 111,953,030   118,922,634   126,098,074       116,907,749   116,309,151     120,006,717     123,353,789     123,504,282      126,821,783      136,286,962      

Expenditures

General government 17,695,852     18,796,014     18,604,824         19,969,671     16,942,447       20,836,539       19,601,840       19,550,411        34,649,924        25,333,902        

Public safety 40,954,974     42,044,757     44,721,496         47,689,420     47,498,138       49,529,997       49,272,439       50,041,327        51,912,722        52,994,445        

Highways and streets 13,370,846     13,016,782     12,365,458         14,983,473     12,496,418       11,827,035       18,169,966       13,414,722        13,318,011        10,782,403        

Health and welfare 3,333,002       4,110,388       5,964,095           5,255,632       5,285,260         5,168,679         5,388,416         5,208,427          4,552,904          7,512,747          

Culture and recreation 12,944,311     13,637,582     13,978,939         14,688,034     17,456,529       14,170,021       14,601,437       15,410,540        17,194,648        17,767,314        

Capital outlay 21,677,783     25,285,595     26,157,346         25,276,574     23,274,673       42,517,494       19,836,269       19,896,331        22,156,818        29,946,314        

Debt service:

Principal 25,000            440,000          435,000              2,855,000       511,213            5,560,741         2,530,000         2,645,000          2,765,000          3,695,000          

Interest 15,762            198,387          199,993              319,116          178,148            1,510,338         1,012,256         896,365            774,407            3,645,877          

Total expenditures 110,017,530   117,529,505   122,427,151       131,036,920   123,642,826     151,120,844     130,412,623     127,063,123      147,324,434      151,678,002      

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 1,935,500       1,393,129       3,670,923           (14,129,171)    (7,333,675)       (31,114,127)     (7,058,834)       (3,558,841)        (20,502,651)      (15,391,040)      

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Bond proceeds 4,800,000       -                     -                         -                     29,030,000       -                       -                       -                        54,230,001        -                        

Other -                     -                     -                         -                     1,117,990         -                       -                       -                        -                        -                        

Transfers in 37,747,066     20,941,598     42,201,877         26,783,190     9,790,572         22,378,622       15,970,624       22,353,826        18,453,155        26,945,098        

Bond Premium -                     -                     -                         -                     -                       -                       -                       -                        3,493,907          -                        

Transfers out (37,710,900)    (16,042,225)    (36,296,448)        (22,852,317)    (9,900,660)       (20,751,659)     (13,849,753)     (20,697,182)      (13,544,283)      (15,923,896)      

Total other financing sources (uses) 4,836,166       4,899,373       5,905,429           3,930,873       30,037,902       1,626,963         2,120,871         1,656,644          62,632,780        11,021,202        

Net change in fund balances 6,771,666$     6,292,502$     9,576,352$         (10,198,298)$  22,704,227$     (29,487,164)$   (4,937,963)$     (1,902,197)$      42,130,129$      (4,369,838)$      

Debt service as a percentage of

noncapital expenditures 0.05% 0.69% 0.66% 3.00% 0.69% 6.51% 3.20% 3.30% 2.83% 6.03%

Source:  Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports

City of McAllen, Texas

Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Last Ten Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year
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Schedule 5  

Fiscal Year Property Sales Franchise Total

7% 2%

2006 24,462,180$      53,449,062$      6,246,017$           3,475,170$          -$                        87,632,429$      

2007 26,222,130        56,976,350        6,242,578             3,923,740            -                          93,364,798        

2008 30,505,191        58,893,175        6,475,882             4,079,225            -                          99,953,473        

2009 32,396,948        54,669,746        6,266,684             3,514,817            -                          96,848,195        

2010 32,896,549        53,550,307        6,130,317             3,470,995            -                          96,048,168        

2011 32,810,441        54,652,192        6,349,157             3,257,935            -                          97,069,725        

2012 33,177,960        58,407,780        6,348,331             3,503,985            -                          101,438,056      

2013 33,225,753        60,825,866        6,457,397             3,978,186            806,571               105,293,773      

2014 34,312,972        61,331,004        6,707,787             4,156,140            1,187,625            107,695,528      

2015 38,910,760        62,939,971        6,613,748             4,262,268            1,217,452            113,944,199      

Change 2006-2015 59.06% 17.76% 5.89% 22.65% 100.00% 30.03%

Hotel

City of McAllen, Texas

Tax Revenues by Source - Governmental Funds

Last Ten Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

2
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Schedule 6 

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Retail 1,897$       2,138$       2,211$       2,018$         1,735$           1,710$         1,789$         1,844$         1,855$         1,405$         
Services 157            180            170            153              114                170              181              196              208              174              
Wholesale 149            65              76              68                70                  100              122              109              118              88                
Other 210            178            140            115              311                446              469              491              506              399              
Total - All Industries 2,413$       2,561$       2,597$       2,354$         2,374$           2,426$         2,561$         2,640$         2,687$         2,066$         

(1)

Other includes Agricultural/Forestry, Mining, Construction, Manufacturing, Transportation/Utilities, Financial Services, and Othe

Building Materials 8% 7% 7% 6% 5% 6% 6% 5% 5% 5%
General Merchandise 27% 27% 32% 31% 28% 27% 28% 28% 28% 27%
Food Stores 6% 5% 5% 5% 6% 6% 6% 6% 6% 6%
Automotive 3% 3% 5% 5% 6% 6% 5% 5% 6% 5%
Clothing 16% 16% 17% 17% 15% 15% 16% 17% 17% 17%
Home Furnishings 12% 11% 12% 12% 13% 13% 13% 13% 12% 12%
Restaurants 13% 12% 13% 14% 17% 17% 17% 17% 17% 19%
Miscellaneous Retail 10% 8% 9% 10% 10% 10% 9% 9% 9% 9%
Total 94% 89% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

(1)  Represents only three quarters of fiscal year.

Source:  State Comptroller's Office

The State Comptroller's Office does not report detail of the Retail category at the city level due to confidentiality issues.  The allocation presented, which is by MSA is intended to 
give some indication. 

City of McAllen, Texas
Taxable Sales by Category

Last Ten Years
(in Millions)

Percent Allocation of Taxable Sales - Retail Only

2
3
1



Schedule 7 

Fiscal Total Total
Year Tax Less:   Net Taxable Direct

Ended Roll Residential Commercial Industrial Tax-Exempt Assessed Tax
September 30 Year Property Property Property Minerals Other Property Value Rate

2006 2005 3,012,119,776$    1,524,395,866$    77,484,714$    159,146,526$      1,290,466,084$   536,338,311$     5,527,274,655$    0.42$   
2007 2006 4,034,338,716      1,568,016,882      79,479,396      146,936,440        1,023,232,516     948,864,893       5,903,139,057      0.42     
2008 2007 5,223,070,568      1,824,887,008      96,386,085      138,350,623        1,059,350,233     1,427,513,149    6,914,531,368      0.42     
2009 2008 5,342,975,502      1,811,694,737      108,693,602    134,182,390        1,157,900,178     1,448,502,453    7,106,943,956      0.42     
2010 2009 5,470,285,311      2,077,102,840      115,185,930    133,174,260        1,257,860,959     1,531,608,214    7,522,001,086      0.42     
2011 2010 5,491,264,094      2,160,760,863      121,679,009    28,213,093          1,257,885,005     1,549,344,920    7,510,457,144      0.42     
2012 2011 5,492,004,364      2,213,159,640      53,492,220      13,149,573          1,286,916,306     1,557,190,079    7,501,532,024      0.42     
2013 2012 4,327,680,248      3,343,176,312      137,187,071    68,824,902          1,013,294,611     1,326,819,524    7,563,343,620      0.43     
2014 2013 4,475,282,922      3,503,723,046      132,720,411    71,783,017          1,011,927,424     1,360,010,810    7,835,426,010      0.43     
2015 2014 4,474,949,998      3,533,253,705      124,370,144    73,248,263          1,030,966,285     1,347,181,652    7,889,606,743      0.43     

(1) The assessed value and actual value of properties is the same amount.  The appraisal district appraises all property at market value.
A column for the actual value is not reflected.

Source:  City of McAllen Tax Office & Hidalgo County Appraisal District Tax Roll

0.42$   

Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property (1)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2
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Schedule 8 

Fiscal General Hidalgo 
Year Tax Obligation County 

Ended Roll Basic Debt Total Drainage Hidalgo
September 30 Year Rate Service Direct McAllen Sharyland P.S.J.A So. Tx College Hidalgo Edinburg District No.1 County

2006 2005 0.42$       -$           0.42$     1.54$       1.57$         1.61$         0.15$             1.59$         1.59$       0.04$            0.59$         
2007 2006 0.42         -             0.42       1.61         1.57           1.61           0.15               1.61           1.58         0.05              0.59           
2008 2007 0.41         0.01           0.42       1.48         1.55           1.52           0.15               1.54           1.45         0.07              0.59           
2009 2008 0.41         0.01           0.42       1.15         1.19           1.21           0.15               1.32           1.12         0.07              0.59           
2010 2009 0.41         0.01           0.42       1.17         1.19           1.27           0.15               1.35           1.19         0.07              0.59           
2011 2010 0.41         0.01           0.42       1.17         1.19           1.27           0.15               1.35           1.19         0.07              0.59           
2012 2011 0.41         0.01           0.42       1.17         1.20           1.36           0.15               1.44           1.24         0.07              0.59           
2013 2012 0.43         -             0.43       1.17         1.29           1.36           0.15               1.56           1.24         0.08              0.59           
2014 2013 0.43         -             0.43       1.17         1.29           1.36           0.15               1.56           1.24         0.07              0.59           
2015 2014 0.48         0.04           0.43       1.17         1.34           1.36           0.19               1.53           1.24         0.10              0.59           

School Districts

City Direct Rates Overlapping Rates

City of McAllen, Texas
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(rate per $100 of assessed value)

2
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Schedule 9 

Percentage Percentage

of Total City of Total City

Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable

Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value

Simon Property Group 85,303,024$       1 1.08% 44,108,254$       3 0.80%

Rio Grande Regional Hospital 54,415,269         2 0.69% 80,627,950         2 1.46%

Universal Health Services 46,786,593         3 0.59% 90,906,259         1 1.64%

Palms Crossing LP 41,915,932         4 0.53% -                          - -                     

AEP Texas Central Co. 34,385,960         5 0.44% 36,735,340         4 0.01                   

GE Engine Services 33,859,920         6 0.43% 0.00%

H E Butt Grocery Company 25,856,763         7 0.33% 23,672,753         9 0.43%

Inland Western 21,877,590         8 0.28% -                          - -                     

McAllen Medical Center 18,219,227         9 0.23% -                          - -                     

Abasto Corp 17,445,951         10 0.22% -                          - -                     

Wal-Mart Stores Texas LP -                          n/a 35,274,128         5 0.64%

Total E & P USA, Inc. -                          n/a 32,238,960         6 0.58%

Texas State Bank -                          n/a 30,611,330         7 0.55%

Sprint Spectrum LP -                          n/a 24,587,890         8 0.44%

Southwestern Bell 22,968,540         10 0.42%

380,066,229$     4.82% 421,731,404$     7.63%

Data Source: City of McAllen - Tax Office

City of McAllen, Texas

Principal Property Tax Payers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2015 2006

2
3
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Schedule 10 

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Taxes Levied Adjustments  Adjusted
Tax Within the to Levy in Taxes Levied Collections

Fiscal Roll Fiscal Year the for the in Subsequent 
Year Year of the Levy Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Amount Years Amount

2006 2005 23,248,262$          370,471$          23,618,733$        22,358,944$          94.67% 1,182,727$          23,541,671$        99.67%
2007 2006 24,788,834            487,091            25,275,925         23,920,313            94.64% 1,258,636            25,178,949         99.62%
2008 2007 28,896,119            926,195            29,822,314         27,625,803            92.63% 2,066,678            29,692,481         99.56%
2009 2008 29,639,988            2,067,032         31,707,020         29,325,155            92.49% 2,216,202            31,541,357         99.48%
2010 2009 31,356,112            668,253            32,024,365         30,347,810            94.76% 1,442,909            31,790,719         99.27%
2011 2010 31,313,663            163,882            31,477,545         30,120,972            95.69% 1,162,990            31,283,962         99.39%
2012 2011 31,996,395            15,446              32,011,841         30,858,609            96.40% 939,764               31,798,373         99.33%
2013 2012 32,234,649            (21,260)             32,213,389         31,076,068            96.47% 815,949               31,892,017         99.00%
2014 2013 33,395,738            154,588            33,550,326         32,474,873            96.79% 568,875               33,043,748         98.49%
2015 2014 33,720,873            788,785            34,509,658         33,451,451            96.93% -                          33,451,451         96.93%

 

Source: City of McAllen Tax Office

of Levy

Collected Within the
Fiscal Year of the Levy

Percentage
of Levy

Total Collections 
Percentage

2
3
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Schedule 11 

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Combination Tax Anzalduas
General and Revenue Sales International International Airport Total

Fiscal Obligation Certificates of Tax Revenue Tax Lien Water Revenue Sewer Revenue Toll Bridge Crossing CO Primary of Personal Per

Year Bonds Obligation Obligations Note Note Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Government Capitaa

2006 -$                    -$                     300,000$        4,800,000$  -$                 24,200,400$    19,014,600$    1,520,000$     -$                 -$                49,835,000$       2.25% 2,912$     
2007 -                      -                       275,000          4,385,000    -                   29,352,650      40,137,350      1,295,000       39,160,000   -                  114,605,000       N /A         N /A
2008 -                      -                       250,000          3,975,000    2,400,000    28,364,250      39,360,750      1,060,000       39,160,000   -                  114,570,000       N /A         N /A
2009 -                      -                       225,000          3,545,000    306,954       27,176,000      37,999,000      815,000          39,160,000   -                  109,226,954       N /A         N /A
2010 -                      29,030,000      200,000          3,100,000    265,741       25,926,500      49,073,500      555,000          38,405,000   -                  146,555,741       5.53% 7,178       
2011 -                      26,860,000      175,000          -                   -                   24,622,050      65,057,950      285,000          37,615,000   -                  154,615,000       N /A         N /A
2012 -                      24,355,000      150,000          -                   -                   23,229,672      69,610,330      -                     36,795,000   9,495,000   163,635,002       6.30% 1,227       
2013 -                      21,735,000      125,000          -                   -                   21,780,769      79,156,233      -                     35,645,000   9,125,000   167,567,002       5.76% 1,220       
2014 42,380,000     30,845,000      100,000          -                   -                   20,266,159      75,842,843      -                     34,445,000   8,750,000   212,629,002       7.40% 1,548       
2015 56,815,000     11,645,000      75,000            -                   -                   17,428,008      111,262,992    -                     33,195,000   8,365,000   238,786,000       8.03% 1,768       

  

N/A Information not available
Note:  Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
aSee Schedule 16 for personal income and population data.

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

Incomea

Percentage

2
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Schedule 12 

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

RATIO OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

Last Ten Fiscal Years

General 

Fiscal Obligation Per

Year Bonds Capitab

2006 -$                         -$                    N/A

2007 -                              -                      N/A

2008 -                              -                      N/A

2009 -                              -                      N/A

2010 -                              -                      N/A

2011 26,860,000              0.36% 203

2012 24,355,000              0.32% 183

2013 21,735,000              0.29% 158

2014 73,225,000              0.93% 533

2015 68,460,000              0.87% 507

Note:  Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

aSee Schedule 7 for property value data.

bSee Schedule 16 for population data.

Propertya

Percentage of

Actual Taxable

Value of

2
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Schedule 13 

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

As of September 30, 2015

Estimated

Estimated Share of

Debt Percentage Overlapping

Outstanding Applicable* Debt

Debt repaid with property taxes

Hidalgo County 175,805,000$       25.85% 45,445,593$      

McAllen Independent School District 85,405,000           98.85% 84,422,843        

Sharyland Independent School District 112,974,999         26.98% 30,480,655        

P.S.J.A Independent School District 331,552,801         13.01% 43,135,019        

Hidalgo County Drainage District #1 157,700,000         26.60% 41,948,200        

South Texas College 171,015,000         23.92% 40,906,788        

Hidalgo Independent School District 42,695,000           21.43% 9,149,539          

Edinburg Independent School District 157,610,000         2.78% 4,381,558          

Subtotal, overlapping debt 299,870,195      

City of McAllen (direct debt) 68,460,000           100.00% 68,460,000        

Total direct and overlapping debt 368,330,195$    

*The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values.  Applicable percentages

were estimated by determing the entities' taxable assessed value that is with the City's bonundaries and dividing the entities'

total taxable assessed value.

Source: Information provided by First Southwest

Governmental  Unit
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Schedule 14 

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2015

Assessed value 7,889,606,743$   

Debt limit (5% of assessed value) 394,480,337        

Debt applicable to limit:

General obligation bonds 68,460,000          

Less:  amount set aside for

repayment of general obligation

debt (292,191)              

Total net debt applicable to limit 68,167,809          

Legal debt margin 326,312,528$      

Fiscal Year

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Debt limit 276,363,733$   295,156,953$   345,726,568$   355,347,198$   343,935,483$   348,892,264$   350,989,886$   356,700,467$   391,771,301$   394,480,337$      

Total net debt applicable to limit -                        -                        -                        685,351            32,164,571       26,630,593       24,086,715       21,466,714       72,940,390       68,167,809          

Legal debt margin 276,363,733$   295,156,953$   345,726,568$   354,661,847$   311,770,912$   322,261,671$   326,903,171$   335,233,753$   318,830,911$   326,312,528$      

Total net debt applicable to the

limit as a percentage of debt limit 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.19% 10.32% 8.26% 7.37% 6.40% 22.88% 20.89%

Note:  State statutes do not prescribe a debt limit; however, by custom,

a practical economic debt limit of 5% of the assessed valuation is used.

City of McAllen, Texas

Legal Debt Margin Information

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Schedule 15 

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Less: Net Less: Net
Fiscal Total Operating Available Total Operating Available
Year Revenues (a) Expenses (b) Revenue Principal Interest Coverage Revenues (a) Expenses (b) Revenue Principal Interest Coverage

2006 17,354,452$           9,335,864$              8,018,588$           753,200$      1,202,211$      4.10        13,440,241$     6,034,210$       7,406,031$          1,136,800$          952,950$       3.54           
2007 15,720,963             9,225,416                6,495,547             940,800        1,243,423        2.97        15,342,714       5,550,727         9,791,987            739,200               1,908,863      3.70           
2008 17,578,762             11,300,642              6,278,120             988,400        1,191,688        2.88        16,288,846       6,363,341         9,925,505            776,600               2,049,023      3.51           
2009 17,273,180             11,989,744              5,283,436             1,188,250     1,136,605        2.27        15,806,052       5,173,309         10,632,743          1,361,750            2,000,014      3.16           
2010 14,171,787             11,485,174              2,686,613             1,249,500     1,075,460        1.16        13,625,200       7,403,312         6,221,888            1,425,500            1,934,911      1.85           
2011 17,171,510             12,654,063              4,517,447             1,383,900     1,348,650        1.65        15,035,929       7,364,113         7,671,816            2,616,100            1,446,363      1.89           
2012 16,572,667             12,081,927              4,490,740             1,448,903     1,294,300        1.64        14,724,233       7,392,664         7,331,569            2,771,097            1,376,273      1.77           
2013 16,634,518             12,613,800              4,020,718             1,514,610     1,227,162        1.47        14,899,235       8,092,635         6,806,600            3,313,390            1,386,497      1.45           
2014 16,269,236             12,315,395              3,953,841             1,583,751     1,160,204        1.44        15,128,924       8,138,492         6,990,432            3,594,249            1,327,371      1.42           
2015 16,864,143             11,974,407              4,889,736             1,649,458     1,016,999        1.83        15,590,842       7,687,962         7,902,880            4,486,542            1,116,563      1.41           

Note: (a) Includes operating revenues and non-operating revenues

(b) Operating expenses do not include interest, depreciation, or amortization expenses.

Water Revenue Bonds Sewer Revenue Bonds

Debt Service Debt Service

2
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Schedule 16 

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

Last Ten  Years

Personal Per
Income Capita

Estimated (thousands Personal Median School Unemployment
Year Population of dollars) Income Age Enrollment Rate

2006 129,650         2,218,830$    17,114$        30.3     24,531             4.70%
2007 130,700         2,294,046      17,552          30.0     24,814             4.50%
2008 132,075         2,504,009      18,959          29.5     25,047             5.30%
2009 133,197         Not Available Not Available * 25,154             7.50%
2010 129,877         2,651,569      20,416          32.2     25,164             7.40%
2011 132,338         Not Available Not Available N/A 25,263             8.20%
2012 133,333         2,598,660      19,490          30.7     25,310             7.80%
2013 137,608         2,906,693      21,123          32.5     24,500             10.70%
2014 137,358         2,874,354      20,926          32.0     25,217             8.50%
2015 138,925         2,974,384      21,410          32.5     24,692             4.90%

(A) (B) (C) (D) (E)

SOURCE:

(A) U.S Census Bureau-2014 and local estimates;  2010 Official U.S. Census

(B) U.S Census Bureau-2014 community survey profile.

(C) U.S Census Bureau-2014 community survey profile.

(D) McAllen Independent School District

(E) U. S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 
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Schedule 17 

Percentage Percentage

of Total City of Total City

Employer Employees Rank Employment Employer Employees Rank Employment

McAllen Independent School District 3,419     1 5.71% McAllen Independent School District 3,451            1 5.83%

South Texas College 2,200     2 3.67% City of McAllen 1,801            2 3.04%

McAllen Medical Center 2,000     3 3.34% McAllen Medical Center 1,700            3 2.87%

City of McAllen 1,877     4 3.13% South Texas College 1,664            4 2.81%

H-E-B 1,220     5 2.04% Rio Grande Regional Hospital 1,020            5 1.72%

International Bank of Commerce 1,200     6 2.00% Wal-Mart 500               6 0.84%

Rio Grande Regional Hospital 1,100     7 1.84% International Bank of Commerce 425               7 0.72%

Wal-Mart 1,000     8 1.67% Texas State Bank 400               8 0.68%

GE Engines 650        9 1.09% Macy's 354               9 0.60%

Dillards 354        10 0.59% J C Penny Company 350               10 0.59%

Total 15,020   25.08% 11,665          19.70%

(A) (B) (C) (C)

Source:

(A) McAllen Economic Development Corporation (MEDC)

(B) Texas Workforce Commission for total city employment - 59,877

(C) City of McAllen CAFR Fiscal Year 2006

 

City of McAllen, Texas

Principal Employers in the Area

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

20062015
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Schedule 18 

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM,

Last Ten Fiscal Years

full time full time full time full time full time full time full time full time full time full time

only only only only only only only only only only

Function/Program 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

General Government 177      188      185      182        182        188      189      192      192      196      

Public Safety:

  Police:

Officers 264      269      275      275        275        275      281      285      285      285      

Civilians 140      140      136      136        143        143      140      136      136      143      

 Fire:

 Fire fighters and officers 157      159      163      164        164        164      167      167      167      167      

Civilians 11        12        13        13          13          12        11        11        11        12        

 Other 62        78        56        56          56          56        55        56        56        62        

Highways and streets 111      112      112      100        100        96        97        97        97        98        

Health and welfare 16        16        24        24          25          25        25        26        26        25        

Culture and Recreational 177      180      187      186        186        189      192      195      195      197      

Downtown Services 11        12        15        17          17          17        17        16        16        16        

Water services 126      130      131      135        135        135      138      137      137      137      

Sewer services 74        74        81        81          81          81        82        84        84        85        

Sanitation 126      128      133      136        136        138      145      148      148      153      

Golf Course 13        12        12        12          12          12        15        12        12        12        

Convention Center 47        37        38        38          38          37        38        38        38        39        

Airport 30        31        38        38          38          38        39        41        41        38        

Transit terminal 13        13        12        12          12          12        13        8          8          8          

Express transit 20        22        21        22          22          29        30        47        47        47        

Bridge 43        43        31        33          33          33        44        32        32        41        

Anzalduas Bridge -           -           -           10          12          13        13        10        10        13        

Fleet Services 25        25        25        25          25          21        24        21        21        26        

Employee benefits 3          4          5          5            5            5          5          5          5          5          

Risk Management 4          4          5          5            5            6          6          7          7          7          

Total 1,650   1,689   1,698   1,705     1,715     1,725   1,766   1,771   1,771   1,812   

Source:  City's Budget Document
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Schedule 19  

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Public Safety
Police

Number of employees-commissioned 260 264 267 262 270 275 280 281 285 285
Number of service calls 147,724 160,000 153,970 162,273 166,653 162,250 157,884 147,528 144,761 152,303

Fire
Number of firemen 151 157 160 170 158 164 160 167 167 167
Total number of alarm responses 4,359 5,130 4,434 4,391 5,000 4,500 5,711 5,949 5,500 6,674

Code enforcement
Number of employees 19 21 21 21 20 19 20 20 20 22
Number of building permits 1,987 1,794 1,341 1,308 1,562 1,584 1,869 1,671 1,562 1,559

Development services
Street Resurfacing (linear miles) 25 26 28 29 21 25 10 26 48 42
Sidewalk Construction (linear feet) 43,084 30,000 36,960 37,100 11,480 10,560 23,930 7,920 1,065 29,304

Cultural and recreational
Parks and recreation

Participants in special event programs 418,000 418,000 458,250 425,000 93,250 440,000 440,000 245,000 104,500 360,000
Participants in athletic programs 8,196 9,500 16,400 6,800 17,045 7,500 14,500 16,000 8,145 518
Participants in after school  programs 3,240 2,992 3,200 3,100 2,053 1,800 2,200 1,800 1,648 827

Library-main
Volumes in collection 410,896 364,450 351,950 349,117 359,809 414,135 320,043 323019 281,643 324,932

Water and sewer system
Number of water customers 39,060 40,074 40,876 41,607 42,052 42,792 43,306 44,068 44,708 45,830
Number of sewer custoumers 34,414 35,493 36,229 37,062 37,521 38,184 38,563 39,247 39,802 40,996
Average daily water consumption (gallons) 24,623,690 22,484,700 23,737,233 23,860,020 19,654,727 24,508,796 25,867,849 25,952,225 23,953,301 21,000,000
Maximum storage capacity (gallons) #2 plant 7,100,000 7,100,000 7,900,000 7,900,000 7,900,000 7,900,000 7,900,000 7,900,000 7,900,000 7,900,000
Maximum storage capacity (gallons)-north plant 4,000,000        4,000,000        4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000
Rainfall (inches) 12.27 19.01 27.80 9.65 38.00 24.66 17.88 14.39 24.43 21.22

Sanitation

Refuse collected (tons) 26,752 27,177 28,695 29,080 29,500 30,000 29,395 122,499 127,562 138,149
Bulky/brush pickups (tons) 200,000 202,000 67,274 19,879 5,500 4,703 30,527 44,187 22,265 30,410
Recyclables collected (tons) 4,515 5,000 8,030 3,926 3,791 4,525 5,235 5,476 4,323 4,323

Golf course
Total number of rounds 45,840 44,200 42,219 43,803 44,153 41,308 40,977 39,759 36,859 40,447

Source:  City Departments
Estimates: Fiscal Year 2015
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Public Safety

Police stations 1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1 1 1

Police sub-stations 7         7         6         6         7         7         7         7 6 7

Fire stations 6         6         6         7         7         7         7         7 7 7

Fire hydrants 3,350  3,700  3,800  3,994  3,984  3,988  4,000  4,000  4,200  4200

Development Services

City area:

Square miles 47.7 (1) 48.1 48.7 48.8 48.7 48.7 49.6 49.6 49.8 54.5

Acres 30,552 (1) 30,785 31,169 31,222 31,169 31,169 31,733 31,747 31,898 34864

Streets- paved (miles) 645     567     565     495     486     487     464     464 480 540

Cultural and Recreational

Developed parks (acres) 521     537     668     362     866     705     728     577 600 615

Parks (acres)-undeveloped 432     416     487     410     481     474     417     488 398 382

Swimming pools 4         4         4         4         4         4         4         4 4 4

Tennis courts 25       25       25       15       24       24       24       24 26 36

Lighted baseball dimonds/athletic fields 17       17       17       112     8         12       12       12 12 29

Municipal golf (18-hole course) 1         1         1         1         1         1         1         1 1 1

Water and Sewer

Water mains (miles) 700     700     703     706     706     803     714     714 1,046 738

Sanitary sewers (miles) 470     470     489     489     489     503     489     500 500 535

Storm (miles) 239     265     268     283     273     273     315     315 315 315

(1) Revised by engineering.

Source:  City Departments
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Schedule 21

CITY OF MCALLEN, TEXAS

MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA

Section I--water rates

The rate charged for water furnished and consumed under the standard water rate schedule by

Section 106-82 of the City Ordinance, amended October 1, 2015 to all classes of customers is as follows:

(1)

Inside City Commodity

Minimum rate Rate

$7.95

(1) Per 1,000 gallons or any part thereof as follows:  Residential-$1.35/1,000 gallons for the first 13,000 gallons; plus

$1.65/1,000 for consumption between 13,000 and 18,000 gallons; and $1.85 for consumption over 18,000 gallons.

Commercial, Multi-family, and Industrial-$1.35/1,000 gallons for the first 12-month average base consumption; plus

$1.85/1,000 for consumption over the 12-month average base consumption.

Sprinkler-$1.85/1,000 gallons

Section II--Estimated unaccounted gallons of water

Class of customers Number Usage (gallons)

Residential 38,098 3,814,659,800

Commercial 7,101 2,773,831,000

Industrial 163 304,238,500

Number of gallons shown to have passed through the master meters

at the City's plants #2 and #3 during the period 7,711,960,000

Number of gallons billed (6,892,729,300)    

Estimated water used in fire hydrant testing, etc. (49,000,000)         

Estimated number of gallons unaccounted due to breaks, leaks, etc. 770,230,700
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pouibiUty that ..... ten.J ItUSIUtcmml of the Gry'l financial.tot_tl will not be f'=Ctl,cd, 

--~ u_ ......... __ ", 

Grant Thornton 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTlFlED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
ON INTERNAl CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MAnERS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS 

TIIf: Hononblr M.yur, M=oo. of !he CiIJ Conmus_ and 

PubIs< UtiliI)' BoanI ofTlUIlft:I 

Ci.,.of' McAUca. Teus 

," __ UI' 
100 ____ »1 

_ III 11002304 

f lU~lt~ 
, 1ll 6S~.14J 

.~~ 

-~ ... ~ 
-~ ... ~ 

We bove audilni, In Kcordsna .,Ih ludiWlfl.lUldudo gmeWly acup< ...... II>< Unnnl Slal<:l 
of Amenca Ind the 'Wldanb Ipplinblc 10 rlnanaal audit> eon'''''''''' III Co",_v A.ao~ 
su..;.",u ".ued by the Compuolkr Go:nft'Il o f !he Unlit<! Sm,,,., ,he fuurw:W IU'~" of the 

governmental aclwiti .... me bu'UJelHypc IctMUocl, each majo. fund, .nd the Iggrqpte rem.in",! 
fund infornul1OJl o f me Cit)' Qf McAlkn. Tau (!be "City") OJ of 'rid for the j"N' ended 
Sept=btt 30, 201 S, and 1M ,d:u...! notes to the financi.allulnncnll, ... tucb colkcuvcly compnsc 
me, e .. ,... boulC ~ .... =-u. and IIlve ... .-1 ouc <q><>n thtt<!(lll dtlt<! M.n:h 23, 2016. 

Our report onduda • ",(erma 10 otMr ludltan ...no wdiU'd 1M 6n.mcuJ .lIlemmli of the 

F~'. RdjJ.lad ~l Fund,. Ii.duoarr fund of the 01)' of Mc:AlItn. .. dr.nibrd '" 
our repon 00 !he Cdy'l li""naoJ ItI.nnmrs. n... repon doa noc ... cIudt Ihc""""u of' 1M <Ilher 
wdi.o..· 1i'OUD(! ollDremal OOfIuoI OtIC financW ,.pot""! 0< rompIwIce MId o.h.,.. ID>m;n ct... 
arc repon.,.j on KpAfS.dy by u....., aud.ron. 

Inl9mal oontrol OYS fInand.t reporting 

Tn plonn;ng ""d pnfonrung our Iud" of the fin""aol ,u.temmu., .. ." conudcrcd the GI)'" 

mttmal contrOL oYer fino.nciaI ~ng iintcrnol «>ntrol") to dts'lJllludu I'ro«dure. !lut Ilt. 
Ippropm.te in tlw: arcumltanc .. f"" m., putpost! of up<nlltlg OW" OPI/UOl\l on t/u, financi..I 

Itltc:menU, but not f"" the pu:pmc of aptnIII'f! "" opinion an m., dTC'CtIVm ... of ""crnol 
contrOl ActtndingIy, ~ do toot up ..... "" optn>OD on the crr~onm or m., City'. iotanal 

~"'" 

A drfir:>oDq In mt~ ""moo! QIIU "i><D m., drDgft OI'<>pn'IOOII 01. oon uol do.. not &IIow 
roanogtmc:n, Of nnpIoytto, on tht 0CIII:t»al COUfX of perlonnong dItII' ....-. hmctioo .. to 

pr'CVeOt, 0< drt...:o ."d ~, mwu._ .. on • tBDd). ba-. A motrnal .. -akneo .... 

drficmcy, or. combIMuan of ddicomoft, III Internal oontrol. ouch th .. lI\cn, .. I rnsonabk 

powbihty th",. ""trnallnltltlte<t>Cfl1 of the City'. fin.ndal itt.ten>enIJ....u not be PlCVCflted, 

--~ .... - ... ~---, .. 
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M do,.tct<d and roa«.td. on I nmdy b.$aL "">gnUICOtl. do,6cimcy .. I do,6cimq. or a 
combsnaaon of d,,6cic:toaco. m m<emal control tha, .. 1eM K\'_ than a mo,ornol weokntoa. yet 

unpon:o.nt enougI:> to mc:d ............ bJ.n.:- <:horgftI wnb gonmanct.. 

Ow COIIIidenuoa of mternal control_ for the IunoIcd putpOt<O demibcd m the lint .,...",ph 
of duo __ ...d "' .. o.oc ~ ro idrnufy.n ddiom,," .n ",onnal CO.II;.oI. tho. nugb. be 

.... tc:riaI ... ~ .... M Il(!l11ficont ddiom"ea."d thnefon. matrnal....,..knesoea or ugruflClllll 

ddir:Jenaea "'"Y ail. that -.c "". idrnnJi.cd. Gn'n\ mea.. Iunllluonl, do.onng our ludi. ,.,.. dod 
"'" idrntify ony rkliaenatl In Inlernal co.",oI. w. ,.,.. conlJdu to be 1DIttr>al wakneIHI. 
H .... ..,..er. IDllmal weUnltllClmly C1III mil have nOl bern odentif>ed. \l'c did idmufy CUI"", 

dc60cnatl m Inlcmll conoml, dtscribcd In tbe KWmpInY"'g ~ of findings Ind 

qucsbOncd COlli u Itan. 2:01 $.001 .,,01 20 IS-OOZ Ihl' .. 'C contlrkr 10 be IIgnllianl rkftcioo:noea 
lD the City's inttrnll control. 

Compliance and 0IIler mellllfl 

A. put of obl1inmg reasonlllk IflUfU>Ct ,boul ,,·hethe.- ,h. Ciry" firuoncu.l '1JlttnrntJ ore f_ 
from nul.,.,.} rr-....tJ,emcn~ .. 'C p<'rfonnccl Inll of ,II comph.nce .. "h ..,1I1lI\ provwon. ofb ...... 

~oon •• c",,<nell, and 8"-n, "l""'me<t". nOllcompuoncc ... ~,h whteh oouId have I (1,...::. and 
mo,enal effttl on th. dc'Cmunloon of fm.noll ... ' ...... o, amoun ... HO\Io'CVor, providing ." 
optnion on compliance .. "h thOle proVUIOnl WU nO' In ob)t<:nvc of OW audiT. and accordingly, 
.... do no, up •• ,. IUch an opiniod. ,,,. 'HuI" of out lull d"doJft/ no """ncn of 

noncompltanc. or o,h .. m"Ien thll In: required 10 be rq>OlIed under c.."""""t AirJili"l. 
SIIl"JardI. 

City"s response 10 Iindiogs 
The City'. _pO"U to our findlllgt. wluch " dctcribed .n the occompan)"1n8 ochcduk of firn:hngs 
and 9ueoooned Cotto. 'ilia' 11<>' IUbj«tcd '0 the • ....tlllng procedut-el Ippbed In the • ....ti, of the 
fin.notl .,,'ano:o'l, and lecordmgIy.,.,.. npru, no opuuon on me Ciry" ""pon .... - ...... 
~ putpoIC of !Ius rcpon II ~ 10 ~r1be .h. ""'Il'" of QUI" _mg of 1"!lernaI motrOl oDd 

comphance and the reot.tIl1 of lhal leaong. and not 10 proY>dc lUI op"""" on .i>c effecuvencn of 

the City'sll1'c=aI contrOl M 011 cornpIianct.. Thu "1lO<I" IU1II1'cgnI par! of an • ...:Itt pttfonned 
II] occordanu .... th ~ A.toin.o: S~ In COIlwlrnng the City's mlc=al cootrol and 

wmpbance. A«onIingIy. thu rcpon io not IUllabie ror ""1 olh", purpotc. 

HOUlton, Tau 
Mardt 2J, 2016 

--~ ~.-- .. ..... --.. 

o Grant Thornton 

or d..ttt<d au! ~.d., 0lI ~ !nndy "'""*- A ItgnUoan. ckfiamqo • ~ ddiomC)'. or • 

combln~1IOII of ck6cxnaco. In ontenW control tIuot .. bo KY= than ..... tnoool ..... kMIs, yot 
""port:lld <:n<>UgI> to m=' .'InIDI)O by m.:- dluged ... "tlb SO"ttnanct.. 

au.. consiodenuoa of Internal control_ for the Iuno,ed plItJ>OIe det.eribed on 1M fUl' ~ph 
of <his $COIOQ and .. .,.. DOC daJgned fO idntufy.u d<~ IrlontenW cootrol. tIuo. nugb. Ix 
""'knaI .. ..noa..a orlogrufian. ckJiaa>aa IOd .hm:fort. ma.aW wakncsocs or ugmfoant 

~ ""'f eDt thOl ~. DO' idenn.Ii..d. G;~m ~ lunu:aoons. .... ""8 our """, ..... dod 
0.0. odmtilJ UJ.1 cklioman on ~"nn.aJ control lb •• Oft corwdu to Ix .... <enaJ wnkncu.n. 

H .... 'e'"n. ll'IJ.mal wakneuc. may au. Ill •• have no. bem idnt,,6rd. We did idenufy unam 
d<6ocnoro m m'cmll conorol. dtscribcd m th.e arnompauycng Khnklk of 6ndu!gs lad 

qtlCStIOned reall .. II.,.,.. 201 s..OOI and 20 1s..OO2 Ill .... " con,KIa .0 be IIgIUJian. deficienoeo 
... the Cili. mtemal conttol 

Compliance and 0Iher mallen 

A. p1I1 of obtainmll rtaSOn,bIr ... un.ntt .bou, ",h.,h .... ke Ci.,.·, IinantuJ.t;a,nnm .. arc f_ 
from ma,,,.w n ...... ":m .. "'. "" P"rf<.><rr>nJ 'HII of ,II compb.nce ..... b <"flam provwon. of IOWI, 
rcguI>.uon •• conltUli. and grut. ogn:emonll. nOltcornp!,ance .. "h IlihIGh oouId ha ... < I du"", and 
ml=1 .ffttl. on Ill. dc:'CmutlIDOR of flnln",ai .... nnmt omoun ... 1I"",'eVc,. providi"ll 01' 

opinion on compliance .... !lllllose P<OVlllOnS WIll not In obi«nve of our • ...:In .• nd ICCOrdlngly. 
""C do no, UP'C'" .u<:b an opinion. The rHuiu of our lei" d"doo«! nu m.",nCH of 

Itoncompll.ncc or otb ....... Ilon ,10 .. Ire rcqul/'Cd to Ix tcpOfled under ~I ... t..m'ti'lf 
SID"Jank. 

City". response 10 Iindings 
The City'. _pon&c to our findmgt. wlul:b " deocribcd m .he accompany"'8 ochcduk of fjruungo 

and 90eooooed COOII, ""'" not IObj""ted to Ihc: ,uehling procedurcl Ippbed m .he • .,di, of the 
6000n.1 ,,,,ttDal ... and KC:O<dIngIy ...... UP"'" no opuuon on ttl<! Cicy·. ""pot>"-

,,, . ..,...,... 
1M ~ of dus. "1""''' toIdy 10 dncribc ,he II«>pf. of OUC _""II of ""nn.aJ aI.mol oDd 

comphoncc and the rerulu of ,hat tClIIng. and not 10 prOVIde an DpIllU> on the dTecu.-men of 

the Ciry'. ",,<=a\ control or on mmplian«. 1lut report " an ""cval pan of.., oudu pafonnrd 
In acmtdanet ... ,,,, G-_ ...........".." SIAIItWrU on corwdnutg the City'. In.<=a\ control ond 

o:..:nplw!ce. Ac.""tbnsly. dul report » nOi .Ulwb!e ror.o1 o,h ... purpote-

lIo .... on. Tcuo 
March 23. 2016 

.. __ .... 
"~-- .. --- ,. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENOEHT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOU NTANTS 
ON COMPlIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAl PROGRAM AND 
ON INTERNAl CONTROt. OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 
OM8 CIRCULAR A·133 

T'bt Honorable Moyot, /.ttmbns ofd>., Ciry Comm ... "", and 

Pubbc Utihty &.rd ofTn.oslooa 
0.., of McAlkn, T <:nI 

Report .... compllanc. '00' •• el> .... Jo. IH ... I prog.a ... 

Go __ W' 
1OO ___ XIO 

_ fll1lXl<!-28'II 

l U1'~.~ 
' 1IH~~ll' l 0. .. __ _ 

1rid.1IVG<"---.6 
_t..,.Go.~ 

",.~ ha,·~ .",ln~d the complW>Cf of m.. Ci.,. of McAll ... , Tn .. (.ht "Orr") .... nh tho: .yp ... of 
comphancc requuemcn" deocribed U1 the u.s. Office of ).,bnogc:mCflI and Bud£ct'. OMIl 
C"",,," A·I)) C-plW_ S'¢PIf"".' . h., could h. ve I dtr.." ... d ml"ruJ .ff.n on • • ch of,tt 

mljOl" frdenJ program. [01 the )'''' ended SeplOmbcr 30, 2<la. Th. uty'. major ft<knJ 

prognnu on: i<kntifi.J HI the IIlmmuy of audit",.', n'tulu _tion of me occOO'Oponrms 11<:"""""' 
offindlngo and qunDOned COl .... 

~.$ respons/bIity 

M~( .. ruponsiblt for cornpluna ",,,h fedorallllNru, ~-.:and tho terms ..... 

.:oru:titiono of It, f.dtnl .wudJ -wL.c:abJe w the Ctry'l fWa:al Provo ..... 

Audilor'l lesponsiblity 

Our l"'fporu.ibiluJ' if 10 upr.u On opuuon on rompb.ncc (<>r Hocll o f the City'. IrulJO< {~ 
prngnm. ba..,.J on our .udlt of the rypn of rompulncc .tqUlfemnm ttfcrrod K> above. \t'. 
oonducled our . udit or romph.nc. Ul occord>ncc "'~Ih ludJUns IUondardo generally ""copIed m 

!he United SI>.I .. of Afmrica;!he .Wldard. opplicabk to finonaaloudi" COrIwned In c..mu..., 
.AJtJi11'l SIIt.JarrIs ,ullfll bJ' tbr Comptrt>lk. Gcntnl of lhe UNled SlIta; ... d Ot-ill 

CittuIar A.Bl, AJ.Jizs "S_. L-Ic-..-.u,.u '''':_Prrfo~. 

Tbooc.WKIardo and Ot.tB Cu-cuJar A· lll requue WI ""~ plan and pcrfonn the I",,"' 10 obwn 
nouonahk auunn<:c lbout """"other n(In<omplioncc ... ,'" !he IJ"IM'Il 01 wmplWKc ~ .. 

ttftnft! 10 I~ ,hOI could have 1 dttt.:1 and malauJ effect on 1 rmio' fcdcnl program 
occurred An oudll .... cludeo enmtrung. on • tat Mit., .... w:kncc 000..11 the City'. c:omp~.ncc 

,..IIh those ..,.,ut~cnltl ... d pctfOtmlllS .ucb othu procedu .... 1 ,.". con,1<kttd n«CSI'ry on 

the CIfa1ffiItmca . 

• __ u; ,-----_ .• 

Grant Thornton • 

REPORT OF INDEPEND£HT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
ON COMPlIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAl PROGRAM AND 
ON INTERNAl CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 
OMB CIRCULAR A.133 

Tht HonOftbk lI.bj"Of. M ..... b.'" ofm~ Orr Comm.u"",.OO 
Pubbc Utility 80ud ofTnA'_ 
0.,. of M<Allm, T ..... 

Report _ compll.".,. f_ •• elo .... 10. fed .... 1 p ...... m 

--~ 1O:I ____ n 
_ 1l"111X1l·284o'I 

T a31</U600 
' 1I1~~1I'1 Gt ___ _ 

- ."""' .. ~ 
-~.-

We have >mlned the complian.c:c of ~ UlJ' of McAIlm, Tn .. (.he "Cny'"J WIth tho, '}'pr& of 

complYn •• requuemm'l describN U1 Ihe US Office of )"bn"6c",.m Ind I3ud£ef'. OMB 

em.,h. A·/}J c-p!i<J",. S..pplt"".1 ,Iult couW ru.ve I dtr..." and mI.""') .«oct on ","eh of '" 
ImjOt f..deraJ prognmt fot the lor cndtd s.,p.cmhn la, 201~, In. CIty" motor fe<knJ 
prognnu on: Kko"lied m the IlIrnnury of 1\1dn".-', rro.Wlt _non of the Ie<:Ofnpanytng Kh...duL. 

oflin<hnga and qutlaoned COIla. 

~'5'~1y 

Mon g • ....,. If raponsiblt (or CCJ<rIfIIw1« ""h {eden.! '"1U1U, rqub-. and tho: Inmf and 

U>nd>tiono of III r~ .wudJ appt.c:.bk to thO' Orf'. fWen! P"'F" ....... 

AudilOr'l responslblily 

Our _p<l'IlliW"l' if, 10 apia. on or"""" on compho" •• (Of ","ell of ,II" Cuy" IIUjO< feden! 
ptognm. h .. ed on our ludit of the 'YP"" of rompllonoo ''''I''"omcn .. ..,fcrttd 10'bov ... \'t'e 
conducted our audi, o f rompbanu on o<cmd.>nce WI,h ludtunS "."dll'd. S"Ilenlly ""copted III 
the Uru,ed SlO.''''' of .... nICtIa; the .Wldard •• pplic:oblc to fi"a/1cW.udtll conwned IrI G.o....-I 
AltJiIz"l Siluthnir , .. ued bJ the Comptroller Gcncnl of ,he Uruted Sto'CS; ,,,d o~m 
Ci<cuI:u A.lll, A.woIirI I/S_, L-Ic-.-..u, .d, .... '_Pwtftt~ 

n.c.c.tandardo and OMS Cundar A· I33 ~ W, .'e plaa and pcd<mn the....do, 10 obcaIn 
.."....,.,..Ilk auunn«: obout ...... ""'" nQn<ompli:mcc .. 'Ilb !he lJ'Pft of oompluocr ~\li 
..,fenul to ,bO:M! ,hll could hove I <httc, and .... 'uw cff«, Oft • major foclo::al program 
~ An .udI, ... duodn UImlnmg. OIl • to. boom, ""tdmtt .bout the City'< «Nnp~"><. 

WIth thme ""lw ... m .... u and pcformll1g luch omn proccdu"", u ....., con..dcttd ""'-'f)' on 
lhe ct.raIffiJWlC"" . 

. __ .... . _ ..... _--,. 
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w~ ~ thaI OIl< ondi. ~ I ttOSOIU.bk bWs for OIl< "I""""" on compIiontt for nch 

DUJOt ftdnal program. H""""", .. , our auch. doeo no( pnmdo IIcso' ckt....,..,.ooa of th~ Ci.,... 

",-,""''' 
OpInion on each mapo' federal program 
In OIl< opnlon. m., Gry compJi"d, III aU _.tria! ttlpKU ..... th the 'YJI<:I of compIiona 
~ .. rcf<=ftl .0 abov~ W. could hlv~ • <hnct and ma.ma! effcci on nch of iu ma)Or 

fcdcnl P""'l'P"'" for the Jeo< nukd Sq>lrmbcr 30, 2015. 

Report on Int ..... 1 c._t,ol over c.o"""l.nc.. 

Managemenl of me City II raponlible for dooigning. ""pkm."nng. and rnltll!Alnlng t(fcel ... t 
in,anaJ conttcl. on" compliance: WIth the typeo of complu.ncc 'eqwtemmll .. ferred 10 lbove. 
In pborung and pcrformtng ou, audn o f compJuncc.,." coml(Lcred th. City'. utI ..... '" control 
ove. complu.nce: ... ith the typrt of romplWlct .eqwrtm""" thor could have. dircc,..,d ml,erW 
effect on eacll major federal progrom 10 dct.tgn IU.bl procedumo Ihll a .. "ppfO(>,ulle >0 1M 

circumstanc .. for the J>U'P<"C of ap,.-ung In opiruon "" compi.tonct for ncll ma)Ot ftdtrsl 
prognm and '0 , ... ,..,d report on in, ..... '" co. lIml oye, compltanco: '" accord: ... c • ....,111 Ol>tB 

Cira<Iu A-133, bu. 001 (or the Purp<)$<' o f t.r:prcuins .., or"""" "" , .... effecuvtll .... of ""emIl 
contrOl. CJ>'" compliance. AccordLngly, """ do nol elIp"" In "1''''''''' on the eff.ctivme .. of Iht 

City'. "'I ..... '" conlrol over compliance. 

II <kficitncy in intern'" control oyer complu.ncc ""' ... ",11m th. dcoJgn or operation of. control 

over complu.nc. doe. nol allow management Or ..... ploycc: •• '" Iht norm'" OOUrK of performing 
their uoigoed (unctions. 10 ptcVm~ or delec' and =1, noncompliance ",.11 • type of 

complu.nct ~=I of. fWmd pmgnm "". umely I»s> •. II rnllenol....,.kn<'S.! '" Inltrn'" 
control ov .. compliance IS I <k6csmcy. or. c:omm".oon of <kfic .. o ..... 10 ",I.mal control over 

compliana, ..... h w l lh.,... II • <CUo<>.bk poolibility IhOl mllairJ noncomplnoncc ""th 1 ')"J'C of 
comph:m« ' .q..urcmm' of I federal progn;m will tlOI b¢ prevtnl.d, or del«ted Ind rortI:Clcd, 

on I wnely bam. Aligruficanl dcf>e>enq' in ,,"em'" conlrol oo'er romplnonct ... <kf>Cltn<y, or 
• combmonon of delioroan, In "'1ana.J contrOl 0\'''' «>mpluna. WIth I type of compIw>c~ 

"'qUl""""''' of. federal prognm th'IIII~ .. IC'I'= thin. mllenol ....... knc .. to "'1 ...... 1 control 
CJ>'''' complianc,"" Jtt imporwIt mough 10 rnMI l\ltnOOO> by tho« cll~ WIth gm'nn:mcc. 

Our c"",,,dennon of "'lanaJ conlrol "" .. compbance ..... for the bmilni f'Wl"£* dacribcd on 
the fin. pangnph of thJt _tion ood .... nne <kt.~ '0 Idcrtnfy aU dtlio:::otncoel on toluru.i 

rontrol CJ>'" compliance tho. """,. b¢ nul.Cnll ...mn..1CI 01 """fic:ml <kflCXl'c". C",m 

theoc limllaUOlll. dunn, our Iud .. "" did not tdmnfy ..,y dcfiClenCltt on ~ Gt(1 ""em.! contrOl 
00''''' <:ornp1ianu that _ conudcr 10 b. OUI.....J ~ H ...... 'C" .. , ma.,..w .. ukn<s..,. may 

<:DOl that han not bern tdmnlied. 

---u __ ,, _ _ _ '" 
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w~ beIio:<-e that our owdU ~ a <ftSOO2.bk bWo for our 1>1"""'" on mmpIiona for arn 
.....,.,. ftclaal pmgnm. H.......u, our MIdI! doa....c provxIe.1op! okt...".....uon or!b~ 01Y" 

~ 

OpInIon on sach ....... federal prognom 
In our opmion, lhr Ocr complird. ... aD ...... mol ttlp«U, w"h the rypn of compIiona 
~ .. n:fcnnI. 10 ~bove W. could hsvt I <hrKt and m1.mal dl'cc. on nch of i .. ma)Or 
fedeal prognlJ\l fOf the yeu n>drd Sq .. ""OO' 30, 2015. 

Report on Int ..... 1 control over co,"",l.nc. 

Management of lhr Ocr is rap<><Uibie fOf dot.!gning. III\plrmmung. and matn'*"""& tA"ccu,·. 
in.=aI con<roJ. 0"" compIianu WI'" me ryp« of comp\ww;t- .r<jUItrmm .... f=cd to l bove. 
In pbn1UJ\fland perfomung OUr .udit o f complimce,,.., W<Ili<:IaTd th~ Otr'_ unemal oontrol 
ovu compij..,u ""m me ryp« of complWlu requ>rmlmll tho. o;ould .... v. I <hr«t and m",enol 
effect on osch major fedmll Provom to dctJgn lu,bl proc.-dura Ihal ate oppropnole in lhe 
circumstonc .. for m~ purpooe of ttpr"lJng an opiruon on oompt..ncc for nch major ftdorol 

prognm and to I ... , and ropon on ;".ernal control ovet complu.n"" In accord.n.c. "",Il Oll-ts 
Ciratlu A-133, hut 001 for me purt><»e of uprnlUts Ilt1 oplt1Jon on tilt efft("tlvl'<IQI of InTemol 
connol o .. er compIiance. Accordtngly,,.., do no, eJlp ........ oplllion on me dfcCtlVmell of ,h. 
City's Internal COfltrol over complu.nce. 

A /kficiency in int<1tlol control over compliance "",.10 whm Ih. dctJgn Of opcnnon of I control 
ovu complu.ncc don nol &!low management o. ernpIO)~., ttl .he oormal COlIne of ,,"fomung 
their utign.-d functions. 10 p""'.'". or /ktect and conect, noncompb.once ",lh I typt of 
comp\u.ncr reqwren>enl o f . fnIcnJ prognm "". umely tN. .... AmI''''''} wcakn"" "'''<lcrnol 
control. ",·tt contplu.oce II I ddicsmcy, or a combtnaoon of dr.ficICnaca, In "uemal control OVer 
compliancc, such ,hi, m=". rnaonabk poIllbihty ,hi, mlIlcrUJ noncomplwlce ..... m •• ~ of 
complu.oce t.qtur<."mC1lt of. fedmll program....u no< be p, ........ od, or dr.fCC"Itd Ind rorftCted, 

on I urn<lf !)." .. A ligm6cant def>=DC)' in "Hemal control 0\..". (omphall«'" dc-6citncr. or 
• combuuo1lO<l of de~ on In.ttrW control (IV« complu.na- .. o1Ih I IJPC of cornpIw>cr 
rtqI1Ift1!\trIt of. frdmll P""ll"m W'" lell ............. n I 1J\I,ma1 wnkMU on "ucmal control 

o.·u ..anpli.mc,., yn unponant enough '0 tmn. 011"'_ by ~ rnorg«l ... ~th AQI.tnWKe. 

Ou. CUIIIdt .. """ of "uemal control 0,... compliance ..... fOf the hmi,.-d ~ dctcribed ... 

the fin. pongr-aph or """ .","'''''' ... d .... , not <b~ to Idtttnfy til dr.f~ on ",.uruI 
control 0\'''' complW>cc that ""Ch' be nul.mal .. mn..1Q 01 "",tf""R' dcfxxocx .. G ... m 
Iheoc Iinu,auooa, dunn& our.udu ...., did not odOIufy ... ,./klioenae. ., dIC CiIY" intmtol control 

0\"« eomphantt WI.." ~ to lot nut..w wnkncNn.. H.....-e¥ .. , mlIl..w ...... 1uIau:I m.,­
eDI. that hln no< bcm odcnulied. 

--­"'--,,--_ ... 
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o GrantThornton 

The P"'P"* of tIuo Rrpon on inumll Conuol Over Comphan« .. JOIcIy 10 describe lhe ocope 
of our ItSnng of 1Il~ ronuol O¥~ complianu and 1M ..,.,,1 .. of.run tnnng ~ on 1M 
~11 ofO)T.1B CuwIar A-1l3. Aca>rtbngly, tIu. fq>O<IlI nof ouolJbIo for In, omc. 

"...".,.. 

1l0000ton, Tn", 
)T.bn:h2J.20J6 

--~ u~ __ ~ ___ '" 

o GrantThornton 

The P"'l"* ofdWI lIepo""" Inl~ .... 1 ConIfOl Over Comphancc II ooIcly lodnaibe 1M KOpe 

of our I~nns of ""t=W contrOl 0'<$ c~ and "'" raul,. of dul , .... uns ~ oct "'" 

~mlJ of o:.m CucuJu "' · IJ), A~, WI rcpon ,. nof IUlI>I>Io r ... an, olba 

"...,... 

1/.,...101>. T~ 
:'brdo 23, 2016 

--~ '" ______ ". 
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Gra ntThornton 

REPORT OF INDEPENDEHT CERTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS 
ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH M.tJOR STATE PRQGRAMAHD 
ON INTERNAl CONTROL OVER COMPUANCE REQUIRED BY 
STATE OF TEXAS SINGLE AUDIT CIRCULAR 

n.., Hooonble Mlyo<, M.."b.n of th~ Ciry Com"",,_ and 

Pubbr Utiluy Board afTru ... ..,. 

uryofMc..>.!kn. T""", 

Report .... eompU."ce fo, .ach ..... 10' ablt. prog,am 

..... "'--~ 'OD ___ JXI 

_. n l1'OO2JM 

UJHIU600 
f 1!J6~11'I c. .. __ --­_~TIoor-.I$ 

W~ b.a,,~ 1!><b,1td m" compblnc", of .... Cny of MeAD ... , Tau (the ''Ci.,., .... th ,/'" 'Y~ of 

compb>.nce ~1fmIm1l doo..,bed '" 'h" Sw. "T",., $i.w- A..6:t UnJar <hot could hove a 
dsm::, and m ... n'W ,,{fcct on each of ... rn. jot .11 •• prognms for thr,ou mded Septembu.loO, 
2015. n.. City'l moJOr ltaf<: profp"lIl'llrt odron&d ,II Ih. ownmary of audn<,>r', .... ulT. ucuon 

of the _""'panying ochcduIc: of lind>ngo and quauonoo rot~ 

Mar\llgemenr, respotJSjbIity 

Man.g.mnll II rapon.ible for compb.nu ",,"h ... ," 'bIlU'tI, regulouons, ..,d rhe I."'" .nd 
<onthuono o f ,IS .... , •• " ...... Ipphc:abJ. to dw: Cry' .... ,.~. 

AudiIa'. 'Hpenaibi!ity 
Our respoollbihlJ" II 10 ""1'''''' an OJ""'<'" on compIwlce for e..:h of the Cory'. IT\I.JOI' ltaf<: 
progdlJlf bastd on our audi. of m., rypn of complwmo reqwrnnm .. mttUd [o.bon. We 
conducTed our .udn of compIW>c •• n I«onhna .. ,th auditing . 12ndudt ~ acxtpl~ on 

,he unu~ Sut .. of Amo.na.; the "andardJ Ippbable 10 rln""""l.udla contained In Gwrn..w 
~ Su.dardt iowt<l br d\" Comp<n>lln Gene::oI of .... U .. "ed StIItt; uu:I Ihe Sw. t{T_ 
S.." AltJiI CimJ.rr. 

ThOte.tandardo and Stile of Te,... Smgle Audi, CiraJla, re<JUI<" tha, we pl.n .nd pufonn the 
... d" to obl21D ..... on.abk ... un .. cc lbou, ~!her ooncomplian« "'"h [he ')'1'''' of oomph.nc" 
rrqwren>mtf ,.f=cd \0 Iboo"C ,hit could hive. diro<:I and ma'''';''' erf"". on • "'")'" la'e 
pmgnm occurrtd. An Iud .. ",cludes ItDmIfIU'lIo on I , .. , bam, ev>Oencc lbou, the CIty'_ 

compIi2nc" "'''h ~ .cqwrnncnu and pcrf0""""'ll JUCh Olh .. pnxnlw: .... "'. cooildcrcd 

n"" .... 'Y In !he ='tlItanceo.. 

We belM:ve thot our audit pro .. dtt • ~.bk ba ... for our opiruon on romp\anc. for...,h 
rna"", 1fI'. program. """-'eve<, our audi, doa not J>""'"de. lego.! dotemunauon of the City'. 
romplunclt. 

.... - .... ". __ ...... _-.. 

Gra ntThornton 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS 
ON COMPLlAHCE FOR EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM AND 
ON INTERNAl CONTROL OVER COMPUANCE RECUIRED BY 
S1 A TE OF TEXAS SINGLE AUDIT CIRCULAR 

11K Hononble Mayo<, Memben of lh~ Gty Comrrw...., and 

Publoc Urull)' Baud ofT"""ttI 

Carr of ML.w.:n. TG" 

Report Oft c:ompU."ce for •• ch ..... 10' ..... t. p.olr8m 

Gr_",--UJ' 
IIlO _ s-. _lIXI 
_. D J7OONIoII 

1 &)l • Ie lIMlO 
f llli!!I)'! 

"' .. - .... --­_~""I....-..s 

W~ h:an ludllcd the: rompb'l1c<, of tho: ell,. of McA!kn. Tau (thr "CIty1 .... "h IhI' I)PCS of 
",",pb..""e ""'I"lrantnll ~bed .., th .. Sr.n. If T CCIII Si.w- A .... ~ th., oould h.o ..... 

darrel and ",."nul ,,{fCCI on each of 'II mojor ... ,. ~I fo, th",01 ""tkd Septcmbu 30, 
20\5. 11>r cnyl nujor 1U.f<: pmgrunI .~ idtnnfxd ,n ,h. swnmary of ludl1"'" .... ul .. »<'I"'" 

of th. :occompanY1ll& ochcdule of finding!; .nd quauon."J cotll. 

~menl'l ruponsibIity 
M.n.gtmnll _ rnponsible fot compbanct: wllh Ib, .. >,a,utes, ~...,.,. • ..,d the Ir:nno .nd 

condl1lOrtl o f " ..... " ." ...... *PJIIiabJ .. ,0 """ Ciry·IIIJ.", p~ 

AudiIor', , .. pOnSibjIiIy 

Our resf'<"'U'l>ihty _ to ""1'"''' an 0J>I'U0fl on compliance for oKh of tho: Cory'. rT\I.jOr .I>U: 

prognnlf butd on our audi, of me, 'J'P<'" of compla&na ~ .. rtftitW lO.bo:.n. We 

roodUCl,.d our J"dn of <:omp!W>cr In o«ordaou ."h oudoting l uncbrde ~ ..,.".0'<1 In 

!he Unuod S .. , ... of ~na; the 'Ianduili appIicoblc 10 rUWlall.udtu eonlouxd en c-r.._ 
~ SlUtMrdt --" br "'" Comptn>llcr Gcnt::al of"'" Lnltcd SUtH; ond Ihe Sw1l 1j7'-1 
S"". A.o6I CirutW 

ThOle Ilandardi and Stile ofTcua Smgle lIudit Cirrola. ~ thol we pia" .nd pcrionn the 
audtt 10 obllWI tttson.obl.- ... unncc aboul ...n.,mer nonoomphantt "",h 'he rypn of camphane,. 

~It r~f.....d CO above lha, <X>llld h"·e • dime! ond .... teriol elf..,1 on t .... ,0<" ' lI'e 
ptognm <>CCW"f"Od. An a..wt ",eludes eurrunUlg. on t lcol bam. CY>dmcc aboUl the c.1J" 
compIioncc .... 'h thooc rcq~tI and pcrfOtl1"\ll"l<jl ...:.h other pmccdutts I • ....., con~ 

".., .. I"r on me CIft"U"",Tancco.. 

We b<l>CYe that our .udic provodeo 0 __ obi.- baw for our optn><>D on rompJ.nc-c for esch 
"")'Dr .lIle program.. However, OUr • ...do, doco not prondr a kgal dctcmunaUOll of "'" City', 
compltance. 

.... _"" ", -_ .. " .. _-.. 
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o GrantThornton 

0pW0n on NCII ... $tatlll pn:>grWtI 

In our opuuon. 1M City complied, In .U mal~.w .cspa:u. .. ~th !he typa of compIunce 
~II rdeard 10 .boo.'~ thai could h.~~. dIrKt and tn:ItaiaI dft<1 on ~ of'lI mI.)Or 

'llit prngnmt for the year mded Scp.nn\).,r 30, 201 S. 

".port on Intom.' control ov", c .... pll.nc. 

M ..... gerncm of th~ City iI u ' po<>. ib/c for desi8ning. Iiilplementing. ..,d nlIIntl.lnUl8 crrlOC""~ 
,",err.,.1 contrOl ",,'a compliance w"h ihel)-pes of comp ... nc. rnquiumcnll ",fCTftd .0 above. 

In planning and pafomung our ludi. of comph.ancc. "." con.Kkred th~ City'. ,,,,cnlll conlrOl 
(W.., complwx:c ",;th!he 'll"" of oomphmct ""lwremcnll tha, could ha,·. a diua and rru.teruJ 
.fftct on ach _jot Ill •• progrom fO dcsJgn l..w, ~ that ..., o.ppropn.o .. '" tho: 

arcum.WlCa for !he putpoR of 01"""""'8 on opm .... Oil complian<:e for ... h maJOr .ta .. 
ptOVIiII and 10 ... , and upon on ",.anaI coniJOl OO"tt comphlna- In occotdona: .",h .... Sate 
of TIOUS SmgIc Audit eu.:ub.r, but ncM for .... pwp<>K" of apra''''' on opwon on .... 

errccuvenest o f ",tenaI coniJOlln'(r compbanc .. A«ordingIr, _ do nor ~ an or-uon on 

the cffccuvcneu of th~ City'. "'temal conlrol .... tt axrrpIw>ce. 

A de6ctcncy '" "'lanai conlrt>l ova compfuoncc aI'" when the dQlgn. or opttILUon of • control 
over complwlu does no. olIaw ma"~1li Of ttnpIoyttt. In Ihe nomW course of I""'fornung 
.h .. , a"Lg1led funcilOfU;, to p"",cn~ Of delee, and c<><re<t. non«>mplian« Wllh • type of 
<;Oiilpharu;c n'<jwrtmCD' of a 'lIte program on • umtly bw •. A nut ...... 1 wn.kll"" In ""tmol 

control .... .., comphance iI. ddiomcy. or. comb" .. u= of defioen~.1n internol control over 
<;Oiilpliln"",.uch rb •• rb ....... "",",,,,,.hIo pouiliilny th •• ma.erioI noncomp .... """ Wlth. type of 

con'phana rcqwrc:men' of ....... prog:rom ..,;u iIOI be prevented, or tIott<1ed and corJIOCled, on 
a t>rr>dy ....... A .;gnific:tont dtfocitnty in "'tunal conlrOl .... tt mmplwx:c •• ddiocnq, or. 

comlxmlKlO of deficxnaa, '" "'tanal control .... .., compliance .... th • type of compIwta 
~t of •• ", ... progrom thai If ..... ~= than • _,.,.w .. ~ ,n "'~ control 

ovu complw>cc, ft1 rmporton. enauch to ment .'!muon by tho.c chugm ",'h p"mancc. 

Ou. cuwdonooon of m.crnal wntrol qy.., complunc~ " .. for tlte limned I""'J>OIC dctaibcd Ifl 
the fin. paagnph of duo ICCDon and " .. DOt tIoslgI>cd 10 tdcnufy.U tlcflClcnCl<ll In Ifl'cmaI 

control .... er compliance that trUght be mlimal ,.-eaknes.o~ or OWU6eant dc(IOenOCI. Given 
th""~ Lmtt.~, dw:ing OW" ., ... li, 1ft <hd RO, identify any de60cnCLCI m .be City' •• ntemol control 

ov.., romPUlIlCC tha,we COliJida 10 be malm.1 """'knea .... HtlWCVer. matcnal ,.·caltnes • .,. ""y 
Wit thai .... ve nO' bcco identified 

The ~ nfduo Report on In.cmal Coatrol Over Complwt.cc" ooIcly 10 deacribe the ICOl'" 
of OW" ,tsang of ""anal cnr.troI over mmpbonce and !he mulli of , .... , tts ..... bao:ed on the 
~Ii n(thcSto,c ofTI.':U$ Songk AudirCirruW:. Ao:orthnsIT. duo tq>OrI .. DOt $W\lbIe 

for onJ <>the.- purpooc. 

! I ...... ton, Tau 
March 23, 2016 

--~ 
u..& __ ~ ___ '" 

o GrantThornton 

Os**w'Ion ..a. ........ $liIUI prcgrWII 

In out opmocn. the City complied, '" IU ma.~nal icspttta. .. uh the 'YP"" of compIunce 
~II ",fftnd 10 ."""~ mal could hove. dura and "",tttia/ dftn on ...,.. of III ""')01' 

.1I'r ptOgnInS for the yar mded Scplrmbtt)O, 2015. 

".,.ort On Intern.1 control ov_ compll.nco 

M ..... grmc:n. of Ih<: Ciry;" re.ponoiblc for dco.igning. ,"lplemcncing. ""d nUltl''''''''''g effccllYe 
In.emll contrOl "' . .,. <:ompliana ... nlt .he 1)-peI of (omp .... lKc «'<Jutn:mrnts .eftttftl.o above 

,,, pian,W1f! and pttfO<nUng our ludll of cumplu.ncc, "." con...xrm the ellY" ,,,,omol COfIIf'OI 

0.0" complw>a: "",h Ih<: <)'J'C" of comphltu::e~ .. thot could .... ,·c I dir«t .... d mI,O'UoI 
cff..a on ad! major '1I1e progtM> 10 ~ ludll ~ m...1 ..." apptOprII •• '" ...., 

arcum.W>CCI for the plllJlOM' of Clprns>IIA ... opm .... on complw>c:e r ... e.ch mIJO' Ilile 

JI<OVlI" ...,d '0 ,,'.' and ttpOI1 on "'u:nW o;ooDQIOYtt complwla In ocrordIJIce: .. ,th the Sn..­
of T ICDS SongIt Audi. Cuadu, bu. no! for the ~ of ~ ... op .. "on on 1M 
eff«U'l'eneM of "'~ conuol 0ft>C romp\,an( ... M~, _ do "Ot ~ ... opooton on 

!he cfTccln"mas of!he Ci".... ", ... moI con.roI OVft canpIunce. 

A dcf~ ...... ,enu! conuol ova compu""oe nuts .. -ben the dnlgn or open.tlon of. _,m! 
OVft comphance: does nor olIaw man.gunen. or employ""", In .he noml1l COUIX of I"'.fomung 
,ht> . .... .gned funcuOll$, 10 p"",en~ or deleet .nd conect. noncomp ...... « WI!h I type of 

(OfIIplian,c rftjUlraIlen, of I .ta'c progro,n on • tuntly bui." A nuteru.l....".,knc .. III lII.cmll 

control ov .. comp .... nccu I dc6acnC)'. or. com\munon of defioenoe., '" in.emll romrol (>v .. 

comphoncc, luch rho. th= It I rtUonlblc IX>ulbiliry du, rn.o.t..w noncomphance Wlch IIfP" of 

cO'''plwla reqwremtn, or ....... 1""'8"'" will nOl be p",,"enttd, or dctcctftl.nd corru,cd, on 
• urndy baoI.. A ~Cln. ~ III UlwnoI conlrOl OOft romp"""'" II • <kflQtf>C)', or. 

mmbom""" of defiacnaa, III IIItcnuI conlrol ...... compIi.oncc .... !h • Iypt or oomphana 
~I of. ~ ~ !hoI II Jo,ff ..... ..., !han 11D>II<,tul .. m- III ",remaI ooalrol 

.....".. compIw>n. f01""polQm cnoup 10 mml IlIen""" t". !hooc mugu! ",,,b ~ 

Our corwdonuon of Ihl"""" <<IfI1roI 00 .. complu.n<e "'~ for Ih.-limued pu.rpotc dcocribcd '" 
the fin" paagr:tpb of duo I«Don .nd "' ... not dcs.gncd 10 idcnufy all deflClt"nCln ... Imenu! 
ronlrol oou compliance th>.1 ""IIbl be mllerul ... ."u"..".co or "W"ficonl dcflOn'ltJdO. G .... e" 
th_ ~rtU .. oono. duttng our Iwllt ..... did not idcnofy ... y dc6aenaeo In 'he Ciry'. Inle",01 connol 

OOcr compuance th.t ..... comulct to be ma, .... l """"kne .. "," HO\IICVcr. ma •• ".I .... oknelits "IIY 
<'.XlII ,ha, have nOI b<:cu Iden"r.w. 

'Ibt purpost" o{duo Rtpon on [n,.moI Coalml 0.. .. Complww:e .. _Iy.., dcKribc the ICO!'" 

of our '''ung of Intemal ~trOI 0--.. compliance and the <null> of lha, lei"", based on the 
""1"""=11 of the StotC ofl·tujI ScngIt Audu GrcuIa.r. AccordtncIY, dtu tq>Ort .. DO< ""lObi< 

r ...... , oo.e. I""JI<>Ko 

1 [ou.ton, TCDI 
M=h 23. 2O!6 

--~ ,~ --~---'" 



CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 
 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 
 

Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-Through Program
Pass-Through CFDA Grantor’s or Award Disbursements/

Grantor/Program Title Number Number Amount Expenditures

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct Program:

Community Development Block Grant:
39th Year Entitlement Grant 14.218 CB13MC48506 1,535,436    645,008$        
40th Year Entitlement Grant 14.218 CB14MC48506 1,522,800    1,017,778      

Home Investment Partnerships Programs 14.239 M11MC480506 585,793 233,509         
Home Investment Partnerships Programs 14.239 M12MC480506 465,925 270,547         
Emergency Solutions Grant 14.231 S13MC480506 116,811 56,307           

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 2,223,149      

U.S. Department of Transportation
Direct Program:

Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-48-0144-42 4,318,852    376,451         
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-48-0144-43 680,373       43,196           
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-48-0144-44 762,352       4,649             
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-48-0144-45 9,416,163    6,252,534      
Federal Transit Capital Investments Grant * 20.500 TX-04-0010-00 495,000       222,466         
Federal Transit Formula Grant * 20.507 TX-90-X778-00 1,679,250    96,963           
Federal Transit Formula Grant * 20.507 TX-90-X830-01 1,337,939    16,369           
Federal Transit Formula Grant * 20.507 TX-90-X906-00 1,962,520    209,311         
Federal Transit Formula Grant * 20.507 TX-90-X937-00 5,207,372    1,758             
Federal Transit Formula Grant * 20.507 TX-90-Y017-00 3,701,400    1,448,170      
Federal Transit Formula Grant * 20.507 TX-90-Y048-00 3,171,640    671,406         
Federal Transit Job Access & Reverse Community Program ** 20.516 TX-37-X085-00 885,305       162,656         
Federal Transit New Freedom Program ** 20.521 TX-57-X030-00 108,087       19,807           
Capital Assistance Program for Reducing Energy Consumption 20.523 TX-88-0001-00 1,906,908    1,414,858      
Federal Highway Administration

    Passed through Texas Department of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STP 2011 (243) TE 913,069 139,895         
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 2015-McAllenP-S-1YG-0070 80,070         80,070           
State and Community Highway Safety 20.616 2015-McAllenPD-CIOT-00089 4,994           2,531             

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 11,163,090    

U.S. Department of Justice
Direct Program:

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 2014-DJ-BX-0466 19,614         19,614           
Equitable Sharing Program 16.922 -                  1,496,136      

Total U.S. Department of Justice 1,515,750      

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
   Hazardous Waste Management State Program Support 66.801 B2020R6.934/.335 70,510         70,510           
   Clean Water State Revolving Fund   66.458 TWDB #73633 1,700,000    88,654           
   Clean Water State Revolving Fund   66.458 TWDB #73640 7,808,511    768,019         
   Clean Water State Revolving Fund   66.458 TWDB #10435 434,000       111,812         
   Clean Water State Revolving Fund   66.458 TWDB #73659 3,245,393    226,067         
   Clean Water State Revolving Fund   66.458 TWDB #73659 40,202,322  9,153,611      

Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 10,418,673$   

** Transit Services Programs Cluster
* Federal Transit Cluster 
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 
 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 
 

Year Ended September 30, 2015 
 

Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-Through Program
Pass-Through CFDA Grantor’s or Award Disbursements/

Grantor/Program Title Number Number Amount Expenditures

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 15TX-EMPG-0713 47,138 47,138$          
Pass through Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program
  Operations and Safety Program 97.044 EMW-2012-FR-00371 2,201,120 21,927           

    Pass through Division of Emergency Management
   Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 97.039 FEMA-1931-DR-TX-11 507,532       271,559           
   Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 97.039 FEMA-1931-DR-TX-12 190,013       119,223           
   Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 97.039 FEMA-1931-DR-TX-13 658,055       80,181             
   Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 2013-SS-00045 129,326       51,398             
   Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 2013-SS-00045 38,082 38,082             
   Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 2014-SS-00029 87,677         87,677             
   Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 2014-SS-00029 12,323 12,323             
   Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 2014-SS-00029 233,800 442                  

Total U.S. Department Homeland Security 729,950           

U.S. Department of Commerce (EDA)
Investments for Public Works & Economic Development Facilities

   South Bentsen Road Industrial Park Improvements 11.300 08-01-04837 600,000 32,211           

Total U.S. Department of Commerce 32,211           

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Food and Drug Administration Research 93.103 G-T-1410-02102 2,000 2,000             

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 2,000               

Total federal financial assistance expended 26,084,823      

Texas Agencies
Texas Office of the Attorney General

2015 Victim Coordinator and Liaison Grant 1553783 40,976         37,262             
2016 Victim Coordinator and Liaison Grant 1662303 41,976         3,138               

Texas Department of State Health Services
2015 EMS Local Projects Grant 2015-047749 7,099           5,431               

Texas Department of Public Safety
2015 Local Border Security Program Grant LBSP-15-50 50,000 50,000           

Texas Department of Transportation:
    Routine Airport Maintenance Program CSJ# M1521MCAL 50,000 50,000           
Pass Through - City of Brownsville
    Auto Theft Prevention 2015 SA00T011004115 313,879       292,090           
    Auto Theft Prevention 2016 SA00T011004116 339,510       24,549           
Equitable Sharing Program -                  468,646         

Total state financial assistance expended 931,116

Total federal and state financial assistance expended 27,015,939$    
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 
 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 
 

Year Ended September 30, 2015 
 

1. General 
 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards presents the activity of all 
federal and state award programs of City of McAllen, Texas, for the year ended September 30, 2015.  The 
reporting entity consists of the primary government, organizations for which the primary government is 
financially accountable, and other organizations for which the primary government is not accountable, but 
for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that 
exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 
 
Financial accountability exists if a primary government appoints a voting majority of an organization’s 
governing Board and is either able to impose its will on that organization or there is a potential for the 
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary 
government.  A primary government may also be financially accountable for governmental organizations 
with a separately elected governing Board, a governing Board appointed by another government, or a 
jointly appointed Board that is fiscally dependent on the primary government. 
 
In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board requirements, the City has reviewed other 
entities and activities for possible inclusion in the reporting entity and determined that there are none; 
however, federal financial assistance passed through other governmental agencies is included on the 
schedule. 
 
2. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 
The federal and state grant funds are accounted for in the Special Revenue Fund, a component of the 
Governmental Fund type, and in an Enterprise Fund.  The accounting and financial reporting treatment 
applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.  The Governmental Fund types are accounted 
for using a current financial resources measurement focus.  With the Governmental Fund type 
measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet.  
Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and 
decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. 
 
The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for the Governmental Fund types.  This basis of 
accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they become susceptible to accrual, i.e., 
both measurable and available, and expenditures in the accounting period in which the fund liability is 
incurred, if measurable, except for certain compensated absences and claims and judgments, which are 
recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial 
resources. Enterprise Funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business or where the governing body has decided that the determination of  
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 
 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 
 

Year Ended September 30, 2015 
 

2. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (continued) 
 
revenues earned, costs incurred, and/or net income is necessary for management accountability.  
Enterprise Funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and use the 
accrual basis of accounting.  Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. 
 
Federal and state grant funds are generally considered to be earned to the extent of expenditures made 
under the provisions of the grant and, accordingly, when such funds are received, they are recorded as 
unearned revenues until earned. 
 
3. Subrecipients 
 
Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, City of McAllen, Texas provided federal awards to 
subrecipients as follows: 

Federal Amount
CFDA Provided to

Program Title Number Subrecipients

Community Development Block Grant –
Entitlement Grants 14.218 $ 1,209,612     

Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 468,543
Emergency Solutions Grant 14.231 52,847

 
 
 
 
4. Basis of Presentation: 
 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards includes the federal and state 
grant activity of the City of McAllen, Texas and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of State, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the State of Texas Single 
Audit Circular.  Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented 
in, or use in the preparation of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF MCALLEN, TEXAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

Year ended September 30, 2015 
 

 
 
SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 
 
Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting:

• Material weakness identified? No

• Significant deficiencies identified that are not
  considered to be material weaknesses? Yes

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

• Material weakness identified? No

• Significant deficiencies identified that are not
  considered to be material weaknesses? No

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major programs: Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with
Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133? No

Identification of major federal program:

    CFDA Numbers   Name of Federal Program or Cluster

16.922 Equitable Sharing Program
20.500 & 20.507 Federal Transit Cluster

20.523 Capital Assistance Program for Reducing Energy 
Consumption and Greenhouse Gas Emissions

66.458 Clean Water State Revolving Fund Cluster 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B federal programs: $447,611

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No
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CITY OF MCALLEN, TEXAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

Year ended September 30, 2015 
 

State Awards 
  
Internal control over major programs: 

   
• Material weakness identified? No 
  
• Significant deficiencies identified that are not 
  considered to be material weaknesses?  No 

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for 
major programs:  Unmodified 

  

Any audit findings disclosed that are required  
to be reported in accordance with  
State of Texas Single Audit Circular?  No 

Identification of major state program:  

Grant Number Name of State Program or Cluster 
 

N/A Equitable Sharing Program 
  
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A 
and Type B state programs:  $300,000  

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes 
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CITY OF MCALLEN, TEXAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

Year ended September 30, 2015 
 

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

Finding #: 2015-001 
Capitalized Interest  
Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency 
 
Criteria:  
Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), as outlined in GASB 62, Codification of Accounting and 
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, prescribes that 
interest incurred to acquire a capital asset should be included as part of the cost of that asset (interest 
capitalization).  The amount of interest cost to be capitalized as part of the cost of a capital asset is the 
amount that could have been avoided had that asset not been acquired.  Interest capitalization normally 
begins at the start of preconstruction activities and ends when an asset is substantially complete and ready for 
use.   
 
Condition:  
It was noted that interest related to capital related debt issues (Sewer Series 2013 and Waterworks and Sewer 
System Improvements Series 2015) associated with current construction projects was not being capitalized in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles promulgated by GASB 62.   The City calculated the 
capitalized interest from the inception of the Sewer bonds related to capital projects which was $260,445. 
 
Cause:  
The City failed to put procedures in place to evaluate the implications of all applicable standards. 
 
Effect:  
By not recording the capitalized interest, the City is overstating interest expense and understating the 
capitalized interest on the financial statements. 
 
Recommendation:  
We recommend that the City review all proprietary fund debt issues of the City and determine whether there 
is outstanding construction related projects to ensure all capitalized interest is properly computed and 
recorded correctly.  Additionally, we recommend the City formulate a process to evaluate future issuances of 
proprietary fund debt for capitalization of interest consideration.  
 
Management’s Response:   
A capitalized interest check off section for each applicable bond issue has been added to the year-end 
procedures schedule followed in the Finance Department.  Appropriate personnel have been designated 
responsible for completing the journal entries necessary to record the capitalized interest as required by GASB 
62. 
 
Target Completion Date: Completed and will be followed accordingly during the fiscal year-end closing 
process. 
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CITY OF MCALLEN, TEXAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

Year ended September 30, 2015 
 

 
Finding #: 2015-002 
Transfer of Completed CIP  
Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency 
 
Criteria:  
In accordance with GASB 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and 
Local Governments, the City is required to report capital asset balances and related depreciation in the City’s 
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. Included in capital assets are projects which are 
under construction and have not been completed as of the City’s fiscal year end. These assets are required to 
be reported as construction-in-progress (CIP) and are not depreciated until their construction is complete and 
they are placed in service.   
 
Condition and Context:  
During testing of construction in progress, it was noted that several projects were completed and had not been 
accounted for as having been placed into service.  The adjustments resulted in the following:  

Governmental Type Activities (GTA)  
1. A cumulative reclassification of $7,130,479 of CIP to depreciable capital assets for assets that were 

placed into service from FY2014.  
2. Resulting in a cumulative increase in depreciation expense of $542,127 for the same time period as 1.  

 
Business Type Activities (BTA)  

1. A cumulative reclassification of $7,796,546 of CIP to depreciable capital assets for assets that were 
placed into service from FY2010 to FY2015.  

2. Resulting in a cumulative increase in depreciation expense of $491,186 for the same time period as 1.  
 
Water Fund  

1. A cumulative reclassification of $1,611,934 of CIP to depreciable capital assets for assets that were 
placed into service from FY2013 to FY2014. 

2. Resulting in a cumulative increase in depreciation expense of $118,726 for the same time period as 1.  
 
Sewer Fund  

1. A cumulative reclassification of $4,406,220 of CIP to depreciable capital assets for assets that were 
placed into service from FY2010 and FY2013. 

2. Resulting in a cumulative increase in depreciation expense of $357,641 for the same time period as 1.  
 
Airport Fund  

1. A cumulative reclassification of $1,778,392 of CIP to depreciable capital assets for assets that were 
placed into service in FY2015.  

2. Resulting in a cumulative increase in depreciation expense of $14,819 for the same time period as 1.  
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CITY OF MCALLEN, TEXAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

Year ended September 30, 2015 
 

Cause: 
During the summer the City was in the process of reviewing all construction-in-progress projects to 
determine if the assets should be placed into service, this review was not complete at fiscal yearend.   
 
Effect:  
By not timely transferring completed CIP projects, the City is overstating the CIP balance and understating 
the related capital asset balances.  Additionally, depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation are both 
understated as the completed project is not being depreciated. 
 
Recommendation:  
We recommend that the City adhere to their process of inquiring of City departments the status of outstanding 
CIP projects as well as incorporate an annual review of all outstanding construction in progress projects to 
determine if assets should be placed into service.  Additionally, the City should provide ongoing training to the 
applicable departments to ensure that they fully understand the requirements related to close out of 
construction in progress.   

Management’s Response:   
Due to the prolonged illness and absenteeism of the capital assets supervisor, the capital assets area was not 
able to complete all of the assigned duties in regards to the CIP projects. Planned correction actions include 
assigning staff to assist with the CIP projects to perform monthly reconcilements and follow-up on the status 
of CIP projects. The monthly reconcilement will include CIP completion dates or dates placed into service, 
proper recording of capital asset transactions as they are completed and transferred from CIP to the correct 
capital asset category, and accordingly apply depreciation based on the life of the assets. This monthly process 
will be reviewed by the Assistant Finance Director to ensure timely and accurate accounting of CIP projects 
and the progress towards completion.  
 
Target Completion Date:  
Ongoing 
 

SECTION III – FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATED TO FEDERAL AND 
STATE AWARDS 

The audit disclosed no findings required to be reported.  
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CITY OF MCALLEN, TEXAS 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 
 

Year ended September 30, 2015 
 

FINANACIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
Finding # 2014-001 
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
Type of Finding – Significant Deficiency 
 
Condition: 
We noted an analysis is not being performed to determine an appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts on 
all of the City’s accounts receivables.  Currently, an allowance is determined only for water, sewer, and 
sanitation receivables.  As an example, it was noted in the Airport Fund there were a few receivables that had 
been outstanding for an extended period of time and related to vendors that were in bankruptcy.   
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that management establish a policy and develop a method based on historical experience and 
other relevant factors to determine an appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts and consistently use it on 
a periodic basis, at least annually, to analyze whether an allowance should be recorded.  This will allow 
management to assess the true collectability of outstanding receivables. 
 
Status: 
Completed 
The City established a bad debt and allowance for doubtful accounts policy.  Before year end, receivable 
balances were reviewed by fund and a write off of uncollectible receivables was determined and presented to 
the City Commission for write off in September 2015.    
 
Finding # 2014-002 
Financial Statement and Supporting Schedules Reconciliation 
Type of Finding – Significant Deficiency 
 
Condition:   
During the audit, we encountered inconsistencies in the supporting schedules of the capital assets and grants 
when auditing the numbers within the financial statements.  We noted that there is a decentralized process 
regarding the underlying data and the data recorded in the financial statements.  Complete and accurate 
supporting schedules are necessary for complete and accurate financial statements. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the City establish policies and procedures to ensure the supporting schedules are 
reconciled to the financial statements.  This could include a detailed checklist identifying the supporting 
schedules utilized to prepare the financial statements and related notes and assigning a person to be 
responsible for the accurate reconciliation. 
 
Status: 
Completed 
Detailed checklists for capital assets and grants were established.   
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Year ended September 30, 2015 
 

Finding # 2014-003 
Accounts Payable Open Items Report 
Type of Finding – Significant Deficiency 
 
Condition:   
Based on our inquiries, management was unable to provide an open payables detail by fund report to support 
the accounts payable balance.  It was our understanding based on prior year response to this matter that the 
accounting system was going to be modified to allow for and open payables report to be created.   
 
Additionally, it was noted that the City engaged a consultant to assist in the matter during 2014 to create a 
report. 
 
Recommendation: 
If the City has this capability, we recommend the City have available the system generated report to 
appropriately monitor accounts payable activities of the City. 
 
Status: 
Completed 
A manually generated report was created by staff and a detailed open items accounts payable list was 
generated to appropriately monitor accounts payable activity.  The list was provided to the external auditors 
for FY 14-15. 
 
Finding # 2014-004 
Revenue Recognition 
Type of Finding – Significant Deficiency 
 
Condition:   
During the audit, we noted the City is recording grants revenue against expenditures in the general ledger for 
those grants included in the General Fund.  It was communicated that this practice is done to ensure for 
budgetary purposes there is an accurate picture of the grant. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the City properly reflect the grant revenue as intergovernmental in the general fund or 
account for the grant activity of those specific grants in the Miscellaneous Grants Fund.  In order to maintain 
an ability to monitor the grants for budgetary purposes, the City could create a grant revenue account that is 
linked to the grant expense account. 
 
Status: 
Completed 
The City reflected grant revenue as intergovernmental revenue in the General Fund and Miscellaneous Grants 
Fund for FY 14-15 and created grant revenue accounts linked to the grant expense accounts, as 
recommended by the auditors. 
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STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 
 

Year ended September 30, 2015 
 

SINGLE AUDIT FINDINGS 
 
Finding # 2014-005  
Equitable Sharing Program – Federal  
Davis Bacon 
Type of Finding – Material Weakness and Material Noncompliance 
 
Condition: 
It was noted that the City did not include the provisions of Davis Bacon requirements in their contracts 
requiring the contractors to pay minimum wages to all laborers and mechanics nor require the contractors to 
submit weekly certified payrolls. 
 
Recommendations: 
We recommend the City strengthen their policies and procedures over the communication of federal 
requirements that all contracts funded with federal financial assistance to be subjected to the Davis Bacon Act 
requirements.  The policies consider defining federal financial assistance as outlined in OMB Circular A-133 to 
ensure all departments are aware that it is not just grants that are subject to OMB Circular A-133. 
 
Status: 
Corrected 
The City of McAllen has implemented two major changes into its process, which will be followed for contracts 
going forward.  Existing construction contracts prior to the finding have been updated except for the contract 
related to the Public Safety Building additions and renovations, which is due to issues with the contractor and 
bonding company and the City wanted to ensure the contracting obligations would be met to complete the 
project.  The Purchasing and Contracting Department has updated the Request for Availability of Funds Form, 
which requires departments to provide detail account and funding information for solicitations that the City 
procures.  This ensures the correct clauses and forms are included as part of the solicitation package and bidders 
are made aware of the requirements based on the funding source.  The second update made is incorporating 
two new standard operating procedures for federally funded projects:  one for the Davis Bacon Policy and one 
for Federal and State Debarment and Suspension.  The new procedures ensure the Davis Bacon is followed 
through by staff where weekly payroll is required and submitted and reviewed via the WH-347 form issued by 
the Department of Labor.  These payrolls are to be checked against random interviews performed at the job 
site throughout construction of the project.  The second requires the City check suspension and debarment for 
contractors on the federal sams.gov website as well as the state funded projects through the Texas Comptroller’s 
website.   
 
Finding # 2014-006 
Equitable Sharing Program – Federal  
Procurement, Suspension and Debarment 
Type of Finding – Significant Deficiency 
 
Condition: 
The City did not perform an inspection of the vendor in the System for Award Management (SAM) to ensure 
the vendor is not suspended or debarred from use for the Equitable Sharing Program.  The inspection of the 
vendors was performed for another grant funded project in which the vendors were utilized, thus the City was 
in compliance with the requirements.  The control over the process in general, however, failed. 
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Recommendation: 
We recommend the City of McAllen’s Police Department ensure all projects funded by federal forfeitures be 
communicated to the Contracting and Purchasing Department to ensure the suspension and debarment 
inspection is performed. 
 
Status: 
Corrected 
Purchasing and Contracting Department issued standard operating procedures for the Federal and State 
Suspension and Debarment.  The Director, Assistant Director, Buyers, and Contract Compliance Officer are 
responsible for reviewing and adhering to the standards in the policy, which was effective July 15, 2015. 
 
Finding # 2014-007 
Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program  
Cash Management 
Type of Finding:  Significant Deficiency 
 
Condition: 
The request for funds document is not reviewed prior to being submitted to the grantor agency.   
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend the City of McAllen assign another individual with requisite knowledge to review the 
reimbursement requests for the Assistance to the Firefighters Grant Program prior to submission. 
 
Status: 
Corrected 
The City of McAllen assigned appropriate individuals with knowledge of the granted funds to review the 
required reports prior to submission. Files are on hand with dated activity to document procedures were 
followed before submission.  
 
Finding # 2014-008 
Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program  
Reporting 
Type of Finding – Material Weakness 
 
Condition: 
The Federal Financial Report /SF-425 reports are not reviewed by anyone other than the preparer prior to 
being submitted to the grantor agency. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend the City of McAllen assign another individual with requisite knowledge to review the required 
reports for the Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program prior to submission. 
 
Status:   
Corrected 
The City of McAllen implemented a procedure that quarterly reports generated electronically will be printed 
out first so that a designated individual can review the report prior to submission to ensure accuracy of the 
data. 
 

269



CITY OF MCALLEN, TEXAS 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 
 

Year ended September 30, 2015 
 

Finding # 2014-009 
Equitable Sharing Program – State  
Suspension and Debarment 
Type of Finding – Material Weakness and Material Noncompliance 
 
Condition: 
The City did not perform the review of the Parties Excluded from Procurement and Nonprocurement 
Programs listing to ensure the contractors are not suspended or debarred by the State of Texas. 
 
Recommendation: 

We recommend the City of McAllen perform a review of the Parties Excluded from Procurement and 
Nonprocurement Programs listing to ensure contractors are not suspended or debarred.  In addition, we 
recommend that the City incorporate this review into its established policies and procedures in place for other 
government funded projects. 
 
Status: 
Completed 
Standard operating procedures have been developed and became effective July 13, 2015.  To ensure compliance, 
Purchasing and Contracting staff are printing a copy of the Debarment Verification Search Results obtained 
from the Systems for Award Management (SAM) and/or by the State of Texas (Texas Comptroller of Public 
Accountants – Debarred Vendor List) as applicable and a copy of these records is placed in the contract file. 
 
Finding # 2014-010 
Equitable Sharing Program – State  
Equipment Management 
Type of Finding – Material Weakness and Material Noncompliance 
 
Condition: 
The City of McAllen did not meet the equipment requirement of taking a physical inventory of equipment at 
least once every two years as outlined in the Uniform Grants Management Standards. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend the City of McAllen establish physical inventory policies and procedures to ensure 
compliance with the equipment requirement.  The policy and procedures should include details of preparing 
for and executing a physical inventory count, and resolving differences between quantities determined by the 
physical inspection and those shown in the accounting records.   
 
Status: 
Completed 
Inventory policies and procedures were established on June 16, 2015 by the Police Director of Fiscal 
Management and an inventory completed by September 30, 2015.  
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